


PROVIDENT COMM BANCSHARES INC

Dear Fellow Shareholders

The letters that have written to you over the past few years have detailed the economic obstacles that we

have encountered and the difficult actions that we have taken to successfully move forward While the recession

has been longer and more severe than initially expected especially for the region in which we operate we have

continued to survive and prosper
and serve our many local customers clients and businesses Our commitment to

our constituencies has forced us to make many tough decisions through this long process
and is summarized on

the cover of this annual report by the words Perseverance Endurance Patience These words have become our

guiding strategy as we move forward deliberately and with purpose

Unlike previous years this year
take the opportunity not just to reflect on what we have accomplished

but also to begin to look ahead and believe the sunrise displayed on the cover of this report symbolizes new

beginning for Provident and brighter day ahead However similar to how the sun is just peeking over the horizon

we acknowledge that we are only at the start of new beginning with much left to do Yet we believe that we are

well-positioned for new start that has already begun

While the strategies we have pursued are far from complete we have made some significant strides

We continue to chip away at our asset quality issues Our classified assets have decreased each of the last

two years declining from $42.8 million at December 31 2010 to $23.9 million at December 31 2012

Also past due loans have decreased from $23.3 million to $14.0 million over the same period This has

contributed to significantly lower provision
for loan losses and dramatically less expenses relating to

real estate on which we have foreclosed

Our improvements in asset quality have been significant contributing factor to our return to profitability

as we reported net income before taxes in 2012 of $318000

We have achieved improved profitability while also being cognizant of the need to maintain adequate

capital and liquidity to protect
the soundness of the institution We accomplished this through shrinking

our balance sheet by reducing loans and higher-cost borrowings and deposits The results were that we

ended the year with Tier Leverage Capital Ratio of 7.04% and Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio of

15.27% Our liquidity ratio has increased each of the past two years
from 34.75% at December 31 2010

to 58.73% at December 31 2012

While we realize that the financial sector has more challenges ahead we believe the actions we have

taken over the
past

several years in strengthening our underwriting and our internal
processes

and investing

in technology have laid the foundation for successful path ahead Further the structure of our balance sheet

provides flexibility for us to grow core deposits and loans without substantially increasing our overall total assets

This strategy is important in continuing to increase our net interest margin
and regulatory capital ratios It is

for these reasons that we believe that new day is dawning for Provident and we look forward to sharing our

accomplishments with you in the months and
years

that follow

As always thank you for your
continued trust and confidence with

your long-term investment in Provident

hope that you can join us at our annual meeting on May 15th in the Macfeat House on the campus of

Winthrop University

Sincerely

Dwight Neese

President and Chief Executive Officer



PROVIDENT COMM BANCSHARES

April 11 2013

Dear Stockholder

You are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting of stockholders of Provident

Community Bancshares Inc the Company The meeting will be held at Winthrop University

Macfeat House 1712 Memorial Circle Rock Hill South Carolina on Wednesday May 15 2013 at

200 p.m local time

The notice of annual meeting and proxy statement appearing on the following pages describe

the formal business to be transacted at the meeting Directors and officers of the Company as well

as representative of Elliott Davis LLC the Companys independent auditors will be present to

respond to appropriate questions of stockholders

It is important that your shares are represented at this meeting whether or not you attend the

meeting in person and regardless of the number of shares you own To make sure your shares are

represented we urge you to vote via the Internet by telephone or by completing and mailing the

enclosed proxy card If you attend the meeting you may vote in person even ifyou have previously

mailed proxy card

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting

Sincerely

Carl Mason

Chairman of the Board
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Provident Community Bancshares Inc

2700 Celanese Road
Rock Hill South Carolina 29732

803 325-9400

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The annual meeting of stockholders of Provident Community Bancshares Inc will be held at

Winthrop University Macfeat House 1712 Memorial Circle Rock Hill South Carolina on Wednesday May
15 2013 at 200 p.m local time At the meeting stockholders will consider and act on the following

The election of two directors of the Company to serve for term of three years

non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers

The ratification of the appointment of Elliott Davis LLC as the independent registered

public accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31 2013
and

Such other business that may properly come before the meeting

NOTE The Board of Directors is not aware of any other business to come before the meeting

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 28 2013 are entitled to receive notice of

and to vote at the meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the meeting

Please vote either via the Internet by telephone or by completing and signing the enclosed form

of proxy which is solicited by the Board of Directors and mailing it promptly in the enclosed envelope

The proxy will not be used if you attend the meeting and vote in person

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Wanda Wells

Corporate Secretary

Rock Hill South Carolina

April 112013

IMPORTANT The prompt return of proxies will save the Company the expense of further requests for

proxies to ensure quorum self-addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience No postage is

required if mailed in the United States
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Provident Community Bancshares Inc

Proxy Statement

General Information

We are providing this proxy statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the

Board of Directors of Provident Community Bancshares Inc for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders and

for any adjournment or postponement of the meeting In this proxy statement we may also refer to Provident

Community Bancshares Inc as Provident Community Bancshares the Company we our or us

Provident Community Bancshares is the holding company for Provident Community Bank N.A In

this proxy statement we may also refer to Provident Community Bank as the Bank

We are holding the 2013 annual meeting at Winthrop University Macfeat House 1712 Memorial

Circle Rock Hill South Carolina on Wednesday May 15 2013 at 200 p.m local time

We intend to mail this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card to stockholders of record

beginning on or about April 11 2013

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for

the Stockholder Meeting to Be Held on May 15 2013

The Companys proxy statement proxy card and 2012 Annual Report to Stockholders are available at

http//www.providentonline.com/proxydocs

Information about Voting

Who Can Vote at the Meeting

You are entitled to vote the shares of Provident Community Bancshares common stock that you

owned as of March 282013 As of that date total of 1790599 shares of Provident Community Bancshares

common stock were outstanding Each share of common stock has one vote

The Companys Certificate of Incorporation provides that record holders of the Companys common

stock who acquire beneficial ownership in excess of 10% of the Companys outstanding shares without the

approval of two-thirds of the Board of Directors are entitled to cast only one-hundredth of vote of any

shares held in excess of the 10% limit



Ownership of Shares Attending the Meeting

You may own shares of Provident Community Bancshares in one of the following ways

Directly in your name as the stockholder of record or

Indirectly through broker bank or other holder of record in street name

If your shares are registered directly in your name you are the holder of record of these shares and we

are sending these proxy materials directly to you As the holder of record you have the right to give your

proxy directly to us or to vote in person at the meeting Additionally instead of voting by mailing proxy

card registered stockholders can vote their shares of Company common stock over the Internet or by

telephone The Internet and telephone voting procedures are designdto authenticate stockholders identities

allow stockholders to provide their voting instructions and confirm that their instructions have been recorded

properly Specific instructions for Internet or telephone voting are set forth on the enclosed proxy card The

deadline for voting by telephone or via the Internet is 300 a.m Eastern time on May 15 2013

If you hold your shares in street name your broker bank or other holder of record is sendingthese

proxy materials to you As the beneficial owner you have the right to direct your broker bank or other

holder of record how to vote by filling dut voting instruction form that accompanies your proxy materials

Your broker bank or other holder of record may allow you to provide voting instructions by telephone or by

the Internet Please see the instruction form provided by your broker bank or other holder of record that

accompanies this proxy statement

If you hold your shares in street name you will need proof of ownership to be admitted to the

meetii3g recent brokerage statement or letter from bank or broker are examples ofproofpfoWnship If

you want to vote your shares of Provident community Bancshares common stock held in street name in

person at the meeting you must obtain written proxy in your name from the broker bank or other nominee

who is the record holder of your shares

Quorum and Vote Required

Quorum We will have quorum and be able to conduct the business of the annual meeting if the

holders of majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote are present at the meeting

either in person or by proxy If you return valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person we will

count your shares to determine whether there is quorum even if you abstain from voting Broker non-votes

also will be counted to determine the existence of quorum

Votes Required for Proposals In voting on the election of directors you may vote in favor of

the nominees withhold votes as to all nominees or withhold votes as to specific nominee There is no

cumulative voting for the election of directors Directors must be elected by plurality of the votes cast at the

annual meeting This means that the nominees receiving the greatest
number of votes will be elected In the

election of directors votes that are withheld and broker non-votes willhave no effect on the outcome of the

election



In voting on the non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers

and on the ratification of the appointment of Elliott Davis LLP as the Companys independent registered

public accounting firm you may vote in favor of the proposal vote against the proposal or abstain from

voting To approve the resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and to ratify

the appointment of Elliott Davis LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013 the

affirmative vote of majority of the votes cast at the annual meeting is required In counting votes on the

resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and to ratify the appointment of the

independent registered public accountants we will not count abstentions and broker non-votes as votes cast

on the proposals Therefore abstentions and broker non-votes will have no impact on the outcome of the

proposals

Effect of Not Casting Your Vote If you hold your shares in street name it is critical that you cast

your vote if you want it to count in the election of directors Item of this Proxy Statement and the non

binding resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers Item of this Proxy

Statement If you hold your shares in street name and you do not instruct your bank or broker how to vote in

the election of directors or the non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of the named
officers no votes on these proposals will be cast on your behalf These are referred to as broker non-votes

Your bank or broker will however continue to have discretion to vote any uninstructed shares on the

ratification of the appointment of the Companys independent registered public accounting firmItem of

this Proxy Statement If you are stockholder of record and you do not cast your vote no votes will bç cast

on your behalf on any of the items of business at the annual meeting

Voting by Proxy

The Board of Directors of Provident Community Bancshares is sending you this proxy statement to

request that you allow your shares of Provident Community Bancshares common stock to be represented at

the annual meeting by the persons named in the enclosed proxy card All shares of Provident Community
Bancshares common stock represented at the meeting by properly executed proxies will be voted in

accordance with the instructions indicated on the proxy card If you sign date and return proxy card

without giving voting instructions your shares will be voted as recommended by the Companys Board of

Directors The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR each of the nominees for director

FOR the resolution to approve the compensation of the named executive officers and FOR
ratification of the appointment of Elliott Davis LLC as the independent registered public accounting

firm

If any matters not described in this proxy statement are properly presented at the annual meeting the

persons named in the proxy card will use their judgment to determine how to vote your shares This includes

motion to adjourn or postpone the meeting to solicit additional proxies If the annual meeting is postponed

or adjourned your Company common stock may be voted by the persons named in the proxy card on the new

annual meeting date as well unless you have revoked your proxy We do not know of any other matters to be

presented at the annual meeting

You may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the meeting regardless of whether

you submitted your original proxy by mail the Internet or telephone IQ revoke your proxy you must either

advise the Corporate Secretary of the Company in writing before your shares have been voted at the annual

meeting deliver later dated proxy or attend the meeting and vote your shares in person Attendance at the

annual meeting will not in itself constitute revocation of your proxy



Corporate Governance and Board Matters

Director Independence

The Companys Board of Directors currently consists of six members all of whom are independent

under the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market except for Mr Neese who is President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank Because the Company is traded on the OTC Electronic

Bulletin Board there are no independence requirements for the Companys directors However the Company

chooses to apply the current listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market In assessing th independence

of our directors the Board of Directors considered transactions relationships and arrangements between the

Company and its directors that are not required to be disclosed in this proxy statement under the heading

Transactions with Related Persons including loans or lines of credit that the Bank has directly or

indirectly made or other business transactions with Directors William Graham Russell Smart and

Philip Wilkins

Board Leadership Structure and Boards Role in Risk Oversight

The Board Of Directors has determined that the separation of the offices of Chairman of the Board

and President and Chief Executive Officer will enhance Board independence and oversight Moreover the

separation of the Chairman of the Board and President and Chief Executive Officer will allow the President

and Chief Executive Officer to better focus on his responsibilities of running the Company enhancing

stockholder value and expanding and strengthening our franchise while allowing the Chairman of the Board

to lead the Board in its fundamental role of providing advice to and independent oversight of management

Consistent with this determination Mr Mason serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr Mason is

independent under the listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market

Risk is inherent with every business and how well business manages risk can ultimately determine

its success We face number of risks including credit risk interest rate risk liquidity risk operational risk

strategic risk and reputation risk Management is responsible for the day-to-day management of risks the

Company faces while the board as whole and through its committees has responsibility for the oversight

of risk management In its risk oversight role the Board of Directors has the responsibility to satisfy itself

that the risk management processes designed and implemented by managementare adequate and functioning

as designed To do this the Chairman of the Board meets regularly with management to discuss strategy and

risks facing the Company Senior management attends the Board meetings and is available to address any

questions or concerns raised by the Board on risk management and any other matters The Chairman of the

Board and independent members of the Board work together to provide strong independent oversight of the

Companys management and affairs through its standing committees and when necessary special meetings of

independent directors

Committees of the Board of Directors

The following table identifies the members of the Boards Audit/Compliance Compensation and

Governance Committees as of March 28 2013 All members of each committee are independent in

accordance with the listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market Each of the committees operates under

written charter that is approved by the Board of Directors that governs its composition responsibilities
and

operations Each committee reviews and reassesses the adequacy of its charter at least annually The charters

for all three committees are available in the Board Charters portion of the Investor Relations section of the

Companys Web site www.providentonline.com



The Company and the Bank also maintain Compliance Loan Asset/Liability Investment and

Strategic Planning Committees

Audit/Compliance Compensation Governance

Director Committee Committee Committee

Robert Breakfield XI

William Graham

Carl Mason

Dwight Neese

Russell Smart

Philip Wilkins

Number of Meetings in 2012

Chairman

Audit/Compliance Committee

The Audit/Compliance Committee meets as needed to appoint and review the work performed by
the independent registered public accounting firmand to monitor the Companys internal audit function and

internal control systems The Audit/Compliance Committee also meets with the independent registered public

accounting firmto discuss the results of the annual audit and any related matters The Board has determined

that Mr Smart is an audit committee financial expert Mr Smart is independent under the listing standards

of the Nasdaq Stock Market

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee approves the compensation objectives for the Company and the Bank

and establishes the compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and other executives The Compensation

Committee reviews all components of compensation including base salary bonus equity compensation
benefits and other perquisites In addition to reviewing competitive market values the Compensation

Committee also examines the total compensation mix pay-for-performance relationship and how all

elements in the aggregate comprise the executives total compensation package The Chief Executive

Officer develops recommendations regarding the appropriate mix and level of compensation for subordinate

officers The recommendations consider the objectives of our compensation philosophy and the range of

compensation programs authorized by the Committee The Chief Executive Officer meets with the

Committee to discuss the recommendations and also reviews with the Committee his recommendations

concerning the compensation of the named executive officers The Chief Executive Officer does not

participate in Committee discussions or the review of Committee documents relating to his compensation

Decisions by the Compensation Committee with respect to the compensation of executive officers are

approved by the full Board of Directors The Compensation Committee also assists the Board of Directors in

evaluating potential candidates for executive positions



Governance Committee

The Companys Governance Committee identifies individuals qualified to become Board members

selects nominees for election as directors recommends committee membership develops set of corporate

governance policies and procedures and evaluates the Boards effectiveness

Qualifications The Governance Committee has adopted set of criteria that it considers when it

selects individuals to be nominated for election to the Board of Directors candidate must meet the

eligibility requirements set forth in the Companys Bylaws which include stock ownership requirement and

an age limitation provision candidate also must meet any qualification requirements set forth in any Board

or committee governing documents

If the candidate is deemed eligible for election to the Board of Directors the Governance Committee

will then evaluate

The candidates relevant financial regulatory and business experience and skills

The candidates familiarity with the Companys local market area and participation in local

business civic charitable or religious organizations as well as ties to local businesses

The candidates personal and professional integrity honesty and reputation

The candidates ability to devote sufficient time and energy to diligently perforinhi or her

duties including his or her ability to personally attend Board and committee meetings and

Whether any material relationship exists between the candidate and the Company that might

impact the candidates objectivity and independence or his or her ability to serve on any

Board committees under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission

The Committee also will consider any other factors the Governance Committee deems relevant

including age size of the Board of Directors and regulatory disclosure obligations Further when identifying

nominees to serve as director the Governance Committee seeks to create Board that is strong in its

collective knowledge and has diversity of skills and experience with respect to accounting and finance

management and leadership vision and strategy business operations business judgment industry knowledge

and corporate governance

With respect to nominating an existing director for re-election to the Board of Directors the

Governance Committee will consider and review an existing directors Board and committee attendance and

performance length of Board service the expenence skills and contributions that the existing director bnngs

to the Board and independence

Dire ctor Nomination Process The process that the Governance Committee follows to identify

and evaluate individuals to be nominated for election to the Board of Directors is as follows

For purposes of identifying nominees for the Board of Directors the Governance Committee relies on

personal contacts of the committee members and other members of the Board of Directors as well as its

knowledge of members of the communities served by the Bank The Governance Committee also will

consider director candidates recommended by stockholders in accordance with the policy and procedures set



forth below The Governance Committee has not previously used an independent search firm to identify

nominees

In evaluating potential nominees the Governance Committee determines whether the candidate is

eligible and qualified for service on the Board of Directors by evaluating the candidate under certain criteria

which are described above If such individual fulfills these criteria the Governance Committee will conduct

check of the individuals background and interview the candidate to further assess the qualities of the

prospective nominee and the contributions he or she would make to the Board

Consideration of Recommendations by Stockholders It is the policy of the Governance

Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company to consider director candidates recommended by
stockholders who appear to be qualified to serve on the Companys Board of Directors The Governance

Committee may choose not to consider an unsolicited recommendation if no vacancy exists on the Board of

Directors and the Governance Committee does not perceive need to increase the size of the Board of

Directors To avoid the unnecessary use of the Governance Committees resources the Governance

Committee will consider only those director candidates recommended in accordance with the procedures set

forth below

Procedures to be -Followed by Stockholders To submit recommendation of director

candidate to the Governance Committee stockholder should submit the following information in writing

addressed to the Chairman of the Governance Committee care of the Corporate Secretary at the main office

of the Company

The name of the person recommended as director candidate

All information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of

proxies for election of directors pursuant to Regulation 4A under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 as amended

The written consent of the person being recommended as director candidate to being

named in the proxy statement as nominee and to serving as director if elected

As to the stockholder making the recommendation the name and address of such stockholder

as they appear on the Companys books provided however that if the stockholder is not

registered holder of the Companys common stock the stockholder should submit his or her

name and address along with current written statement from the record holder of the shares

that reflects ownership of the Companys common stock and

statement disclosing whether such stockholder is acting with or on behalf of any other

person and if applicable the identity of such person

In order for director candidate to be considered for nomination at the Companys annual meeting of

stockholders the recommendation must be received by the Governance Committee at least 120 calendar days

before the date the Companys proxy statement was released to stockholders in connection with the previous

years annual meeting advanced by one year



Director Compensation

The following table provides the compensation received by individuals who served as non-employee

directors of the Company during the 2012 fiscal year

Fees Earned or

Director Paid in Cash Total

Robert Breakfield 12000 12000

William Graham 12000 12000

Carl Mason 15600 15600

Russell Smart 12000 12000

Philip Wilkins 12000 12000

At December 31 2012 the aggregate outstanding stock options held by Messrs Breakfield Graham

Mason Smart and Wilkins were 1500 1500 1500 and 1500 respectively

Cash Retainers for Non-Employee Directors The following table sets forth the applicable 4ees to be

paid to our non-employee directors for their service on our Board of Directors during 2013

Monthly Fee for Bank Board of Directors $1000

Monthly Fee for Chairman of the Board of Directors 300

Board and Committee Meetings

During the year ended December 312012 the Board of Directors of the Company held 15 meetings

and the Board of Directors of the Bank held 12 meetings No director attended fewer than 75% of the

meetings of the Board of Directors and Board committees on which they served in 2012

Director Attendance at Annual Meeting of Stockholders

While the Company has no formal policy on director attendance at annual meetings of stockholders

all directors are encouraged to attend All directors attended the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

Provident Community Bancshares has adopted Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that is

designed to ensure that the Companys directors and employees meet the highest standards of ethical conduct

The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct which applies to all employees and directors addresses conflicts

of interest the treatment of confidential information general employee conduct and compliance with

applicable laws rules and regulations In addition the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is designed to

deter wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct the avoidance of conflicts of interest full and

accurate disclosure and compliance with all applicable laws rules and regulations copy of the Code of

Ethics and Business Conduct can be found in the Code of Conduct portion of the Investors Relations section

of the Companys Web site www.providentonline corn



Audit Related Matters

Audit/Compliance Committee Report

The Companys management is responsible for the Companys internal controls and financial

reporting process The Companys independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for

performing an audit of the Companys consolidated financial statements and issuing an opinion on the

conformity of those financial statethents with generally accepted accounting principles The

Audit/Compliance Committee oversees the Companys internal controls and financial reporting process on

behalf of the Board of Directors

In this context the Audit/Compliance Committee has met and held discussions with management and

the independent registered public accounting firm Management represented to the Audit/Compliance

Committee that the Companys consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and the Audit/Compliance Committee has reviewed and discussed the

consolidated financial statements with management and the independent registered public accounting firm

The Audit/Compliance Committee discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm matters

required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 as amended AICPA Professional

Standards Vol AU Section 380 as adopted by the Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board in Rule

3200T including the quality not just the acceptability of the accounting principles the reasonableness of

significant judgments and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements

The Audit/Compliance Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the

independent registered public accounting firm required by the applicable requirements of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent registered public accounting firms communications

with the Audit/Compliance Committee concerning independence The Audit/Compliance Committee has

discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the firms independence from the Company
and its management In concluding that the registered public accounting firm is independent the

Audit/Compliance Committee considered among other factors whether the non-audit services provided by
the firmwere compatible with its independence

The Audit/Compliance Committee discussed with the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm the overall scope and plans for its audit The Audit/Compliance Committee meets with the

independent registered public accounting firm with and without management present to discuss the results of

its examination its evaluation of the Companys internal controls and the overall quality of the Companys
financial reporting

In performing all of these functions the Audit/Compliance Committee acts only in an oversight

capacity In its oversight role the Audit/Compliance Committee relies on the work and assurances of

management which has the primary responsibility for preparation of the financial statements and reports and

of the independent registered public accounting firmthat in its report expresses an opinion on the conformity

of the Companys financial statements to generally accepted accounting principles The Audit/Compliance

Committees oversight does not provide it with an independent basis to determine that management has

maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles or policies or appropriate internal

controls and procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and

regulations Furthermore the Audit/Compliance Committees considerations and discussions with

management and the independent registered public accounting firm do not assure that the Companys
financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that the audit



of the Companys financial statements has been carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards or that the Companys independent registered public accounting firm is independent

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above the Audit/Compliance Committee

recommended to the Board of Directors and the Board has approved that the audited consolidated financial

statements be included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2012 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission The Audit/Compliance Committee also has

approved subject to stockholder ratification the selection of the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2Q13

The Audit/Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors

of Provident Community Bancshares Inc

Robert Breakfield Chairman

Russell Smart

Philip Wilkins

Auditor Fees

The following table sets forth the fees billed to the Company for the years ended December31 2012

and 2011 by Elliott Davis LLC

2012 2011

Audit fees $70000 $66975

Audit-related fees 4000 7250

Tax fees 14870 12000

All other fees

Consists of review and assistance with responses to Securities and Exchange Commission

comments and accounting questions from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

ConsistS of tax filings and tax-related compliance and other advisory seivices

Policy on Audit/Compliance Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit

Services of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit/Compliance Committee is responsible for appointing setting compensation and overseeing

the work of the independent registered public accounting firm In accordance with its charter the

Audit/Compliance Committee approves in advance all audit and permissible non-audit services to be

performed by the independent registered public accounting firm Such approval process ensures that the

external auditor does not provide any non-audit services to the Company that are prohibited by law or

regulation

In addition the Audit/Compliance Committee has established policy regarding pre-approval of all

audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm

Requests for services by the independent rgistred public accounting firm for compliance with the auditor

services policy must be specific as to the partiºular services to be provided The request may be made with

respect to either specific services or type of setvice fOr predictable or recurring services

10



During the year .dcd December 2012 all services were approved in advance by the

AuditlCompliance Committee in compliance with these procedures

Stock Ownership

The following table provides information about the shares of Company common stock that may be

considered to be owned by each director or npminee for director of the Company by the executive officers of

the Company named in the Summary Compensation Table and by all directors and executive officers of the

Company as group as of March 28 2013 person may be considered to own any shares of common stock

over which he or she has directly or indirectly sole or shared voting or investment power Unless otherwise

indicated each of the named individuals has sole voting power and sole investment power wjth respect to the

shares shown As of March 28 2013 the Company was not aware of any persons that were the beneficial

owneis of more than 5% of the Companys outstanding common stock

Number of Shares

That May Be

Acquired Within 60

Days By Exercising

________________________ _______________ Options ____________

Robert Breakfield 31927 1500 1.87%

William Graham 23895 1500 1.42

Carl Mason 14481 1500

Dwight Neese 62500 10000

Russell Smart 30000

Philip Wilkins 100822 1500

Named Executive Officers Who

Are Not Also Directors

Richard Flake 37190 9500

LudW.Vaughn 5650 9500

All directors and executive officers

as group 10 persons 245038 45500 15.82

Less than 1% of the shares outstanding

Based on 1790599 shares of Company common stock citstanding and entitled to vote as of March 28 2013

plus the number of shares that may be acquired within 60 days by each individual or group of individuals by

exercising stock options

Includes 120 shares held by Dr Wilkins spouse

Includes 1984 shares owned by the individual retirement account of Mr Flakes spouse

Name

Directors

Number of

Shares Owned

Excluding

Options

Percent of

Common Stock

Outstanding

4.03

1.68

2.59

11



Items to Be Voted ofl By Stockholders

Item Election of Directors

The Companys Board of Directors consists of six members The Board is divided into three classes

with three-year staggered terms with one-third of the directors elected each year Two directors will be

elected at the annual meeting to serve for three-year term or until their respective successors have been

elected and qualified The nominees for election this year are Robert Breakfield and Dwight Neese

each of whom is director of the Company and the Bank

The Board of Directors intends that the proxies solicited by it will be voted for the election of the

nominees named above If any nominee is unable to serve the persons named in the proxy card would vote

your shares to approve the election of any substitute proposed by the Board of Directors At this time the

Board of Directors knows of no reason why any nominee would be unable to serve

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the election of each of the nominees

Information regarding the Board of Directors nominees and the directors continuing in office is

provided below Unless otherwise stated each individUal has held his current occupation for the last five

years The age indicated in each individuals biography is as of December31 2012 The indicated period for

service as director includes service as director of the Bank

Nominees for Election as Directors

The following nominees are standing for election for terms ending in 2016

Robert BreakJIeld Mr Breakfield is self-employed attorney in Rock Hill South Carolina

and professor of business law at Winthrop University located in Rock Hill Age 65 Director since

2004

As an attorney with significant experience in business law issues Mr Breakfield provides the Board

with the legal knowledge necessary to assess issues facing the Board effectively He also is strong advocate

of the Company through his commitment to civic and community involvement

Dwight Neese Mr Neese is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the

Bank Age 62 Director since 1995

Mr Neeses extensive experience in the local banking industry and involvement in business and civic

organizationsin the communities in which the Bank serves affords the Board valuable insight regarding the

business and operation of the Bank Mr Neese also provides valuable knowledge of the Companys and the

Banks business and history

Directors Continuing in Office

The following directors have terms ending in 2014

William Graham Mr Graham is retired Before his retirement Mr Graham was the owner and

operator of Grahams Flowers in Union South Carolina Age 68 Director since 1990
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As long-standing former local business owner Mr Graham gained practical business experience

from setting outside of the financial services industry that provides an understanding of the issues facing

small business borrowers Mr Graham also provides insight to the commercial real estate market as he has

been involved in various commercial real estate projects throughout North and South Carolina

Carl Mason Mr Mason is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank

From February 2004 until September 2008 he was employed by TJ Turf to assist in the identification and

procurement of investment properties for Winter Green Holdings LLC Mr Mason was the President of

Carlisle Finishing division of Cone Mills Corporation textile finishing company before his retirement in

1999 Age 68 Director since 1989

As local realtor Mr Mason provides knowledge of the local residential real estate market Further

his experience with Carlisle Finishing provides important management level experience Mr Mason acts as

strong steward for the Bank through his community and civic endeavors

The following directors have terms ending in 2013

Russell Smart Mr Smart is vice president and secretary/treasurer of Windsor/Aughtry Co
real estate development company in Greenville South Carolina Age 61 Director since 2007

Mr Smart provides the Board with critical experience in real estate especially single family

residential development and retail and hotel development Mr Smart also provides excellent business

managerial and accounting insight gained both in his current position as chief financial officer and his

business education Mr Smarts involvement in local organizations has allowed him to develop strong ties to

the community

Philip Wilkins DMD Dr Wilkins is dentist in Winnsboro South Carolina Age 57 Director

since 1999

Dr Wilkins strong ties to the community through his dental practice and involvement in civic and

religious organizations provides the Board with valuable insight regarding the local business and consumer

environment

Item Non-Binding Resolution to Approve the Compensation of the Named Executive

Officers

The Company is required during the period in which any obligation arising from the Companys

participation in the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program remains outstanding to submit

to the stockholders non-binding vote on the compensation of the Companys named executive officers as

described in the tabular and narrative disclosure regarding named executive officer compensation in this

proxy statement

This proposal commonly known as say-on-pay proposal gives the Companys stockholders the

opportunity to endorse or not endorse the Companys executive pay program and policies through the

following resolution

RESOLVED that the stockholders approve the compensation of the named

executive officers as disclosed in the compensation tables and related material in this proxy
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statement

This vote shall not be binding on the Board of Directors and will not be construed as overruling

decision by the Board nor create or imply any additional fiduciary duty by the Board However the

Compensation Committee will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive

compensaticn arrangements

The Board of Directors believes that the compensation practices of the Company are appropriate

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends vote FORapproval of the compensation

of the named executive officers

Item Ratification of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit/Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Elliott Davis LLC to be

the Companys independent registered public accounting firm for 2013 subject to ratification by

stockholders representative of Elliott Davis LLC is expected to be present at the annual meeting to

respond to appropriate questions from stockholders and will have the opportunity to make statement should

he or she desire to do so

If the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm is not

approved by majority of the votes cast by stockholders at the annual meeting other independent public

auditors will be considered by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recommends that stockholders vote FOR the ratification of the

appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm
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Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation Table

The following information is furnished for the principal executive officer of the Company and the

next two most highly compensated executive officers of the Company as measured by total compensation for

the 2012 fiscal year

All Other

Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Total

Dwight Neese 2012 $237300 $28174 $265474

President and Chief Executive 2011 230400 23393 253793

Officer

Richard Flake 2012 147400 17409 164809

Executive Vice President and 2011 143100 25669 168769

Chief Financial Officer

LudW.Vaughn 2012 156100 18809 174909

Executive Vice President and 2011 150800 7540 158340

Chief Operating Officer

Consists of employer contributions to the Banks employee retirement plan For Mr Neese also includes total

perquisites of$ 16309 which includes ccsts for medical and executive long-term disability insurance car and gas

allowance and club dues For Mr Flake also includes total perquisites of$ 10039 which includes costs for medical

and executive long-term disability insurance and gas allowance For Mr Vaughn also includes total perquisites of

$11003 which includes costs for medical and executive long-term disability insurance and car and gas
allowance

Employment and Change In Control Agreements

Provident Community Bancshares and Provident Community Bank maintain three-year employment

agreement with each of Messrs Neese and Flake The term of the agreements are automatically extended by

one day each day so that the term of the agreements remains at three years Under the agreements Mr Neese

serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank and Mr Flake serves as

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank Among other things the

agreements provide for an annual salary participation in discretionary bonuses or other incentive

compensation provided to senior management and participation in stock benefit plans and other fringe

benefits applicable to executive personnel

Under the terms of their employment agreements each of Messrs Neese and Flake are subject to

one year non-compete if he terminates his employment for good reason as defined in the agreement or he is

terminated without cause as defined in the agreement

The Bank is party to change in control agreement with Lud Vaughn Each day the term of the

agreement is automatically extended by one day so that the term remains at two years

See Retirement Benefits and Other Potential Post-Termination Benefits for discussion of the

benefits and payments Messrs Neese Flake and Vaughn may receive under their employment or change in

control agreements upon their retirement or termination of employment
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table provides information concerning unexercised options for each named executive

officer that were outstanding as of December 31 2012

Number of Number of Securities

Securities Underlying Underlying

Unexercised Options Unexercised Options

Option Exercise Option Expiration

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date

Dwight Neese 7500 $16.75 12/29/2013

2500 17.26 03/15/2015

Richard Flake 7500 $16.75 12/29/2013

2000 17.26 03/15/2015

Lud Vaughn 7500 $16.75 12/29/2013

2000 17.26 03/15/2015

Retirement Benefits

Provident Community Bank has entered into supplemental executive retirement plans with Messrs

Neese Flake and Vaughn The supplemental executive retirement plans provide the executives with

additional compensation at retirement or upon termination of employment by reason of death or disability

Messrs Neese and Flake are entitled to an aggregate annual benefit from their plans of$ 159100 and $81400

respectively upon normal retirement at or after age 65 for period of 20 years Mr Vaughn is entitled to an

annual benefit for period of 15 years of $50000 upon normal retirement at or after age 65 reduced

benefit is payable if the executives retire before age 65 The annual benefits are payable on monthlybasis to

the executives or their designated beneficiaries

Under the 1995 Stock Option Plan outstanding stock options vest upon retirement and remain

exercisable until the earlier of one year from the date of retirement or the expiration date of the stock options

Upon retirement outstanding stock options granted pursuant to the 2001 Stock Option Plan remain

exercisable until the earlier of one year from the date of retirement or the expiration date of the stock options

Under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan stock options vest upon retirement and remain exercisable until the

earlier of two years from the date of retirement or the expiration date of the stock options

Other Potential Post-Termination Benefits

Payments Made Upon Termination for Just Cause If either Mr Neese or Mr Flake is

terminated by Provident Community Bank or Provident Community Bancshares for just cause the executive

will receive his base salary through the date of termination and may retain the rights to any vested benefits

subject to the terms of the plan or agreement under which those benefits are provided

Under the 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Stock Option Plan if an employee is terminated for

cause as defined in the plan any stock option granted under these plans and held by the terminated

employee is cancelled upon the date of termination Under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan stock options

granted under this plan and held by an employee are cancelled three months after an employee is terminated

due to cause as defined in the plan
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Payments Made Upon Termination without Just Cause or With Good Reason Messrs

Neeses and Flakes employment agreements provide that if we choose to terminate either executives

employment for reasons other than for just cause or if either executive resigns after specified circumstances

that would constitute good reason as defined in the employment agreement the executive will be entitled to

receive an amount equal to his base salaty plus annual cash bonuses for each year remaining under the term

of his agreement determined by reference to the highest annual bonus received by the executive in the three

years preceding his termination of employment In addition each executive would be entitled to lump sum

payment equal to the value of the benefits he would have received during the three years following his

termination of employment The employment agreements also provide Messrs Neese and Flake with

continued health life or disability insurance coverage for thirty-six months following their termination of

employment

Payments Made Upon Disability Under their employment agreements if either Mr Neese or

Mr Flake becomes disabled and his employment is terminated the executive will be entitled to disability pay

equal to 75% of his monthly base salary in effect at the date of termination He would continue to receive

disability payments until the earlier of his death attainment of age 65 or three years after his date

of termination All disability payments would be reduced by the amount of any disability benefits payable

under our disability plans In addition the executive and his dependents would continue to be covered to the

greatest extent possible under all benefit plans in which he participated before his disability as if he were

actively employed by us

Under their supplemental executive retirement plans if Messrs Neese Flake or Vaughn terminates

employment before age 65 as result of disability the Bank will distribute an actuarially determined

amount based upon the date of termination and remaining years of service before age 65 Under this plan the

Bank is obligated to distribute this amount on monthly basis for 20 years to Messrs Neese and Flake and 15

years to Mr Vaughn or their designated beneficiaries This distribution cannot exceed the benefits that would

have been paid to the executive upon his retirement

Upon termination due to disability outstanding stock options granted pursuant to our 1995 Stock

Option Plan vest and remain exercisable until the earlier of one year from the date of termination due to

disability or the expiration date of the stock options Under our 2001 Stock Option Plan outstanding stock

options vest upon termination due to disability and remain exercisable until the earlier of two years one year

in the case of incentive stock options from the date of termination or the expiration date of the stock options

Under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan outstanding stock options vest upon termination due to disability and

remain exercisable until the date defined in the stock option award or in the case of incentive stock options

the earlier of one year from the date of termination or the expiration date of the stock options

Payments Made Upon Death Under their employment agreements Mr Neeses and Mr Flakes

estate are entitled to receive the compensation due to the executive through the end of the month in which his

death occurs

Under their supplemental executive retirement plans if Messrs Neese or Flake dies while in active

service with the Bank their designated beneficiaries are entitled to an annual benefit of $159100 and

$81400 respectively for period of 20 years IfMr Vaughn dies while in active service with the Bank his

designated beneficiaries are entitled to an annual benefit of $50000 for period of 15 years If the executive

dies after payments under the agreement have commenced their designated beneficiary will be entitled to the

remaining payments

Upon termination due to death outstanding stock options granted pursuant to our 1995 Stock Option

Plan vest and remain exercisable until the earlier of one year from the date of termination due to death or the
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expiration date of the stock options Under our 2001 Stock Option Plan outstanding stock options vest upon

death and remain exercisable until the earlier of two years one year in the case of incentive stock options

from the date of termination due to death or the expiration date of the stock options Under our 2006 Equity

Incentive Plan outstanding stock options vest upon termination due to death and remain exercisable until the

date defined in the stock option award or in the case of incentive stock options the earlier of one year from

the date of termination or the expiration date of the stock options

Payments Made Upon Change in Control Messrs Neeses and Flakes emplQyment

agreements provide that if during the two-year period following change in control as defined in the

agreementthe executives employment isterminated without just cause or the executive voluntary terminates

his employment for good reason the executive will be entitled to severance payment equal to three times the

sum of his highest annual rate of base salary over the twelve months preceding the change in control and the

highest cash bonus paid to or accrued on behalf of the executive over the three most recent fiscal Tears In

addition the executive also will be entitled to receive lump-sum payment equal to the contributions he

would have received under our retirement programs for period of thirty-six months as well as continued

participation in any Company health life or disability insurance at the most favorable seniorexecutiverate for

the remaining term of his employment agreemeiit Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code provides that

payments related to change in control that equal or exceed three times the individuals base amount

defined as average annual taxablecompensation over the five preceding calendar years constitute excess

parachute payments Individuals who receive excess parachute payments are subject to 20% excise taxon

the amount that exceeds the base amount and the employer may not deduct such amounts Messrs Neeses

and Flakes employment agreements provide that if the total value of the benefits provided and payments

made to the executive in ºonnection with change in control either under his employment agreement alone or

together with other payments and benefits that he has the right to receive from the Company and the Bank

exceed three times his base amount 280G Limit the executives severance payment will be reduced or

revised so that the aggigate payments do not exceed his 280G Limit

Mr Vaughns agreement provides that if following change in control as defined in the agreement

the executives employment is terminated without cause the executive will be entitled to severance payment

equal to two times his base salary in effect on the effective date of change in control plus coverage under

the Banks life medical and dental plans for twenty-four months The change in control agreement provides

that the total value of the benefits provided and payments made to Mr Vaughn may not exceed his 280G

Limit and that to ensure such result the severance payment would be reduced

Under their supplemental executive retirement plans upon change in control Messrs NØse Flake

and Vaughn become entitled to their normal retirement benefit The annual benefits are payable on monthly

basis to the executives or their designated beneficiaries beginning on the month following the executive

becoming 65 years old

In the event of change in control of Provident Community Bancshares or Provident Community

Bank outstanding stock options granted pursuant to our 1995 Stock Option Plan or 2001 Stock Option Plan

automatically vest and unless otherwise provided for in connection with such change in control the option

holder will receive in cash an amount equal to the difference between the fair market price of the securities

and the exercise price of the option for each option held Under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan change in

control accelerates the vesting of all outstanding stock options and if the option holder is terminated other

than for cause within 12 months of thØ change in control the options will remain exercisable iintil the

expiration date of the stock options The value of the accelerated options count towards Messrs Neeses

Flakes and Vaughns 280G Limit
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Other Information Relating to Directors and Executive Officers

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Companys executive officers and

directors and persons who own more than 10% of any registered class of the Companys equity securities to

file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission Executive

officers directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by regulation to furnish the Company with

copies of all Section 16a reports they file

Based solely on its review of the copies of the reports it has received and written representations

provided to the Company from the individuals required to file the reports the Company believes that each of

the Companys executive officers and directors has complied with applicable reporting requirements for

transactions in Company common stock during the year ended December 31 2012

Policies and Procedures for Approval of Related Person Transactions

We maintain Policy and Procedures Governing Related Person Transactions which is written

policy
and set of procedures for the review and approval or ratification of transactions involving related

persons Under the policy related persons consist of directors director nominees executive officers persons

or entities known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of any outstanding class of the

voting securities of the Company or immediate family members or certain affiliated entities of any of the

foregoing persons

Transactions covered by the policy consist of any financial transaction arrangement or relationship or

series of similar transactions arrangements or relationships in which

the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to exceed $50000 in any calendar

year

the Company is will or may be expected to be participant and

any related person has or will have direct or indirect material interest

The policy excludes certain transactions including

any compensation paid to an executive officer of the Company if the Compensation

Committee of the board approved or recommended that the board approve such

compensation

any compensation paid to director of the Company if the board or an authorized committee

of the board approved such compensation and

any transaction with related person involving consumer and investor financial products and

services provided in the ordinary course of the Companys business and on substantially the

same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable services provided to unrelated

third parties or to the Companys employees on broad basis and in the case of loans in

compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Related person transactions will be approved or ratified by the Audit/Compliance Committee In

determining whether to approve or ratify related person transaction the Audit/Compliance Committee will

consider all relevant factors including
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whether the terms of the proposed transaction are at least as favorable to the Company as

those that might be achieved with an unaffihiated third party

the size of the transaction and the amount of consideration payable to the related person

the nature of the interest of the related person

whether the transaction may involve conflict of interest and

whether the transaction involves the provision of goods and services to the Company that

are available from unaffiliated third parties

member of the Audit/Compliance Committee who has an interest in the transaction will abstain

from voting on approval of the transaction but may if so requested by the chair of the Audit/Compliance

Committee participate in some or all of the discussion

Transactions with Related Persons

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by the Company to its executive officers

and directors However the Sarbanes-Oxley Act contains specific exemption from such prohibition for

loans by the Bank to its executive officers and directors in compliance with federal banking regulations

Federal regulations require that all loans or extensions of credit to executive officers and directors of insured

financial institutions must be made on substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as

those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and must not involve more than

the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features The Bank is therefore prohibited from

making any new loans or extensions of credit to executive officers and directors at different rates or terms

than those offered to the general public Notwithstanding this rule federal regulations permit the Bank to

make loans to executive officers and directors at reduced interest rates if the loan is made under benefit

program generally available to all other employees and does not give preference to any executive officer or

director over any other employee although the Bank does not currently have such program in place

Pursuant to the Companys Audit/Compliance Committee Charter the Audit/Compliance Committee

periodically reviews no less frequently than quarterly summary of the Companys transactions with

directors and executive officers of the Company and with firms that employ directors as well as any other

related person transactions to recommend to the disinterested members of the Board of Directors that the

transactions are fair reasonable and within Company policy and should be ratified and approved Also in

accordance with banking regulations the Board of Directors reviews all loans made to director or executive

officer in an amount that when aggregated with the amount of all other loans to such person and his or her

related interests exceed the greater of $25000 or 5% of the Companys capital and surplus up to maximum

of $500000 and such loan must be approved in advance by majority of the disinterested members of the

Board of Directors Additionally pursuant to the Companys Code of Ethics and Business Conduct all

executive officers and directors of the Company must disclose any existing or emerging conflicts of interest to

the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company Such potential conflicts of interest include but

are not limited to the Company conducting business with or competing against an organization in which

family member of an executive officer or director has an ownership or employment interest or the

ownership of more than 1% of the outstanding securities or 5% of total assets of any business entity that does

business with or is in competition with the Company
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Submission of Stockholder Proposalsand Nominations

Proposals that stockholders seek to have included in the proxy statement for the Companys next

annual meeting must be received by the Company no later than December 12 2013 However if the annual

meeting is held more than 30 calendar days from May 15 2014 stockholder proposal must be received by

reasonable time before the Company begins to print and mail its proxy solicitation materials Any such

proposals will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange

Commission

The Companys Certificate of Incorporation provides that for stockholder to make nominations for

the election of directors or proposals for business to be brought before the annual meeting stockholder must

deliver notice of such nominations and/or proposals to the Secretary not less than 30 nor more than 60 days

before the date of the annual meeting provided that if less than 31 days notice of the annual meeting is given

to stockholders such notice must be delivered not later than the close of the tenth day following the day on

which notice of the annual meeting was mailed to stockholders copy of the Certificate of Incorporation

may be obtained from the Company

Stockholder Communications

The Company encourages stockholder communications to the Board of Directors and/or individual

directors Stockholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors or an individual director

should send their communications to the care of Wanda Wells Corporate Secretary Provident Community

Bancshares Inc 2700 Celanese Road Rock Hill South Carolina 29732 Communications regarding

financial or accounting policies should be sent to the attention of the Chairperson of the Audit/Compliance

Committee All other communications should be sent to the attention of the Chairperson of the Governance

Committee

Miscellaneous

The Company will pay the cost of this proxy solicitation The Company will reimburse brokerage

firms and other custodians nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending

proxy materials to the beneficial owners of Company common stock In addition to soliciting proxies by

mail directors officers and regular employees of the Company may solicit proxies personally or by

telephone None of these persons will receive additional compensation for these activities

The Companys Annual Report to Stockholders has been mailed to all persons who were stockholders

as of the close of business on March 28 2013 Any stockholder who has not received copy of the Annual

Report may obtain copy by writing to the Secretary of the Company The Annual Report is not to be treated

as part of the proxy solicitation material or as having been incorporated herein by reference

If you and others who share your address own your shares in street name your broker or other

holder of record may be sending only one annual report and proxy statement to your address This practice

known as householding is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs However if stockholder

residing at such an address wishes to receive separate
annual report or proxy statement in the future he or

she should contact the broker or other holder of record If you own your shares in street name and are

receiving multiple copies of our annual report and proxy statement you can request householding by

contacting your broker or other holder of record

21



Page Intentionally Left Blank



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year
ended December 31 2012

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from
__________

to
__________

Commission File Number 1-5735

Provident Community Bancshares Inc

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation

or organization

2700 Celanese Road Rock Hill South Carolina 29732

Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including area code 803 325-9400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Exchange Act

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Exchange Act

Common stock par value $0.01 per share Name of each exchange on which registered

Title of Class The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and has been

subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days

YesX No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every
Interactive

Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter

period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes .X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not be contained to

the best of the registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or other information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form

10-K or any amendments to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting

company See the definitions of accelerated filer large accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange

Act

Check one Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the voting stock was last

sold on June 30 2012 which is the last day of the registrants second fiscal quarter was approximately $247290 1545561 shares at $0.16

per share Solely for this calculation it is assumed that directors and executive officers are affiliates of the registrant

As of March 2013 there were 1790599 shares of the registrants common stock issued and outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders Part III



INDEX

Part

Page

Item Business

Item Risk Factors 23

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments 30

Item r6pcrties 30

Item Qegl Proceedings 30

Item 4.efli$Mine tyDisclosures 30

Part II

.1

Itep Market tr
Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Mailers and Issuer

Purchaqsc.of Equity Securities 30

Item O.k4 jsJecte4nancial Data 32

Item \MMºments Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operation 33

Item 7A \btjaætitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 43

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 43

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 89

Item 9A Controls and Procedures 89

Item 9B Other Information 90

Part III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 90

Item 11 Executive Compensation 91

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Stockholder Matters 91

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 92

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services 92

Part IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 93

SIGNATURES



PART

Item Business

General

Provident Community Bancshares Inc Provident Community Bancshares is the bank holding company

for Provident Community Bank N.A the Bank Provident Community Bancshares has no material assets or

liabilities other than its investment in the Bank Provident Community Bancshares business activity primarily

consists of directing the activities of the Bank Accordingly the information set forth in this report including

financial statements and related data relates primarily to the Bank Provident Community Bancshares and the Bank

are collectively referred to as the Corporation herein

The Banks operations are conducted through its main office in Rock Hill South Carolina and seven full-

service banking centers all of which are located in the upstate area of South Carolina The Bank is regulated by the

Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CCis member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

the FHLB and its deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the

FDIC Provident Community Bancshares is subject to regulation by the Federal Reserve Board the FRB

The business of the Bank primarily consists of attracting deposits from the general public and originating

loans to consumers and businesses The Bank also maintains portfolio of investment securities The principal

sources of funds for the Banks lending activities include deposits received from the general public interest and

principal repayments on loans and to lesser extent borrowings from the FHLB and other parties The Banks

primary source of income is interest earned on loans and investments The Banks principal expense
is interest paid

on deposit accounts and borrowings and expenses incurred in operating the Bank

On December 21 2010 the Bank entered into stipulation and consent to the issuance of consent order

with the 0CC The Order is formalenfOrcement action pursuant to which the Bank has agreed to address specific

areas through the adoption and implementation of procedures plans and policies designed to enhance the safety and

soundness of the Bank These affirmative actions include management assessment implementation of plans to

address capital our interest in problem assets asset concentration allowance for loan losses loan portfolio

management strategic planning and liquidity and funds management In addition the Bank is required to maintain

specified capital levels notif the Comptroller of director and management changes and obtain prior approval of

dividend payments

Forward-Looking Statement

This annual report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal

securities laws These forward-looking statements are generally identified by use of the words believe expect

intend anticipate estimate project or similar expressions These forward-looking statements include but

are not limited to estimates and expectations of future performance with respect to the financial condition and

results of operations of the Corporation and other factors These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of

future performance and are subject to various factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these

forward-looking statements These factors include but are not limited to changes in general economic and market

conditions and the legal and regulatory environment in which the Corporation operates the development of an

interest rate environment that adversely affects the Corporations interest rate spread or other income anticipated

from the Corporations operations changes in consumer spending borrowing and savings habits adverse changes

in the securities markets changes in accounting policies and practices and increased competitive pressures among

financial services companies These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking

statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements The Corporation does not undertakeand

specifically disclaims any obligationto publicly release the results of any revisions that may be made to any

forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the

occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events



Competition

The Bank faces competition in both the attraction of deposit accounts and in the origination of mortgage

commercial and consumer loans Its most direct competition for savings deposits historically has been derived from

other commercial banks and thrift institutions located in and around Union Laurens Fairfield Greenville and York

Counties South Carolina As of June 30 2012 according to information presented on the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporations website the Bank held 40.9% of the deposits in Union County which was the second

largest share of deposits out of five financial institutions in the county Additionally the Bank held 30.7% of the

deposits in Fairfield County which was the second largest out of three financial institutions in the county 6.6% of

the deposits in Laurens County which was the sixth largest share of deposits out of nine financial institutions in the

county and 2.7% of the deposits in York County which was the ninth largest out of 17 financial institutions in that

county The Bank held 0.2% of the deposits in Greenville County which was 30th out of 32 financial institutions in

the county The Bank competes with super-regional banks such as Wells Fargo Bank of America BBT
SunTrust and TD Bank and large regional banks such as First-Citizens Bank and Trust Company of South

Carolina These competitors have substantially greater resources and lending limits than does the Bank and offer

services that th Bank does not provide The Bank faces additional significant competition for investor funds from

money market instruments and mutual funds It competes for savings by offering depositors variety of savings

accounts convenient office locations and other services

The Bank competes for loans principally through the interest rates and loan fees it charges and the

efficiency and quality of the services it provides borrowers real estate brokers and home builders The Banks

competition for real estate loans comes principally from other commercial banks thrift institutions and mortgage

banking companies

Competition has increased and is likely to continue to increase as result of legislative regulatory and

technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry Technological

advances for example have lowered barriers to market entry allowed banks to expand their geographic reach by

providing services over the Internet and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and

services that traditionally have been provided by banks The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act which permits affiliation

among banks securities firms and insurance companies also has changed and may continue to change the

competitive environment in which the Bank conducts business

Lending Activities

GeneraL Set forth below is selected data relating to the composition of the Banks loan portfolio on the

dates indicated dollars in thousands

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Real estate loans

Residential 9705 7.86% 12030 7.71% 14166 7.12% 16877 6.74% 20235 7.26%

Commercial 75210 60.94 97547 62.52 124190 62.44 151184 60.37 172197 61.79

Construction loans 59 0.05 308 0.20 665 0.34 2.923 _jfl 5.867 _jJ
Totalrealestateloans 84974 68.85 109885 70.43 139021 69.90 170984 68.28 198299 71.16

Consumer and installment

loans 33798 27.39 37829 24.25 45269 22.76 52287 20.88 57002 20.45

Commercial non-real estate 9.024 _23J 12.939 22.231 11.17 33.242 J121 32.404 jj
Total loans 127.796 103.55 160.653 102.97 206.521 103.83 256.513 102.43 287.705 103.24

Less

Undisbursed loans in

process -- 143 0.07 320 0.13 1926 0.69
Loan discount

unamortized 181 0.15 231 0.14 269 0.13 309 0.12 383 0.14
Allowance for loan

losses 4367 3.54 4549 2.92 7379 3.71 5579 2.23 6778 2.43
Deferred loan fees 166 0.14 146 0.09 0.08 115 47 0.02

Net loans receivable 1QQAQ% $I5119 J.00.ftQ% 198896 1DO..0% 100.00% 100.00%



The following table sets forth at December 31 2012 certain information regarding the dollar amount of

principal repayments for loans becoming due during the periods indicated in thousands Demand loans loans

having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity and overdrafts are reported as due in one year or

less

Due

After

Due lYear

Within Through Due After

One Year Years Years Total

Real estate loans

Residential loans 431 1271 8003 9705

Commercial loans 25437 31350 18423 75210

Construction loans 59 59

Consumer and installment loans 7003 12489 14306 33798

Commercial non-real estate loans 4.226 4554 244 9024

Total S37156 S40.976 127796

Includes construction/permanent loans

The actual average life of mortgage loans is substantially less than their contractual term because of loan

repayments
and because of enforcement of due-on-sale clauses that give the Bank the right to declare loan

immediately due and payable if among other things the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and

the loan is not repaid The average life of mortgage loans tends to increase however when current mortgage loan

rates substantially exceed rates on existing mortgage loans

The following table sets forth at December 31 2012 the dollar amount of loans due after December 31

2013 which have fixed rates of interest and which have adjustable rates of interest in thousands

Fixed Adjustable Total

Real estate loans

Residential loans 5940 3334 9274

Commercial loans 39595 10178 49773

Consumer and installment loans 12913 13882 26795

Commercial non-real estate loans 3.617 1.181 4.798

Total 590640

Real Estate Loans The Bank originates residential mortgage loans to enable borrowers to purchase

existing single family homes or to construct new homes At December 31 2012 $9.7 million or 7.9% of the Banks

net loan portfolio consisted of loans secured by residential real estate net of undisbursed principal excluding

construction loans

Regulations limit the amount that national banks may lend in relationship to the appraised value of the real

estate securing the loan as determined by an appraisal at the time of loan origination Federal banking regulations

permit maximum loai-to-value ratio of 100% for one-to four-family dwellings and 85% for all other real estate

loans The Banks lending policies however limit the maximum loan-to-value ratio on one-to four-family real

estate mortgage loans to 80% of the lesser of the appraised value or the purchase price Any single-family loan

made in excess of an 80% loan-to-value ratio and any commercial real estate loan in excess of 75% loan-to-value

ratio is required to have private mortgage insurance or additional collateral In the past the Bank has originated

some commercial real estate loans in excess of 75% loan-to-value ratio without private mortgage insurance or

additional collateral

The loan-to-value ratio maturity and other provisions of the loans made by the Bank generally have

reflected policy of making less than the maximum loan permissible under applicable regulations market

conditions and underwriting standards established by the Bank Mortgage loans made by the Bank generally are



long-term loans 15-30 years amortized on monthly basis with principal and interest due each month In the

Banks experience real estate loans remain outstanding for significantly shorter periods than their contractual terms

Borrowers may refinance or prepay loans at their option with no prepayment penalty

The Bank offers full complement of mortgage lending products with both fixed and adjustable rates Due

to the nature of the Banks marketplace only small percentage of residential loans are adjustable-rate mortgage

loans ARMs The Bank offers ARMstied to U.S Treasury Bills with maximum interest rate adjustment of 2%

annually and 6% over the life of the loan At December 31 2012 the Bank had approximately $3.4 million of

ARMs or 2.7% of the Banks total loans receivable At December 31 2012 $6.3 million or 5.1% of the Banks
loan portfolio consisted of long-term fixed-rate residential real estate loans

Net interest income depends to large extent on how successful the Bank is in matching interest-earning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities The Corporation has taken steps to reduce its exposure to rising interest rates

For discussion of these steps see Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

Commercial real estate loans constituted approximately $75.2 million or 60.9% of the Banks net loan

portfolio at December 31 2012 Commercial real estate loans consist of permanent loans secured by multi-family

loans generally apartment houses as well as commercial and industrial properties including office buildings

warehouses shopping centers hotels motels and other special purpose properties Commercial real estate loans are

originated and purchased for inclusion in the Banks portfolio These loans generally have 20 to 30-year

amortization schedules and are callable or have balloon payments after five
years Typically the loan documents

provide for adjustment of the interest rate every one to three years Fixed-rate loans secured by multi-family

residential and commercial properties have terms ranging from 20 to 25 years

Loans secured by multi-family and commercial real estate properties may involve greater risk than single-

family residential loans Such loans generally are substantially larger than single-family residential loans Further

the payment experience on loans secured by commercial properties typically depends on the successful operation of

the properties and thus may be subject to greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market or in the

economy generally Our largest commercial real estate loan relationship was $4.1 million loan secured by

commercial real estate including land and buildings located in Rock Hill South Carolina This loan was performing

according to its original terms at December 31 2012

Construction Loans The Bank engages in construction lending that primarily is secured by single family

residential real estate and to much lesser extent commercial real estate The Bank grants construction loans to

individuals with takeout for permanent financing from one of our correspondent mortgage lenders or another

financial institution and to approved builders on both presold and unsold properties

Construction loans to individuals are originated for term of one year or less or are originated to convert to

permanent loans at the end of the construction period Construction loans are originated to builders for term not to

exceed 12 months Generally draw inspections are handled by the appraiser who initially appraised the property

however in some instances the draw inspections are performed by new appraisal firm

Construction financing affords the Bank the opportunity to achieve higher interest rates and fees with

shorter terms to maturity than do single-family permanent mortgage loans However construction loans generally

are considered to involve higher degree of risk than single-family permanent mortgage lending due to the

concentration of principal among relatively few borrowers and development projects the increased difficulty at

the time the loan is made of estimating the building costs and the selling price of the property to be built the

increased difficulty and costs of monitoring the loan the higher degree of sensitivity to increases in market rates

of interest and the increased difficulty of working out loan problems

At December 31 2012 the Bank had one single family construction loan outstanding for $59000



Consumer Loans The Banks consumer loan portfolio primarily consists of automobile loans on new and

used vehicles mobile home loans boat loans second mortgage loans loans secured by savings accounts and

unsecured loans The Bank makes consumer loans to serve the needs of its customers and as way to improve the

interest-rate sensitivity of the Banks loan portfolio

Consumer loans tend to bear higher rates of interest and have shorter terms to maturity than residential

mortgage loans However consumer loans historically have tended to have higher rate of default than residential

mortgage loans Additionally consumer loans entail greater risk than do residential mortgage loans particularly in

the case of loans that are unsecured or secured by rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles In these cases

any repossessed collateral for defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the

outstanding loan balance as result of the greater likelihood of damage loss or depreciation The remaining

deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower beyond obtaining

deficiency judgment In addition consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrowers continuing financial

stability and thus are more likely to be affected adversely by job loss divorce illness or personal bankruptcy

Commercial Loans Commercial business loans are made primarily in our market area to small businesses

through our branch network Each county location of the branch network has an experienced commercial lender that

is responsible for the generation of this product In selective cases we will enter into loan participations within our

market area to purchase portion of commercial loan that meets the Banks underwriting criteria We offer

secured commercial loans with maturities of up to 20 years The term for repayment will normally be limited to the

lesser of the expected useful life of the asset being financed or fixed amount of time generally less than seven

years These loans have adjustable rates of interest indexed to the prime rate as reported in The Wall Street Journal

When making commercial loans we consider the financial statements of the borrower the borrowers payment

history of both corporate and personal debt the debt service capabilities of the borrower the projected cash flows of

the business the viability of the industry in which the customer operates and the value of the collateral

commercial loan generally is secured by variety of collateral primarily accounts receivable inventory and

equipment and generally is supported by personal guarantees Depending on the collateral used to secure the loans

commercial loans are made in amounts of up to 80% of the value of the collateral securing the loan Our largest

commercial loan relationship was $1.3 million loan secured by medical assets located in Matthews North

Carolina This loan was performing according to its original terms at December 31 2012

Unlike residential mortgage loans which are generally made on the basis of the borrowers ability to make

repayment from his or her employment or other income and which are secured by real property whose value tends

to be more easily ascertainable commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis of the

borrowers ability to make repayment from the cash flows of the borrowers business As result the availability of

funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantially on the success of the business itself Further

any collateral securing such loans may depreciate over time may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value

Loan Solicitation and Processing Loan originations come from walk-in customers sales and solicitations

from loan officers and loan participations The Bank utilizes various officers and loan committees for the approval

of real estate loans The Board of Directors has appointed Board Loan Committee comprised of two members

elected annually from the Board of Directors and four senior executive officers of the Bank quorum of three

members including at least one Board member is required for any action This Committee has the authority to

approve all secured and unsecured loan requests with the exception of single loan request exceeding $3.0 million

which requires approval of the entire Board of Directors

Loan Originations Purchases and Sales During 2001 we phased out broker loan purchases and

originations and reduced our mortgage lending operations to provide an increased capital allocation for consumer

and commercial lending Consequently the Bank did not securitize any loans in either the 2012 or 2011 fiscal years

The Bank does not have any current plans to sell large volume of loans other than fixed-rate mortgage loans it

originates through its retail branch network The Bank periodically purchases participation interests in loans

originated by other institutions However the Bank did not purchase any participation interests in 2012 These

participation interests are primarily on commercial properties and carry either fixed or adjustable interest rate The

Bank performs its own underwriting analysis on each of its participation interests before purchasing such loans and

therefore believes there is no greater risk of default on these obligations However in purchased participation



loan the Bank does not service the loan and thus is subject to the policies and practices of the lead lender with

regard to monitoring delinquencies pursuing collections and instituting foreclosure proceedings The Bank is

permitted to review all of the documentation relating to any loan in which the Bank participates including any

annual financial statements provided by borrower Additionally the Bank receives periodic updates on the loan

from the lead lender

The following table sets forth the Banks loan origination activity for the periods indicated in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Loans originated

Real estate loans

Residential loans 158 -- 150

Commercial loans Li
Total mortgage loans originated

Consumer and installment loans 3896 1634 292
Commercial non-real estate loans 7f4

Total loans originated 58.574 54212 57.803

Asset Quality We maintain loan quality monitoring policies and systems that require detailed monthly apd

quarterly analyses of delinquencies non-performing loans real estate owned and other repossessed assets Reports

of such loans and assets by various categories are reviewed by management and the Board of Directors The

majority of our loans are originated in upstate South Carolina

We closely monitor trends in problem assets which include non-accrual loans renegotiated loans and real

estate and other assets acquired in the settlement of loans Renegotiated loans or troubled debt restructurings are

those loans where the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and we have agreed
to concessions of tb terms

such as changes in the interest rate charged and/or other concessions

Problem Assets The Bank determines loan to be delinquent when payments have not been made

according to contractual terms typically evidenced by nonpayment of monthly installment by the due date The

accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent Subsequent payments are

either applied to the outstanding principal balance or recorded as interest income depending on thç assessment of

the ultimate collectability of the loan See Notes and of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

loan is impaired when it probable based on current information the Bank will be unable to collect all

contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement Management

has determined that generally failure to make payment within 90-d4y period constitutes minimum delay or

shortfall and generally does not constitute an impaired loan However management reviews each past due loan on

loan-by-loan basis and may determine loan to be impaired before the loan becoming over 90 days past due

depending upon the circumstances of that particular loan loan is classified as non-accrual at the time

management believes that the collection of interest is improbable generally when loan becomes 90 days past due

The Banks policy for charge-off of impaired loans is on loan-by-loan basis At the time management believes the

collection of interest and principal is remote the loan is charged off It is our policy to evaluate impaired loans

based on the fair value of the collateral Interest income from impaired loans is recorded using the cash method

Other real estate owned OREO is acquired as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure

When such property is acquired it is recorded at the lower of the unpaid principal balance of the related loan or its

fair market value less selling costs Any subsequent write-down of the property is charged to income

The Bank adjusts balances on real estate acquired in settlement of loans to the lower of cost or market

based on appraised value when the property
is received in settlement These values reflect current market conditions

and sales experience See Notes and 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



The following table sets forth information with respect to the Banks non-performing assets for the

periods indicated dollars in thousands

At December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Non-accrual loans

Real estate 970 1220 1534 649 389

Commercial 9569 12677 15353 19045 13345

Consumer 2.635 2.909 1.939 1175 2267

Total $13174 $16806 18826 20869 16001

Accruing loans which are contractually

past due 90 days or more 442 125

Accruing troubled debt restructurings 4187 8486 5667 3320 316

Other real estate owned net 9.174 8398 10.618 5.917 667

Total non-performing assets $26535 $34132 $35236 $30106 $16984

Percentage of non-performing loans to loans

receivable net iQ7% 1Q.ll%

Percentage of non-performing assets to total

assets 9.06% 659% 191%
Allowance for loan losses as percent of non-

performing loans 2M5% 1L68% 29.92% 21%

Non-performing assets decreased $7.6 million from $34.1 million at December 31 2011 to $26.5 million at

December 31 2012 Slow housing Øonditions have affected these borrowers ability to sell the completed projects in

timely manner These loans are primarily supported by commercial real estate and are currently being carried at

managements best estimate of net realizable value although no assurance can be given that no further losses will

be incurred on these loans until the collateral has been acquired and liquidated or other arrangements can be made

In addition to non-accrual loans of $13.2 million at December 31 2012 management has identified

approximately $10.1 million in potential problem loans that could move to non-accrual status in future periods

Potential problem loans are loans where known information about possible credit problems of the borrowers causes

management to have concerns as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with the present repayment terms and

may result in disclosure of such loans as non-accrual in future periods Management is actively working plan of

action to mitigate any loss exposure and will continue to monitor their respective cash flow positions

According to GAAP we are required to account for certain loan modifications or restructuring as

troubled debt restructuring TDR In general the modification or restructuring of debt is considered TDR if

we for economic or legal reasons related to borrowers financial difficulties grant concession to the borrower

that we would not otherwise consider Troubled debt restructurings decreased $4.3 million from $8.5 million at

December 31 2011 to $4.2 million at December 31 2012 The majority of these TDRs relate to commercial real

estate relationships that have been affected by the downturn in the commercial real estate market

OREO acquired through foreclosure increased $776000 to $9.2 million at December 31 2012 from $8.4

million at December 31 2011 primarily as result of the transfer of two bank properties totaling $1.3 million Bank

properties that are no longer in use and are for sale are required to be removed from fixed assets and transferred to

OREO The properties are being actively marketed and maintained with the primary objective of liquidating the

collateral at value that provides for recovery of as much of the unpaid balance as possible in reasonable period of

time The carrying value of these assets are believed to be representative of their fair market value although there

can be no assurance that the ultimate proceeds from the sale of these assets will be equal to or greater than the

carrying values

Interest income that would have been recorded for the year ended December 31 2012 had non-accruing

loans been current in accordance with their original terms amounted to approximately $950000



Other than disclosed in the table and narrative above there are no other loans at December 31 2012 that

management has serious doubts about the ability of borrowers to comply with present
loan payment terms

Allowance for Loan Losses In originating loans we recognize that losses will be experienced and that the

risk of loss will
vary with among other things the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower

over the term of the loan general economic conditions and in the case of secured loan the quality of the security

for the loan To cover losses inherent in the portfolio of performing loans the Bank maintains an allowance for

loan losses Managements periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on number of factors

including managements evaluation of the collectability of the loan portfolio the composition and size of the

portfolio credit concentrations trends in historical loss experience and economic conditions Upon completion of

the qualitative adjustments the allowance is allocated to the components of the portfolio based on the adjusted

factors The amount of the allowance is based on the estimated value of the collateral securing the loan and other

analysis pertinent to each situation

The unallocated component of the allowance exists to mitigate the imprecision inherent in managements

estimates of expected credit losses and includes its determination of the amounts necessary
for concentrations

economic uncertainties and other subjective factors that may not have been fully considered in the allocated

allowance The relationship of the unallocated component to the total allowance may fluctuate from period to

period As of December 31 2012 managenlent has allocated the allowance to specific loan categories and as

result there was not an unallocated component of the allowance

The Bank increases its allowance for loan losses by charging provisions for loan losses against income

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an amount management considers adequate to absorb losses inherent

in the portfolio Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such

determinations future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary
and results of operations could

be affected significantly and adversely if.circumstances substantially differ from the assumptions used in making the

determinations

The provision for loan loss calculation includes segmentation of loan categories subdivided by residential

mortgage commercial real estate commercial non-real estate and consumer loans Each category is rated for all

loans including performing groups The weights assigned to each performing group are developed from previous

loan loss experience and as the loss experience changes the category weight is adjusted accordingly In addition as

the amount of loans in each category increases and decreases the provision for loan loss calculation adjusts

accordingly

While we believe that we have established the existing allowance for loan losses in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles there can be no assurance that regulators in reviewing our loan portfolio

will not request the Bank to increase significantly the allowance for loan losses In addition because future events

affecting borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty there can be no assurance that the existing

allowance for loan losses is adequate or that substantial increase will not be necessary should the quality of any

loans deteriorate as result of the factors discussed above Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses

may affect adversely the Corporations financial condition and results of operations See Notes and of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning the provision and allowance for loan losses



The following table sets forth an analysis of the Banks allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated

dollars in thousands

For the Year Ended

December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year _____ $7379 $5.579 $6778 $3344

Loans charged off

Real estate 695 123 28
Commercial 457 3755 7020 8460 783
Consumer L.7 1533 65

Total charge-offs 1.041 4.100 8.705 10.116 876
Recoveries

Real estate 40 69 16 23

Commercial 146 211 1320 203 45

Consumer 29 26 32

Total recoveries 155 280 1415 222 100

Net charge-offs 3.820 7290 9894 776
Provision for loan losses 704 990 9.090 8695

Balance at end of year $4367 S4.549 $7.379 $5579 $6.778

Balance as percent of loans 3A2% 3.58%

Ratio of net charge-offs to average gross

loans outstanding during the period fl.2% 34%

See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for

discussion of the factors responsible for changes in the provision for loan losses between the periods

The Bank experienced bad debt charge-offs net of recoveries of approximately $886000 for 2012

compared to $3.8 million for 2011 The decrease in bad debt charge-offs from the previous year
relates primarily to

lower write-downs required in the disposition of commercial real estate loans

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the

percentage of loans in each category to total loans for the periods indicated Management believes that the

allowance can be allocated by category only on an approximate basis The allocation of the allowance to each

category is not necessarily indicative of further losses and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses

in any category dollars in thousands

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans

in Each in Each in Each in Each in Each

Category to Category to Category to Category to Category to

Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans

Realestate $2026 46.39% $2178 47.88% $4878 66.11% $2842 50.95% $3068 47.51%

Commercial 1040 23.81 1887 41.48 2166 29.35 1599 28.66 2110 32.68

Consumer 1301 29.80 484 10.64 335 4.54 1138 20.39 1280 19.81

Unallocated -- -- -- -- -- N/A -- N/A 320 N/A

Total allowance

for loan losses $4361 100.00% $4549 100.00% 737 100.00% $5519 100.00% $6271 100.Q_0%

Asset Classfication The 0CC requires national banks to classif problem assets Problem assets are

classified as substandard or impaired depending on the
presence

of certain characteristics Assets that currently

do not expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in the above-mentioned categories

but
possess

weaknesses are designated special mention An asset is considered substandard if it is inadequately

protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged if any

Substandard assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustttin some

loss if the deficiencies are not corrected Assets classified as impaired have all of the weaknesses inherent in



those classified as substandard with the addod characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or

liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and

improbable

When an institution classifies problem assets as either special mention or substandard it is required to

establish general allowances for loan lOsses in an amount deemed prudent by management General allowances

represent loss allowances that have been established to recognize the inherent risk associated with lending activities

but which unlike specific allowances have not been allocated to particular problem assets When an institution

classifies problem assets or portion of assets as impaired it is required either to establish specific allowance for

losses equal to 100% of the amount of the asset or portion thereof so classified or to charge-off such amount An

institutions determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation allowances is subject

to review by the 0CC who can order the establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances The Bank

considers all non-accrual loans to be non-performing Therefore at December 31 2012 loans classified as non-

performing totaled $17.4 million

Investment Activities

The following table sets forth the Corporations investment and mortgage-backed securities portfolio at the

dates indicated dollars in thousands

At December 31

2012 2011 2010

Carrying Percent of Carrying Percent of Carrying Percent of

Available for sale Value Portfolio Value Portfolio Value Portfolio

Investment securities

U.S agency obligations
-- 0.00% 0.01% 0.01%

Government sponsored enterprises 123679 73.09 87538 52.77 54772 36.89

Trust preferred securities 4.335 _2 4.205 _2 4.548

Total investment securities 128014 75.65 91.744 55.31 59.322 39.96

Mortgage-backed and

Related Securities 41200 24.35 74134 44.69 89147 60.04

Total $169214 LQt1A0% $16W L00Q9% $148469 IIXLQQ%

The Bank increased its level of investment securities over the previous year with funds from loan

reductions

The Bank purchases mortgage-backed securities both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate from Freddie Mac

Fannie Mae and Ginnie Mae with maturities from five to thirty years The Bank decreased its level of mortgage-

backed securities to reduce extension risk and increased its level of government sponsored enterprises securities

The Bank in previous years purchased mortgage derivative securities in the form of collateralized mortgage

obligations CMOs issued by financial corporations The amortized cost of the CMOs at December 31 2012

was approximately $317000 with fair value of $324000

The Bank has in the past purchased trust preferred corporate securities both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate

with maturities up to thirty years Trust preferred securities are issued by financial institutions through pooled

trust preferred and single issue capital offerings Because of the current trading dislocations in the debt markets the

traditional methods of market quotes have become unreliable for the valuation of the pooled trust preferred

offerings Accounting standards permit the use of reasonable management judgment regarding the probability of

collecting all projected cash flows generated by the fmancial instrument There were no other-than-temporary

impairment OTT charges recorded for 2012 that relate to these pooled trusted preferred securities compared to

an OTT charge of $432000 recorded for 2011 The OTTI charge was due to write-downs recorded on pooled trust

preferred securities as result of projected shortfalls of interest and principal payments in the cash flow analysis of

the securities The total amortized cost of the trust preferred securities at December 31 2012 was approximately

$5.8 million with fair value of $4.3 million See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more

information regarding investment and mortgage-backed securities
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Management reviews securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of

time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term

prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for period of

time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value

To determine which individual securities are at risk for other-than-temporary impairment the Bank

considers various characteristics of each security including but not limited to the credit rating the duration and

amount of the unrealized loss and any credit enhancements The relative importance of this information varies

based on the facts and circumstances surrounding each security as well as the economic environment at the time of

the assessment As result of this review the Bank identifies individual securities believed to be at risk for other

than-temporary impairment These securities are evaluated by estimating piojected .cash flows based on the structure

of the security and certain assumptions such as prepayments default rates and loss severity to determine whether

the Bank expects to receive all of the contractual cash flows as scheduled The Bank recognizes an other-than

temporary impairment credit loss when the present value of the investment securitys cash flows expected to be

collected are less than the amortized cost basis
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The following table sets forth at market value the maturities and weighted average yields of the Banks investment and mortgage-backed securities

portfolio at December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

Amount Due or Renricin within

Available for Sale

Investment Securities

Government Sponsored Enterprises

Trust Preferred Securities

Total Investment Securities

Mortgage-backed and Related Securities

Total Available for Sale

Weighted Weighted

Carrying Average Carrying Average

Value Yield Value Yield

1The following GSE issuers exceed 10% of shareholders equity at 12/31/12

Issuer

Fannie Mae FNIvIA

Freddie Mac FHLMC
Federal Farm Credit Bureau FFCB
Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB

Book Value

56933

13093

20549

32806

123.38

Market Value

57102

13137

20621

32819

123.679

The weighted average yield is based upon the cost value and the total income received of the instrument

One Year Over One to Over Five to Over

or Less Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Total

Carrying

Weighted

Average Carrying

Weighted

Average Carrying

Weighted

Average

Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield

$14037 1.37% $46219 1.47% $15578 1.76% $47845 2.47% $123679 1.88%

2.879 4.05 -- -- -- -- L4 7.00 4.335 5.04

16916 1.83 46219 1.47 15578 1.76 4931 2.61 128014 1.99

o64 2.36 8789 0.98 13142 2.07 18.605 1.52 41.200 1.59

S17.580 1.85 $55008 1.39 S28.720 1.90 $67.906 2.31 $169214 1.89

At December 31 2012 approximately $9.4 million of mortgage-backed securities were adjustable-rate securities



Deposits and Borrowings

General deposits are the major source of our funds for lending and other investment purposes In addition

to deposits we derive funds from principal repayments and interest payments on loans and investment and

mortgage-backed securities Principal repayments and interest payments are relatively stable source of funds

although principal prepayments tend to slow when interest rates increase Deposit inflows and outflows may be

influenced significantly by general market interest rates and money market conditions During 2012 the Bank

experienced net decrease in deposits of approximately $5.8 million due to decrease in certificates of deposits

offset by an increase in transaction accounts The decrease was primarily due to reductions in interest rates

Deposits Local deposits are and traditionally have been the primary source of the Banks funds for use in

lending and for other general business purposes We offer number of deposit accounts including NOW accounts

money market savings accounts passbook and statement savings accounts individual retirement accounts and

certificate of deposit accounts Deposit accounts vary as to terms regarding withdrawal provisions deposit

provisions and interest rates

We adjust the interest rates offered on our deposit accounts as necessary so as to remain competitive with

other financial institutions in Union Laurens York Greenville and Fairfield Counties in South Carolina

The following table sets forth the time deposits of the Bank classified by rates as of the dates indicated in

thousands

At or For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Upto2.0% $116971 $123957 $102081

2.0l%to4.0% 196 195 41688

4.0 1% to 6.0% 725 3.374

Total time deposits $1 17.167 $124877 $147143

The following table sets forth the maturities of time deposits at December 31 2012 in thousands

Amount

Within three months 25441

After three months but within six months 26803

After six months but within one year 27341

After one year but within three
years 36186

After three years but within five years 1.396

Total $117167

Certificates of deposit with maturities of less than one year
decreased to $79.6 million at December 31

2012 from $88.6 million at December 31 2011 Historically we have been able to retain significant amount of

deposits as they mature In addition we believe that we can adjust the offering rates of savings certificates to retain

deposits in changing interest rate environments
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accounts

Borrowings The Bank utilizes advances from the FHLB agreements and other borrowings treasury tax

and loan deposits security repurchase agreements and trust preferred capital obligations to supplement its supply of

lendable funds for
granting

loans making investments and meeting deposit withdrawal requirements See

Regulation and Supervision Federal Home Loan Bank System

The following tables set forth certain information regarding borrowings by the Bank at the dates and for

the periods indicated dollars in thousands

Balance outstanding at end of period

FHLB advances

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase

2012

$37500

12372

6280

At December 31
2011

$59500

12372

5268

2010

$59500

12372

10028

Weighted average rate paid on

FHLB advances

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase

The following table indicates the amount of the Banks jumbo certificates of deposit by time remaining

until maturity as of December 31 2012 in thousands Jumbo certificates of deposit are certificates in amounts of

$100000 or more

Maturity Period Amount

Three months or less

Over three through six months

Over six months through twelve months

Over twelve months

Total jumbo certificates

$11125

11725

11956

16.440

S51.246

See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about deposit

3.89% 4.20%

2.21% 2.25%

0.10% 0.10%

4.14%

3.7 1%

0.10%
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For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Maximum amount of borrowings

outstanding at any month end

FHLB advances $59500 $59500 $64500

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures 12372 12372 12372

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase 6823 10421 19008

Approximate average borrowings

outstanding

FHLB advances $48331 $59500 $60705

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures 12372 12372 12372

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase 5994 6500 12932

Approximate weighted average rate paid on

FHLB advances 4.12% 4.20% 4.22%

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures 2.24% 3.42% 3.87%

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase 0.10% 0.10% 0.67%

At December 31 2012 the Bank had unused short-term secured lines of credit to purchase federal funds

from unrelated banks totaling $4 million These lines of credit are available on one-to-ten day basis for general

purposes of the Bank All of the lenders have reserved the right to withdraw these lines at their option At

December 31 2012 the Bank had unused secured lines of credit for longer term advances totaling $32.5 million

SubsidiaryActivities

Under 0CC regulations the Bank generally may invest in operating subsidiaries which may engage in

activities permissible for the Bank itself The Bank currently holds Provident Financial Services Inc as non-

active subsidiary

Provident Community Bancshares maintains two subsidiaries other than the Bank In fiscal year 2006

Provident Community Bancshares Capital Trust and Capital Trust II were established as capital trusts under

Delaware law to issue trust preferred securities Provident Community Bancshares Capital Trust issued trust

preferred securities on July 21 2006 while Capital Trust II issued trust preferred securities on December 15 2006

Employees

The Corporation has 65 full-time employees and part-time employees None of the employees are

represented by collective bargaining unit We believe that relations with our employees are excellent

15



REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

General

Provident Community Bancshares which is bank holding company is required to file certain reports with

the FRB and otherwise comply with the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended BHCA and the rules

and regulations promulgated thereunder The FRB has supervisory and extensive enforcement authority over bank

holding companies

The Batik as national bank is subject to extensive regulation examination and supervision by the Office

of the Comptroller of the Currency as its primary regulator and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as the

deposit insurer The Banks deposit accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund

managed by the FDIC The Bank must file reports with the 0CC and the FDIC concerning its activities and

financial condition in addition to obtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions such as

mergers with or acquisitions of other institutions The 0CC and/or the FDIC conduct periodic examinations to test

the Banks safety and soundness and compliance with various regulatory requirements This regulation and

supervision establishes comprehensive framework of activities in which an institution can engage and is intended

primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and depositors The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory

authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination

policies including policies with respect to the classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss

reserves Any change in such regulatory requirements and policies whether by the 0CC the FDIC or Congress

could have material adverse impact on Provident Community Bancshares or the Bank and their operations

Certain regulatory requirements applicable to the Bank and Provident Community Bancshares are referred

to below or elsewhere herein This description of statutory provisions and regulations applicable to national banks

and their holding companies does not purport to be complete description of such statutes and regulations and their

effects on the Bank and Provident Community Bancshares

Regulatory Reform

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 the Dodd-Frank Act
transferred responsibility for the implQmentation of financial consumer protection laws to new independent agency

in the FRB The new agency the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau will issue rules and regulations governing

consumer financial protection and fair lending laws However depository institutions of less than $10 billion in

assets such as the Bank will continue to be examined for compliance with consumer protection and fair lending

laws by their prudential regulators which will also have enforcement authority

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the Federal Reserve Board to establish minimum consolidated capital

requirements for bank holding companies that are as stringent as those required for insured depository institutions

the components of Tier capital would be restricted to capital instruments that are currently considered to be Tier

capital for insured depository institutions In addition the proceeds of trust preferred securities are excluded from

Tier capital unless such securities are issued by bank holding companies with assets of less than $500 million

or ii such securities were issued before May 19 2010 by bank or savings and loan holding companies with less

than $15 billion of assets The legislation also establishes floor for capital of insured depository institutions that

cannot be lower than the standards in effect today and directs the federal banking regulators to implement new

leverage and capital requirements that take into account off-balance sheet activities and other risks including risks

relating to securitized products and derivatives

As noted above the Dodd-Frank Act also creates new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau with

extensive powers to implement and enforce consumer protection laws The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

has broad rulemaking authority for wide range of consumer protection laws that apply to all banks and savings

associations among other things including the authority to prohibit unfair deceptive or abusive acts and

practices The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has examination and enforcement authority over all banks and

savings associations with more than $10 billion in assets Banks and savings associations with $10 billion or less in

assets will continue to be examined for compliance with federal consumer protection and fair lending laws by their

16



applicable primary federal bank regulators The Dodd-Frank Act also weakens the federal preemption available for

national banks and federal savings associations and gives state attorneys general certain authority to enforce

applicable federal consumer protection laws

The Dodd-Frank Act made many other changes in banking regulation Those include authorizing

depository institutions for the first time to pay interest on business checking accounts requiring originators of

securitized loans to retain percentage of the risk for transferred loans establishing regulatory rate-setting for

certain debit card interchange fees and establishing number of reforms for mortgage originations

Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are not yet effective and the Dodd-Frank Act requires

various federal agencies to promulgate numerous and extensive implementing regulations over the next several

years
It is therefore difficult to predict at this time what impact the Dodd-Frank Act and implementing regulations

will have on community banks such as Provident Community Bank Although the substance and scope of many of

these regulations cannot be determined at this time it is expected that the legislation and implementing regulations

particularly those provisions relating to the new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau may increase our operating

and compliance costs

Holding Company Regulation

Federal Regulation As bank holding company Provident Community Bancshares is subject to

examination regulation and periodic reporting under the BHCA as administered by the FRB Provident

Community Bancshares is required to obtain the prior approval of the FRB to acquire all or substantially all of the

assets of any bank or bank holding company or merge with another bank holding company Prior FRB approval is

also required for Provident Community Bancshares to acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting

securities of any bank or bank holding company if after giving effect to such acquisition Provident Community

Bancshares would directly or indirectly own or control more than 5% of any class of voting shares of the bank or

bank holding company In evaluating such transactions the FRB considers such matters as the financial and

managerial resources of and future prospects of the companies and banks involved competitive factors and the

convenience and needs of the communities to be served Bank holding companies have authority under the BHCA

to acquire additional banks in any state subject to certain restrictions such as deposit concentration limits In

addition to the approval of the FRB before any bank acquisition can be completed prior approval may also be

required from other agencies having supervisory jurisdiction over the banks to be acquired

bank holding company generally is prohibited from engaging in or acquiring direct or indirect control of

more than 5% of the voting securities of any company conducting non-banking activities One of the principal

exceptions to this prohibition is for activities found by the FRB to be so closely related to banking or managing or

controlling banks to be proper
incident thereto Some of the principal activities that the FRB has determined by

regulation to be closely related to banking are making or servicing loans performing certain data

processing services providing discount brokerage services acting as fiduciary investment or financial

advisor finance leasing personal or real property making investments in corporations or projects designed

primarily to promote community welfare and acquiring savings association provided that the savings

association only engages in activities permitted by bank holding companies

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 authorizes bank holding company that meets specified conditions

including being well-capitalized and well managed to opt to become financial holding company and

thereby engage in broader array
of financial activities than previously permitted Such activities may include

insurance underwriting and investment banking The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also authorizes banks to engage

through financial subsidiaries in certain of the activities permitted for financial holding companies Financial

subsidiaries are generally treated as affiliates for purposes of restrictions on banks transactions with affiliates

The FRB has adopted capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companies on consolidated basis

substantially similar to those of the 0CC for the Bank See Capital Requirements Further the Dodd-Frank Act

requires the FRB to issue consolidated capital requirements for bank holding companies that are at least as stringent

as those applicable to the bank subsidiaries However the FRBs consolidated capital requirements generally do
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not apply to bank holding companies with consolidated assets of less than $500 million and the Dodd-Frank Act

incorporates that exception

Bank holding companies are generally required to give the FRB prior written notice of any purchase or

redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or redemption when

combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptions during the preceding 12 months is

equal to 10% or more of their consolidated net worth The FRB may disapprove such purchase or redemption if it

determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe and unsound practice or would violate any law regulation

FRB order or directive or any condition imposed by or written agreement with the FRB There is an exception to

this approval requirement for well-capitalized bank holding companies that meet certain other conditions

The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement regarding the payment of dividends and the

repurchase of shares of common stock by bank holding companies that it has made applicable to savings and loan

holding companies as well In general the policy provides that dividends should be paid only out of current

earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the holding company appears consistent with the

organizations capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition Regulatory guidance provides for prior

regulatory review of capital distributions in certain circumstances such as where the companys net income for the

past four quarters net of dividends previously paid over that period is insufficient to fully fund the dividend or the

companys overall rate of earnings retention is inconsistent with the companys capital needs and overall financial

condition The ability of holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if subsidiary bank becomes

undercapitalized The policy statement also provides for regulatory review prior to holding company redeeming

or repurchasing regulatory capital instruments when the holding company is experiencing financial weaknesses or

redeeming or repurchasing common stock or perpetual preferred stock that would result in net reduction as of the

end of quarter in the amount of such equity instruments outstanding compared with the beginning of the quarter in

which the redemption or repurchase occurred

The FRBs policies also require that bank holding company serve as source of financial strength to its

subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks

during periods of financial stress or adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising

capacity to obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary The Dodd-Frank Act

codified the FRBs source of strength and requires that regulations be issued on the subject Furthermore the FRB
has authority to prohibit bank holding company from paying capital distribution where subsidiary bank is

undercapitalized These regulatory policies could affect the ability of Provident Community Bancshares to pay

dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions

The FRB has general authority to enforce the BHCA as to Provident Community Bancshares and may
require bank holding company to cease any activity or terminate control of any subsidiary engaged in an activity

that the FRB believes constitutes serious risk to the safety soundness or stability of its bank subsidiaries

Provident Community Bancshares and its subsidiaries are affected by the monetary and fiscal policies of

various agencies of the United States Government including the Federal Reserve System In view of changing

conditions in the national economy and money markets it is impossible for the management of Provident

Community Bancshares to accurately predict future changes in monetary policy or the effect of such changes on the

business or financial condition of Provident Community Bancshares or the Bank

Acquisition of Provident Community Bancshares

Federal Regulation Federal law requires that notice be submitted to the FRB if any person including

company or group acting in concert seeks to acquire 10% or more of Provident Community Bancshares

outstanding voting stock unless the FRB has found that the acquisition will not result in change in control of

Provident Community Bancshares The FRB has 60 days from the filing of complete notice to act taking into

consideration certain factors including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer and the anti-trust

effects of the acquisition

18



Under the BHCA any company would be required to obtain prior approval from the FRB before it may

obtain control of Provident Community Bancshares within the meaning of the BHCA Control generally is

defined to mean the ownership or power to vote 25% or more of any class of voting securities of Provident

Community Bancshares or the ability to control in any manner the election of majority of Provident Community

Bancshares directors An existing bank holding company would be required to obtain the FRBs prior approval

under the BHCA before acquiring more than 5% of Provident Community Bancshares voting stock See Holding

Company Regulation

Federal Banking Regulations

Capital Requirements The OCCs capital regulations require national banks to meet two minimum capital

standards 4% Tier capital to total adjusted assets ratio for most banks 3% for national banks with the highest

examination rating the leverage ratio and an 8% risk-based capital ratio In addition the prompt corrective

action standards discussed below also establish in effect minimum 2% tangible capital to total assets standard

4% leverage ratio 3% for institutions receiving
the highest rating on the financial institution examination rating

system and together with the risk-based capital standard itself 4% Tier capital to risk-based assets standard

Tier capital is generally defined as common stockholders equity including retained earnings certain

noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts of

consolidated subsidiaries less intangibles other than certain mortgage servicing rights and credit card

relationships percentage of certain non-financial equity investments and certain other specified items

The risk-based capital standard requires the maintenance of Tier and total capital which is defined as

Tier capital plus Tier capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8% respectively In determining the

amount of risk-weighted assets all assets including certain off-balance sheet activities are multiplied by risk-

weight factor of 0% to 100% as assigned by the 0CC capital regulation based on the risks that the agency believes

are inherent in the type of asset The regulators have recently added market risk adjustment to cover banks

trading account foreign exchange and commodity positions Tier capital may include cumulative preferred stock

long-term perpetual preferred stock mandatory convertible securities subordinated debt and intermediate preferred

stock the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to

45% of unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values

Overall the amount of Tier capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of Tier capital

Both the 0CC and the FRB have the discretion to establish higher capital requirements on case-by-case

basis where deemed appropriate in the circumstances of particular bank or bank holding company

At December 31 2012 the Bank met each of the capital requirements required by regulations but was not

in compliance.with the capital requirements imposed by the 0CC in its Consent order

The current risk-based capital guidelines that apply to the Bank are based on the 1988 capital accord of the

International ase1 Committee on Banking Supervision Basel Committee committee of central banks and

bank supervisors as implemented by the Federal Reserve Board In 2004 the Basel Committee published new

capital accord which is referred to as Basel II to replace Basel Basel II provides two approaches for setting

capital standards for credit risk an internal ratings based approach tailored to individual institutions circumstances

and standardized approach that bases risk weightings on external credit assessments to much greater extent than

permitted in existing nsk based capital guidelines which became effective in 2008 for large international banks

total assets of $250 billion or more or consolidated foreign exposure of $10 billion or more Other U.S banking

organizations can elect to adopt the requirements of this rule if they meet applicable qualification requirements

but they are not required to apply them Base II emphasizes internal assessment of credit market and operational

risk as well as supervisory assessment and market discipline in determining minimum capita requirements

In December 2010 and January 2011 the Basel Committee published the final text of reforms on capita

and liquidity which is referred to as Basel III Although Base III is intended to be implemented by participating

countries for large internationally active banks its provisions are likely to be considered by United States banking

regulators in developing new regulations applicable to other banks in the United States Basel III will require bank

holding companies and their bank subsidiaries to maintain substantially more capital with greater emphasis on
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common equity The implementation of the Basel III final framework was to occur on January 2013 The Federal

Reserve and other government agencies responsible for implementing the Basel III framework announced in

November 2012 that the originally proposed timeframe for the implementation of the rules was not achievable No

new deadline has been proposed On January 2013 banking institutions were going to be required to meet the

following minimum capital ratios 3.5% Common Equity Tier generally consisting of common shares and

retained earnings to risk-weighted assets ii 4.5% Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and iii 8.0% Total

capital to risk-weighted assets

When fuiiy phased-in on January 2019 and if implemented by the U.S banking agencies Basel III will

require banks to maintain

minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5% plus 2.5% capital

conservation buffer

minimum ratio of Tier capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0% plus the capital conservation

buffer

minimum ratio of Total capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0% plus the capital conservation

bufferand

minimum leverage ratio of 3% calculated as the ratio of Tier capital to balance sheet exposures plus

certain off-balance sheet exposures

Basel III also includes the following significant provisions

An additional countercyclical capital buffer to be imposed by applicable national banking regulators

periodically at their discretion with advance notice

Restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses applicable when capital ratios fall within

the buffer zone

Deduction from common equity of deferred tax assets that depend on future profitability to be realized

For capital instruments issued on or after January 13 2013 other than common equity loss-

absorbency requirement that the instrument must be written off or converted to common equity if

triggering event occUrs either pursuant to applicable law or at the direction of the banking regulator

triggering event is an event that would cause the banking organization to become nonviable without the

write off or conversion or without an injection of capital from the public sector

Since the Basel III framework is not self-executing the rules and standards prmulgated under Basel III

require that the U.S federal banking regulators adopt them prior to becoming effective in the U.S Although U.S

federal banking regulators have expressed support for Basel III the timing and scope of its implementation as well

as any potential modifications or adjustments that may result during the implementation process are not yet known

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action The 0CC is required to take certain supervisory actions against

undercapitalized institutions under its jurisdiction the severity of which depends upon the institutionS degree of

undercapitalization Generally an institution that has ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 8%
ratio of Tier core capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or ratio of core capital to total assets of less

than 4% 3% or less for institutions with the highest examination rating is coUsidered to be undercapitalized An

institution that has total risk-based capital ratio less than 6% Tier capital ratio of less than 3% or leverage

ratio that is less than 3% is considered to be significantly undercapitalized and an institution that has tangible

capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be critically undercapitalized Subject to narrow

exception the 0CC is required to appoint receiver or conservator within specified time frames for an institution

that is critically undercapitalized The regulation also provides that capital restoration plan must be filed with

the 0CC within 45 days of the date an institution receives notice that it is undercapitalized significantly
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undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized Compliance with the plan must be guaranteed by any parent

holding company in the amount of the lesser of 5% of the banks total assets or the amount necessary to achieve

compliance with applicable capital regulations In addition numerous mandatory supervisory actions become

immediately applicable to an undercapitalized institution including but not limited to increased monitoring by

regulators and restrictions on growth capital distributions and expansion The 0CC could also take any one of

number of discretionary supervisory actions including the issuance of capital directive and the replacement of

senior executive officers and directors

Insurance of Deposit Accounts Under the FDICs risk-based assessment system insured institutions are

assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations regulatory capital levels and certain other

factors with less risky institutions paying lower assessments An institutions assessment rate depends upon the

category to which it is assigned The initial base assessment rates range from five to 35 basis points The rate

schedules will automatically adjust in the future when the Deposit Insurance Fund reaches certain milestones No

institution may pay dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment

The Dodd-Frank Act also broadened the base for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance

assessments The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation was required to promulgate rules revising its assessment

system so that it is based on the average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of an insured institution

instead of deposits That rule took effect April 2011

The FDIC imposed on all insured institutions special emergency assessment of five basis points of total

assets minus Tier capital as of June 30 2009 capped at ten basis points of an institutions deposit assessment

base to cover losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund That special assessment was collected on September 30 2009

In lieu of further special assessments the FDIC required insured institutions to prepay estimated quarterly risk-

based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 through the fourth quarter of 2012 That prepayment which

include an assumed annual assessment base increase of 5% was recorded as prepaid expense asset as of

December 30 2009 As of December 31 2009 and each quarter thereafter charge to earnings is recorded for

each regular assessment with an offsetting credit to the prepaid asset

Because of the recent difficult economic conditions deposit insurance per account owner has been raised

to $250000 for all types of accounts That level was made permanent by the Dodd-Frank Act In addition the

FDIC adopted an optional Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program TLGP under which for fee noninterest

bearing transaction accounts would receive unlimited insurance
coverage

until December 31 2010 and certain

senior unsecured debt issued by institutions and their holding companies between October 13 2008 and June 30

2010 would be guaranteed by the FDIC through June 30 2012 or in some cases December 31 2012 The Bank

participates in the unlimited noninterest-bearing transaction account coverage while the Bank and the Company

opted not to participate in the unsecured debt guarantee program The Dodd-Frank Act extended the unlimited

coverage for certain non-interest bearing transaction accounts through December 31 2012

The Dodd-Frank Act increased the minimum target FDIC ratio from 1.15% of estimated insured deposits

to 1.35% of estimated insured deposits The FDIC must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by September 30 2020

Insured institutions with assets of $10 billion or more are supposed to fund the increase The Dodd-Frank Act

eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio instead leaving it to the discretion of the FDIC

Loans to One Borrower National banks are subject to limits on the amount that they may lend to single

borrowers Generally banks may not make loan or extend credit to single or related group of borrowers in

excess of 15% of its capital and surplus including Tier capital Tier capital and the amount of the allowance for

loan and lease losses not included in Tier capital An additional amount may be lent equal to 10% of capital and

surplus if such loan is secured by readily-marketable collateral which is defined to include certain financial

instruments and bullion At December 31 2012 the Banks limit on loans to one borrower was $4.4 million and the

Banks largest aggregate outstanding balance of loans to one borrower was $4.1 million

Limitation on Capital Distributions National banks may not pay dividends out of their permanent capital

and may not without 0CC approval pay dividends in excess of the total of the banks retained net income for the

year combined with retained net income for the prior two years
less any transfers to surplus and capital
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distributions national bank may not pay dividend that would cause it to fall below any applicable regulatory

capital standard

Branching National banks are authorized to establish branches within the state in which they are

headquartered to the extent state law allows branching by state banks Federal law also provides for interstate

branching for national banks Interstate branching by merger was authorized as of June 1997 unless the state in

which the bank is to branch has enacted law opting out of interstate branching or expedites the effective date by

passing legislation De novo interstate branching is permitted to the extent the state into which the bank is to branch

has enacted law authorizing banks chartered by that state to establish de novo branches

Transacthrns with Related Parties The authority of depository institution to engage in transations with

related parties or affiliates e.g any company that controls or is under common control with an institution

including in this case Provident Community Bancshares is limited by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal

Reserve Act FRA Section 23A limits the aggregate amoUnt of covered transactions with any individual

affiliate to 10% of the capital and surplus of the depository institution The aggregate amount of covered

transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of the depository institutions capital and surplus Certain

transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an amount and of type described in Section

23A and the purchase of low quality assets from affiliates are generally prohibited Section 23B generally provides

that certain transactions with affiliates including loans and asset purchases must be on terms and under

circumstances including credit standards that are substantially the same or at least as favorable to the institution as

those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies

The authority of the Bank to extend credit to executive officers directors and 10% or greater shareholders

insiders as well as entities such persons control is governed by Sections 22g and 22h of the FRA and

Regulation thereunder Among other things such loans are required to be made on terms substantially the same

as those offered to unaffihiated individuals and are not to involve more than the normal risk of repayment There is

an exception to this requirement for- loans made pursuant to benefit or compensation program that is widely

available to all employees of the institution and does not give preference to insiders over other employees

Regulation also places individual and aggregate limits on the amount of loans that institutions may make to

insiders based in part on the institutions capital position and requires certain board approval procedures to be

followed Extensions of creditto executive officers are subject to additional restrictions

Enforcement The 0CC has primary enforcement responsibility over national banks and has theauthority

to bring- actions against such banks and all institution-affiliated parties including directors officers stockholders

and any attorneys appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to

have an adverse effect on an insured institution Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance of

capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to institution of receivership or

conservatorship Civil penalties cover wide range of violations and can amount to $25000 per day or even $1.0

million per day in especially egregious cases The FDIC has the authority to recommend to the 0CC that it take

enforoement action with respect to national bank If action is not taken by the agency the FDIC has authority to

take such action under certain circumstances Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations

The FRB has generally similarenforcement authority with respect to Provident Community Baneshares

Assessments National banks are required to pay assessments to the 0CC to fund the agencys operations

The general assessments paid on semi-annual basis are computed based upon the national banks including

consolidated subsidiaries total balance sheet assets and financial condition

Community Reinvestment Act The Community Reinvestment Act CRA provides that national bank

has acontinuingand affirmative obligation consistent with its safe and sound operation to help meet the credit needs

of its entire community including low and moderate income neighborhoods The CRA does not establish specific

lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institutions discretion to develop the

types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular community consistent with the CRA

The CRA requires the 0CC in connection with its examination of bank to assess the institutions record of

meeting the credit needs of its community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain corporate

applitations by such institution .such as mergers
and branching The Banks most recent rating was satisfactory
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USA Patriot AcL The USA Patriot Act of 2001 the Patriot Act designed to deny terrorists and others

the ability to obtain anonymous access to the United States financial system has significant implications for

depository institutions brokers dealers and other businesses involved in the transfer of money The Patriot Act

mandated that financial institutions implement additional policies and procedures with respect to or additional

measures designed to address matters such as money laundering suspicious activities and currency transaction

reporting

Federal Reserve System

The FRB regulations require savings institutions to maintain non-interest earning reserves against their

transaction accounts primarily NOW and regular checking accounts The regulations generally require that

reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts as follows for accounts aggregating $79.5 million or

less subject to adjustment by the FRB the reserve requirement was 3% and for accounts aggregating greater than

$79.5 million reserve requirement of 10% subject to adjustment by the FRB between 8% and 14% The first

$12.4 million of otherwise reservable balances subject to adjustments by the FRB were exempted from the reserve

requirements The Bank complies with the foregoing requirements

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is member of the FHLB which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks The Federal

Home Loan Bank provides central credit facility primarily for member institutions The Bank as member of the

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Atlanta The Bank was in compliance with this requirement with an investment in FHLB stock at

December 31 2012 of $2.3 million

Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in shares of our common stock involves various risks Before deciding to invest in our

common stock you should carefully consider the risks described below in conjunction with the other information in

this annual report including the items included as exhibits Our business financial condition and results of

operations could be harmed by any of the following risks or by other risks that have not been identJied or that we

may believe are immaterial or unlikely The value or market price of our common stock could decline due to any of

these risks and you may lose all or part of your investment The risks discussed below also include forward-

looking statements and our actual results may dffer substantially from those discussed in these forward-looking

statements

Non-performing assets remain elevated and we may be required to make further increases in our provision

for loan losses and to charge-off additional loans in the future each of which could adversely affect our

results of operations

For the year ended December 31 2012 we recorded provision for loan losses of $704000 We also

recorded net loan charge-offs of $886000 We are experiencing elevated levels of loan delinquencies and credit

losses The deterioration in the general economy and our market area has become significant contributing factor

to the increased levels of loafi delinquencies and non-performing assets General economic conditions decreased

home prices slower sales and excess inventory in the housing market have caused the increase in delinquencies

At December 31 2012 our non-accrual loans totaled $13.2 million representing 10.7% of total loans

Total loans that we have classified as impaired substandard or special mention including our non-performing

loans totaled $29.2 million representing 22.8% of total loans If these loans do not perform according to their terms

and the collateral is insufficient to pay any remaining loan balance we may experience loan losses which could

have material effect on our operating results Like all financial institutions we maintain an allowance for loan

losses to provide for loans in our portfolio that may not be repaid in their entirety We believe that our allowance

for loan losses is maintained at level adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in our loan portfolio as of the

corresponding balance sheet date However our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual

loan losses and future provisions for loan losses could materially adversely affect our operating results
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In evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses we consider numerous quantitative factors

including our historical charge-off experience growth of our loan portfolio changes in the composition of our loan

portfolio and the volume of and trends in our non-performing delinquent and classified loans In addition we use

information about specific borrower situations including their financial position and estimated collateral values to

estimate the risk and amount of loss for those borrowers Finally we also consider many qualitative factors

including general and economic business conditions current general market collateral valuations trends apparent in

any of the factors we take into account and other matters which are by nature more subjective and fluid Our

estimates of the risk of loss and amount of loss on any loan are complicated by the significant uncertainties

surrounding our borrowers abilities to successfully execute their business models through changing economic

environments competitive challenges and other factors Because of the degree of uncertainty and susceptibility of

these factors to change our actual losses may vary from our current estimates

At December 31 2012 our allowance for loan losses as percentage of total loans was 3.42% Our

regulators as an integral part of their examination process periodically review our allowance for loan losses and

may require us to increase our allowance for loan losses by recognizing additional provisions for loan losses

charged to expense or to decrease our allowance for loan losses by recognizing loan charge-offs Any such

additional provisions for loan losses or charge-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Our compliance with the provisions of Consent Order entered into with the Office of the Comptroller of the

Currency may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

We entered into stipulation and consent to the issuance of consent order with the Office of the

Comptroller of the Currency The Order is formal enforcement action pursuant to which the Bank has agreed to

address specific areas through the adoption and implementation of procedures plans and policies designed to

enhance the safety and soundness of the Bank These affirmative actions include management assessment

implementation of plans to address capital our interest in problem assets asset concentration allowance for loan

losses loan portfolio management strategic planning and liquidity and funds management In addition the Bank is

required to maintain specified capital levels notify the Comptroller of director and management changes and obtain

prior approval of dividend payments The Order specifies certain timeframes for meeting these requirements and

we must furnish periodic progress reports to the Comptroller regarding its compliance While we intend to take

such actions as may be necessary to enable the Bank to comply with the requirements of the Order the Bank may

not be able to comply fully with the provisions of the Order or to do so within the timeframes required compliance

with the Order may be more time consuming or more expensive than anticipated compliance with the Order may

not enable us to resume profitable operations and efforts to comply with the Order may have adverse effects on our

financial condition and operations Failure to comply with the Order could result in further regulatory enforcement

actions and further restrictions on our operations

return to recessionary conditions could result in increases in our level of non-performing loans and/or

reduce demand for our products and services which would lead to lower revenue higher loan losses and

lower earnings

Following national home price peak in mid-2006 falling home prices and sharply reduced sales volumes

along with the collapse of the United States subprime mortgage industry in early 2007 significantly contributed to

recession that officially lasted until June 2009 although the effects continued thereafter Dramatic declines in real

estate values and high levels of foreclosures resulted in significant asset write-downs by financial institutions which

have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital to merge with other institutions and in some

cases to fail Concerns over the United States credit rating which was recently downgraded by Standard

Poor the European sovereign debt crisis and continued high unemployment in the United States among other

economic indicators have contributed to increased volatility in the capital markets and diminished expectations for

the economy

return of recessionary conditions and/or continued negative developments in the domestic and

international credit markets may significantly affect the markets in which we do business the value of our loans and

investments and our ongoing operations costs and profitability Further declines in real estate values and sales
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volumes and continued high unemployment levels may result in higher than expected loan delinquencies increases

in our levels of non-performing and classified assets and decline in demand for our products and services These

negative events may cause us to incur losses and may adversely affect our capital liquidity and financial condition

We have experienced losses in each of the last five years and may not return to profitability

We have experienced losses for each of the past five fiscal years These losses primarily resulted from our

high level of non-performing assets and the resultant increased provision for loan losses We may continue to suffer

further losses as result of these factors As result of these factors and other conditions such as weakness in our

local economy we may not be able to return to profitability or do so in the near future

Further economic downturns may adversely affect our investment securities portfolio and profitability

At December 31 2012 the cost basis of our available for sale investment portfolio was $170.0 million

including $317000 of CMOs and $5.8 million of collateralized debt obligations CDOs secured by trust

preferred securities issued by various financial institutions These CMOs are secured by first lien residential jumbo

mortgage loans geographically dispersed across the United States with significant amount of the CMOs secured by

properties located in California

At December 31 2012 the fair value of the AFS securities was $169.2 million Under U.S generally

accepted accounting principles declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below

their cost that are deemed to be OTTI are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is

related to credit losses The amount of the impairment related to other non-credit related factors is recognized in

other comprehensive income

We closely monitor these and our other investment securities for changes in credit risk The valuation of

our investment securities and the determination of any OTT with respect to such securities are highly complex and

involve comprehensive process including quantitative modeling and significant judgment The valuation of our

investment securities will also continue to be influenced by external markets and other factors including

implementation of Securities and Exchange Commission and Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance on

fair value accounting and default rates of specific CMOs and CDOs rating agency actions and the prices at which

observable market transactions occur The current market environment significantly limits our ability to mitigate our

exposure to valuation changes in our CMO and CDO securities by selling them Accordingly if market conditions

do not improve or deteriorate further and we determine our holdings of these or other investment securities have

additional OTTI our future earnings and shareholders equity could be materially adversely affected

We may need to raise additional capital in the future but that capital may not be available when it is needed

We are required by the Consent Order to maintain Tier capital at least equal to 8% of adjusted total assets

and total capital of at least 12% of risk-weighted assets To satisfy our capital requirements we may need to raise

additional capital If we raise capital through the issuance of additional shares of our common stock or other

securities it would dilute the ownership interests of existing shareholders and may dilute the per share book value

of our common stock New investors may also have rights preferences and privileges senior to our current

shareholders which may adversely impact our current shareholders

Our ability to raise additional capital if needed will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that time

which are outside of our control and on our financial performance Accordingly we may not be able to raise

additional capital if needed on terms acceptable to us If we cannot raise additional capital when needed we may

become subject to additional regulatory restrictions or have to shrink our balance sheet

Our increased emphasis on commercial lending may expose us to increased lending risks

At December 31 2012 60.9% of our loan portfolio consisted of commercial real estate loans and 7.31% of

our loan portfolio consisted of commercial business loans These types of loans generally expose lender to greater
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risk of non-payment and loss and require commensurately higher loan loss allowance than one- to four-family

residential mortgage loans because repayment of the loans often depends on the successful operation of the business

and the income stream of the borrowers Such loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or

groups
of related borrowers compared to one- to four-family residential mortgage loans Commercial business

loans
expose us to additional risks since they typically are made on the basis of the borrowers ability to make

repayments from the cash flow of the borrowers business and are secured by non-real estate collateral that may

depreciate over time In addition since such loans generally entail greater risk than one- to four-family residential

mortgage loans we may need to increase our allowance for loan losses in the future to account for the likely

increase in probable incurred credit losses associated with the growth of such loans Also many of our commercial

borrowers have more than one loan outstanding with us Consequently an adverse development with respect one

loan or one credit relationship can expose us to significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse

development with respect to one-to-four family residential rriortgage loan

Our market area limits our growth potential

Some of our offices are located in areas that have experienced population and economic decline Thus our

ability to originate loans and grow deposits in these areas may be limited To counter this we have attempted to

expand our operations into communities that are experiencing population growth and economic expansion This

was the impetus for the opening of our banking centers in Rock Hill in York County and Simpsonville in Greenville

County and the relocation of our main office to Rock Hill However we may not be able to successfully enter new

markets with similargrowth potential If we are unable to do so our ability to grow our business and our earnings

will be restricted

Regulatory reform may have material impact on our operations

On July 21 2010 the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act created new

federal agency to administer consumer protection and fair lending laws function that was formerly perfonned by

the depository institution regulators The federal preemption of state laws that was formerly accorded federally

chartered depository institutions such as the Bank was reduced as well and State Attorneys General now have

greater authority to bring suit against federally chartered institution for violations of certain state and federal

consumer protection laws The Dodd-Frank Act also imposed consolidated capital requirements on savings and loan

holding companies effective in five years The Dodd-Frank Act contains various other provisions designed to

enhance the regulation of depository institutions and prevent the recurrence of financial crisis such as occurred in

2008-2009 The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business and operations will not be known for years until

regulations implementing the statute are written and adopted The Dodd-Frank Act may have material impact on

our operations particularly through increased regulatory burden and compliance costs

In addition to the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act the federal regulatory agencies recently have begun to

take stronger supervisory actions against financial institutions that have experienced increased loan losses and other

weaknesses as result of the recent economic crisis The actions include the entering into written agreements and

cease and desist orders that place certain limitations on theiroperations Federal bank regulators recently have also

been using with more frequency their ability to impose individual minimal capital requirements on banks which

requirements may be higher than those imposed under the Dodd-Frank Act or which would otherwise qualify the

bank as being well capitalized under the Office of the Comptroller of the Currencys prompt corrective action

regulations If we were to become subject to supervisory agreement or higher individual capital requirements

such action may have negative impact on our ability to execute our business plan as well as our ability to grow

pay dividends or engage in mergers and acquisitions and may result in restrictions in our operations

Increased and/or special FDIC assessments will hurt our earnings

The recent economic recession has caused high level of bank failures which has dramatically increased

FDIC resolution costs and led to significant reduction in the balance of the Deposit Insurance Fund As result

the FDIC significantly increased the initial base assessment rates paid by financial institutions for deposit insurance

Increases in the base assessment rate increased our deposit insurance costs and negatively impacted our earnings In

addition in May 2009 the FDIC imposed special assessment on all insured institutions Our special assessment
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which was reflected in earnings for the quarter ended June 30 2009 was $211000 In lieu of imposing an

additional special assessment the FDIC required all institutions to prepay
their assessments for all of 2010 2011

and 2012 which for us totaled $2.0 million Additional increases in the base assessment rate or additional special

assessments would negatively impact our earnings

The limitations on executive compensation imposed through our participation in the Capital Purchase

Program may restrict our ability to attract retain and motivate key employees which could adversely affect

our operations

As part of our participation in the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP Capital Purchase Program we

agreed to be bound by certain executive compensation restrictions including limitations on severance payments and

the clawback of any bonus and incentive compensation that were based on materially inaccurate financial statements

or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

2010 provides more stringent limitations on severance pay and the payment of bonuses to certain officers and highly

compensated employees To the extent that any of these compensation restrictions do not permit us to provide

comprehensive compensation package to our key employees that is competitive in our market area we may have

difficulty in attracting retaining and motivating our key employees which could have an adverse effect on our

results of operations

The exercise of the warrant by Treasury will dilute existing shareholders ownership interest and may make

it more difficult for us to take certain actions that may be in the best interests of shareholders

In addition to the issuance of preferred shares we also granted the Treasury warrant to purchase 179110

shares of common at price of $7.77 per share If the Treasury exercises the entire warrant it would result in

significant dilution to the ownership interest of our existing stockholders and dilute the earnings per share value of

our common stock Further if the Treasury exercises the entire warrant it will become the largest shareholder of

the Company The Treasury has agreed that it will not exercise voting power with regard to the shares that it

acquires by exercising the warrant However Treasurys abstention from voting may make it more difficult for us

to obtain shareholder approval for those matters that require majority of total shares outstanding such as

business combination involving the Company

The terms governing the issuance of the preferred stock to Treasury may be changed the effect of which may

have an adverse effect on our operations

The Securities Purchase Agreement that we entered into with the Treasury provides that the Treasury may

unilaterally amend any provision of the agreement to the extent required to comply with any changes in applicable

federal statutes that may occur in the future The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2010 placed more

stringent limits on executive compensation for participants in the TARP Capital Purchase Program and established

requirement that compensation paid to executives be presented to shareholders for non-binding vote Further

changes in the terms of the transaction may occur in the future Such changes may place further restrictions on our

business or results of operations which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock

Our inability to raise capital at attractive rates may restrict our ability to redeem the preferred stock we

issued which may lead to greater cost of that investment

The terms of the preferred stock issued to the Treasury provide that the shares pay dividend at rate of

5% per year for the first five years after which time the rate will increase to 9% per year It is our current goal to

repay the Treasury before the date of the increase in tle dividend rate on the preferred stock However our ability

to repay
the Treasury will depend on our ability to raise capital which will depend on conditions in the capital

markets at that time which are outside of our control We can give no assurance that we will be able to raise

additional capital or that such capital will be available on terms more attractive to us than the Treasurys investment
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Strong competition within our market area could hurt our profits and slow growth

We face intense competition both in making loans and attracting deposits This competition has made it

more difficult for us to make new loans and has occasionally forced us to offer higher deposit rates Price

competition for loans and deposits might result in us earning less on our loans and paying more on our deposits

which reduces net interest income According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as of June 30 2012

we held 2.3% of the deposits in Fairfield Greenville Laurens Union and York Counties in South Carolina which

was the 12th largest market share of deposits out of the 36 financial institutions that held deposits in these counties

Some of the institutions with which we compete have substantially greater resources and lending limits than we

have and may offer services that we do not provide We expect competition to increase in the future as result of

legislative regulatory and technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services

industry Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to compete successfully in our market area

Changes in interest rates could reduce our net interest income and earnings

Our net interest income is the interest we earn on loans and investments less the interest we pay on our

deposits and borrowings Our net interest margin is the difference between the yield we earn on our assets and the

interest rate we pay for deposits and our other sources of funding Changes in interest rates could adversely affect

our net interest margin and as result our net interest income Although the yield we earn on our assets and our

funding costs tend to move in the same direction in response to changes in interest rates one can rise or fait faster

than the other causing our net interest margin to expand or contract Our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration

than our assets so they may adjust faster in
response to changes in interest rates As result when interest rates

rise our funding costs may rise faster than the yield we earn on our assets causing our net interest margin to

contract until the yield catches up Changes in the slope of the yield curveor the spread between short-term and

long-term interest ratescould also reduce our net interest margin Normally the yield curve is upward sloping

meaning short-term rates are lower than long-term rates Because our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than

our assets when the yield curve flattens or even inverts we could experience pressure on our net interest margin as

our cost of funds increases relative to the yield we can earn on our assets

The trading history of our common stock is characterized by low trading volume Our common stock may

be subject to sudden decreases

Our common stock has not been regularly traded We cannot predict whether more active trading market

in our common stock will occur or how liquid that market might become public trading market having the

desired characteristics of depth liquidity and orderliness depends upon the presence in the marketplace of willing

buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given time which presence
is dependent upon the individual

decisions of investors over which we have no control

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response

to numerous factors including but not limited to the factors discussed in other risk factors and the following

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results

changes in interest rates

changes in the legal or regulatory environment in which we operate

press releases announcements or publicity relating to us or our competitors or relating to trends in

our industry

changes in expectations as to our future financial performance including financial estimates or

recommendations by securities analysts and investors

future sales of our common stock
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changes in economic conditions in our marketplace general conditions in the U.S economy

financial markets or the banking industry and

other developments affecting our competitors or us

These factors may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock regardless of our actual

operating performance and could prevent you from selling your common stock at or above the price you desire In

addition the stock markets from time to time experience extreme price and volume fluctuations that may be

unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies These broad fluctuations may adversely

affect the market price of our common stock regardless of our trading performance

We operate in highly regulated environment and we may be adversely affected by changes in laws and

regulations

The Bank is subject to extensive regulation supervision and examination by the Office of the Comptroller

of the Currency its chartering authority and federal regulator and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as

insurer of its deposits Provident Community Bancshares is subject to regulation and supervision by the Federal

Reserve Board Such regulation and supervision govern the activities in which an institution and its holding

company may engage and are intended primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and for the depositors and

borrowers of the Bank The regulation and supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the

Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation are not intended to protect the interests of

investors in Provident Community Bancshares common stock Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in

their supervisory and enforcement activities including the imposition of restrictions on our operations the

classification of our assets and determination of the level of our allowance for loan losses Any change in such

regulation and oversight whether in the form of regulatory policy regulations legislation or supervisory action

may have material impact on our operations

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation bylaws and Delaware law as well as federal banking

regulations could delay or prevent takeover of us by third party

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the corporate law of the State of Delaware

could delay defer or prevent third party from acquiring us despite the possible benefit to our shareholders or

otherwise adversely affect the price of our common stock These provisions include supermajority voting

requirements for certain business combinations the election of directors to staggered terms of three years and

advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors and for proposing matters that

shareholders may act on at shareholder meetings In addition we are subject to Delaware laws including one that

prohibits us from engaging in business combination with any interested shareholder for period of three
years

from the date the person became an interested shareholder unless certain conditions are met These provisions may

discourage potential takeover attempts discourage bids for our common stock at premium over market price or

adversely affect the market price of and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock These

provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other shareholders to elect

directors other than the candidates nominated by our Board

We currently are unable to pay dividends on our common stock

In the third quarter of 2010 we exercised our right to defer regularly scheduled interest payments on our

outstanding junior subordinated debentures related to trust preferred securities We also elected to defer payment of

the quarterly cash dividend on our Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series issued to the U.S

Treasury Department in connection with the Corporations participation in the Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase

Program Distributions on the trust preferred securities and dividends on the preferred stock are cumulative We

may not pay any cash dividends on our common stock until we have paid all missed interest and dividend payments

on our outstanding junior subordinated debentures and preferred stock In addition cash dividends from the Bank

are the primary source of funds for interest and dividend payments on our junior subordinated debentures and

preferred stock and for payment of cash dividends to our shareholders Under the Consent Order issued by the

0CC the Bank is currently prohibited from paying cash dividends without the prior consent of the 0CC We
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anticipate that the 0CC will not approve any capital distributions by the Bank until the Bank demonstrates

consistent profitability and in such event only if the Bank remains well capitalized

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable as the Company is smaller reporting company

Item Properties

The Corporation owns two banking offices and an operations center in Jnion South Carolina one banking

office in Winnsboro South Carolina two banking offices in Rock Hill South Carolina and banking office in each

of Laurens Jonesville and Simpsonville South Carolina The net book value of the Corporations investment in

premises and equipment totaled approximately $3.2 million at December 31 2012 See Note of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements All property is in good condition and meets the operating needs of the

Corporatioi

Item Le2al Proceedings

Neither Provident Community Bancshares nor the Bank is engaged in any legal proceedings of material

nature at the present time From time to time the Bank is involved in routine legal proceedings occurnng in the

ordinary course of business wherein it enforces the Banks security interest in mortgage loans the Bink has made

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART II

Item Market for Re2istrants Common EQuity Related Stockholder .Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Eciuity Securities

Common Stock Information

Provident Community Bancshares Inc.s common stock was listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under

the symbol PCBS until November 2011 at which point it began to be quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin

Board As of March 15 2013 there were 657 shareholders of record and 1790599 shares of common stock issued

and outstanding

The following table contains the range of high and low sales prices of Provident Community Bancshares

common stock as reported by the Nasdaq Capital Market prior to November 2011 and by the Over-the-Counter

Bulleting Board beginning November 2011 and per share dividend as declared during each qater of the last

two calendar years

2012 High Low Dividend

Fourth Quarter $0.45 $0.16

Third Quarter 0.28 0.16

Secofld Quarter 0.68 0.15

First Quarter 0.89 0.10
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2011 High Low Dividend

Fourth Quarter $0.61 $0.12

Third Quarter 0.65 0.38

Second Quarter 0.94 0.47

First Quarter 2.22 0.58

Provident Community Bancshares is subject to the requirements of Delaware law which generally limits

dividends to an amount equal to the excess of the net assets of Provident Community Bancshares the amount by

which total assets exceed total liabilities over its statutory capital or if there is no excess to its net profits for the

current year and the immediately preceding fiscal year See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

information regarding certain limitations imposed on the Banks ability to pay cash dividends to the holding

company Further under the Consent Order the Bank is prohibited from paying cash dividend to the Company

without prior regulatory approval

As part of the Companys participation in the Capital Purchase Program of the U.S Department of

Treasurys Troubled Asset Relief Program prior to the earlier of March 2012 or the date on which the preferred

stock issued in that transaction has been redeemed in full or the Treasury has transferred its shares to non-affiliates

the Company cannot increase its quarterly cash dividend above $0.03 per share without prior approval by the

Treasury In July 2010 the Company exercised its right to defer the regularly scheduled quarterly distribution on its

$12.4 million in subordinated debentures related to its two outstanding trust preferred security issuances and its

regular quarterly cash dividend on its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series issued to the U.S

Treasury Department in connection with the Companys participation in the Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase

Program The Company is prohibited from any dividends to its holders of common stock until it resumes payment

of such obligations

Purchases of Equity Securities By Issuer

In May 2005 the Corporation implemented share repurchase program under which the Corporation may

repurchase up to 5% of the outstanding shares or 98000 shares In August 2006 the program was expanded by an

additional 5% or 92000 shares As of December 31 2012 37120 shares remained available for repurchase under

the plan However as part of the Companys participation in the Capital Purchase Program of the U.S Department

of Treasurys Troubled Asset Relief Program prior to the earlier of March 2012 or the date on which the

preferred stock issued in that transaction has been redeemed in full or the Treasury has transferred its shares to non

affiliates the Company cannot repurchase any shares of its common stock without the prior approval of the

Treasury The Company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock in the fourth quarter of 2012
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Item Selected Financial Data

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Operations Data

Interest income $11232 $14025 $16653 $20899 $22785

Interest expense 3589 5.483 8.211 11.593 13.206

Net interest income 7643 8542 8442 9306 9579

Provision for loan losses 704 990 9090 8.695 4.210

Net interest loss income after provision

for loan losses 6939 7552 648 611 5369

Other income 3958 3309 3488 34 3684
Other expense 10.579 11.026 11.939 12.047 10.046
Income loss before income taxes 318 165 9099 11402 993
Income tax expense benefit _44Q 25 4715 4.011 2f
Net loss 122 190 13814 7391 397
Preferred stock dividends and accretion 476 475 475 382

Loss available to common shares 598 665 $14289 7773 397

Net loss per common share basic $0.33 $0.37 $7.98 $4.34 $0.22
Net loss per common share diluted $0.33 $0.37 $7.98 $4.34 $0.22
Dividends paid per common shares $0.06 $0.46

Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding basic 1790599 1790599 1790599 1789743 1784412

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding diluted 1790599 1790599 1790599 1789743 1784412

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Financial Condition Dollars In Thousands

Assets $349942 $376645 $408718 $457003 $434218

Cash and due from banks 29059 23893 24865 15631 21370

Securities 169214 165878 148469 151750 102848

Loans net 123414 156019 198896 250420 278665

Deposits 277481 283249 313128 332762 306821

Advances from Federal Home Loan

Bank and other borrowings 37500 59500 59500 64500 69500

Securities sold under agreement to

repurchase 6280 5268 10028 18520 19005

Floating rate junior subordinated

deferrable interest debentures 12372 12372 12372 12372 12372

Shareholders equity 12208 12470 10269 26121 23924

Other Selected Data

Average interest rate spread 2.26% 2.39% 2.12% 2.13% 2.37%

Net interest margin 2.31 2.46 2.14 2.20 2.51

Lossretumonaverageassets 0.03 0.05 3.16 1.61 0.10

Loss return on average shareholders

equity 0.98 1.72 56.15 28.89 1.46

Operating expense to average assets 3.02 2.81 2.75 2.25 2.33

Ratio of average shareholders equity to

average assets 3.41 2.82 5.63 5.62 6.60
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Item Mana2ements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies

The Corporation has adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America in the preparation of financial statements The

significant accounting policies of the Corporation are described in the footnotes to the consolidated financial

statements

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by management that could have

material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities Management considers such accounting

policies to be critical accounting policies The judgments and assumptions used by management are based on

historical experience and other factors which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Because of the

nature of the judgments and assumptions made by management actual results could differ from these judgments and

estimates which could have material impact on the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the results of

operations of the Corporation

Allowance for Loan Losses

We consider our accounting policies related to the allowance for loan losses to be critical as these policies

involve considerable subjective judgment and estimation by management The allowance for loan losses is

established through provision for loan losses charged to expense Our allowance for loan losses methodology is

based on historical loss experience by loan type specific homogeneous risk pools and specific loss allocations Our

process
for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for losses is designed to account for asset

deterioration as it occurs The provision for loan losses reflects loan quality trends including the levels of and

trends related to nonaccrual loans potential problem loans criticized loans and loans charged-off or recovered

amount other factors

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses relating

to specifically
identified loans as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan portfolio based

on an evaluation of the collectability of existing loans and prior loss experience This evaluation also takes into

consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio quality

review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers ability to pay The

evaluation also includes component for expected losses on groups of loans that are related to future events or

expected changes in economic conditions While management uses the best information available to make its

evaluation future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic

conditions In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the

Corporations allowance for loan losses and may require the Corporation to make additions to the allowance based

on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations

The allowance consists of specific general and unallocated components The specific component relates to

loans that are classified as impaired substandard or special mention For such loans that are also accounted for as

impaired an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market

price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan The general component covers non-

classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors An unallocated

component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect managements estimate of probable losses The

unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions

used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio

The general allocated segment for loan loss calculation includes stratification of loan categories

subdivided by residential mortgage commercial commercial real estate and consumer loans These stratifications

are further divided in individual segments by call report groupings The portfolio is segregated into risk-similar

segments for which historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for identified changes in current portfolio

characteristics The allowance for each portfolio segment is developed from combination of factors that reflects

managements best judgment of the extent to which environmental factors current trends and historical loss levels
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are more or less accurate indicators of current losses in the portfolio Each category is rated for all loans including

pass rated groups special mention loans and adversely classified non-impaired credits The weights assigned to

each performing group is developed from previous loan loss experience and as the loss experience changes the

category weight is adjusted accordingly In addition as the amount of loans in each category increases and

decreases the provision for loan loss calculation adjusts accordingly Recovery of the carrying value of loans is

dependent to some extent on the future economic environment and operating and other conditions that may be

beypnd the Corporations control Unanticipated future adverse changes in such conditions could result in material

adjustments to allowance and future results of operation

Loans are placed on non-accrual status depending upon the type of loan the past due status and the

collections activities in progress Well-secured loans in the process of collection remain on an accrual basis until

they become 90 days past due Partially secured loans are written downto the collateral value and placed on non-

accrual status on or before becoming 90 days past due Unsecured commercial loans are charged off on or before

the date they become 90 days past due Consumer loans are charged off or written down to the fair value of

collateral on or before becoming 90 days past due past due loan may not be considered impaired if it is expected

that the delay in payment is minimal Interest payments are applied to the principal balance on non-accrual loans

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual status or charged.off are

reversed against interest income The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery

method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are rçturned to accrual status when all the principal and interest

amounts contractually due are brought current and fljture payments are reasonably assured

loan is considered impaired when in managements judgment based on current information and events

it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when

due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining

impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and

interest payments when due Management determines when loans become impaired through its normal loan

administration and review functions Loans identified as non-accrual are potentially impaired loans Loans that

experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired provided

that management expects to collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual interest rate for the

period of delay Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the

present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable

market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Large groups of smaller balance

homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for loss and general reserve is established accordingly

We review each impaired loan on loan-by-loan basis to determine whether the impairment shuld be

recorded as charge-off or reserve based on our assessment of the status of the borrower and the un1lerlying

collateral Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the

loans effective interest rate or as practical matter at the loans observable market value or fair value of the

collateral less cost to sell if the loan is collateral dependent If the resulting value of the impaired non-collateral loan

is less than the recorded balance the impairment must be recognized by creating valuation allowance for the

difference and recognizing corresponding bad debt expense The amount of impairment if any and any

subsequent changes are included in the allowance for loan losses The risk characteristics used to aggregate loans

are collateral type borrowers financial condition and geographic location Impairment of collateral dependent

loan is immediately charged-off against the allowance for loan and lease losses unless the fair value was based on

an internal valuation pending receipt of third party appraisal or other extenuating circumstances Consumer loans

are charged-off generally based on pre-defined past due periods See Notes and of the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements included in this annual report for detailed description of the Corporations estimation process

and methodology related to allowance for loans losses

Fair Value Measurements

number of valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities in our

financial statements These include quoted market prices for securities interest rate valuations based on the

modeling of termination values adjusted for credit spreads with counterparties and appraisals of real estate from
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independent licensed appraisers among other valuation techniques Fair value measures for assets and liabilities

where there exists limited or no observable market data are based primarily on estimates and are often calculated

based on the economic and competitive environment the characteristics of the asset or liability and other

factors Therefore the results cannot be determined with precision and may not be realized in an actual sale or

immediate settlement of the asset or liability Additionally there are inherent weaknesses in any calculation

technique and changes in the underlying assumptions used including discount rates and estimates of future cash

flows could significantly affect the results of current or future values Significant changes in the aggregate fair

value of assets or liabilities required to be measured at fair value or for impairment will be recognized in the

statement of operations See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

OTTI

The evaluation and recognition of OTTI on certain investments including our private label mortgage-

backed securities and other corporate debt security holdings requires significant judgment and estimates Some of

the more critical judgments supporting the evaluation of OTT include projected cash flows including prepayment

assumptions default rates and seventies of losses on the underlying collateral within the security See Note to the

financial statements for the disclosure of certain of the assumptions used as well as OTT recognized in the financial

statements for the year ended December 31 2011

Income Taxes

Some of the more critical judgments supporting the deferred tax asset amount include judgments about the

recovery of these accrued tax benefits Deferred income tax assets are recorded to reflect the tax effect of the

difference between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities These differences result in future deductible

amounts that are dependent on the generation of future taxable income through operations or the execution of tax

planning strategies Due to the doubt of our ability to utilize the portion of the deferred tax asset that is not able to

be offset against net operating loss carry
backs and reversals of future taxable temporary differences projected to

occur management established valuation allowance for the portion of the net deferred tax asset that is not

recoverable through loss carrybacks We have evaluated the reasonability of our net deferred tax asset based on

forecasts of future income over three year period existence of feasible tax planning strategies and the assessments

of current and future economic business conditions Based on these evaluations we have recorded valuation

allowance of $8.0 million to reduce the recorded deferred tax asset to net realizable value We believe it is more

likely than not that we will be able to utilize the remaining deferred tax assets of $1.4 million to reduce our tax

expense in future periods
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Average Balances Interest and Average Yields/Cost

The following table sets forth certain information for the periods indicated regarding average balances of assets and liabilities the total dollar

amounts of interest income from average interest-earning assets and interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities and average yields and costs

Such yields and costs for the periods indicated are derived by dividing income or expense by the average monthly balance of assets or liabilities respectively for

the periods presented

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost

Dollars in thousands

Balance Interest Yield/Cost

Interest-earning assets

Loans receivable net $142484 $7335 5.15% $179389 $9039 5.04% $230279 $11572

Mortgage-backed securities 60010 1371 2.28 77516 2547 3.29 42777 1615
Investment securities

Taxable 108898 2509 2.30 77998 2416 3.10 96838 3256
Nontaxable -- -- -- -- -- -- 3792 174

Total investment securities 108 898 2509 2.30 77998 2416 3.10 100630 3430

Deposits and federal funds sold 20.619 17 0.08 22458 23 0.09 20.909 36

Total interest-earning assets 332011 11232 3.38 357361 14025 3.92 394595 16653

Non-interest-earning assets 32.936 34.762 42.280

Total assets $364947 $43fu175

Interest-bearing liabilities

Savings accounts

Negotiable order of withdrawal accounts

$29067

104522

101

354

0.35

0.34

$27907

114365

137

734

0.49

0.64

24596

122438

203

2009
Certificate accounts 119754 860 0.72 136334 1683 1.23 157296 2875
FHLB advances and other borrowings 66.697 2.274 3.41 78.372 2.929 3.74 86.009 3124

Total interest-bearing liabilities 320040 3589 1.12 356978 5483 1.54 390339 8211

Noninterest-bearing sources

Non-interest-bearing deposits 28435 20468 18775

Non-interest-bearing liabilities 4013 3.612 3.161

Total liabilities 352488 381058 412275
Shareholders equity 12.459 11.065 24.600

Total liabilities and shareholders

Equity 5392.123

Net interest income $L542 $.L442

Interest rate spread 2.26% 2.38% 2.12%

Impact of noninterest-bearing sources Q.05 0.09 0.02

Net interest margin 2.3 1% 2.47% 2.14%

Ratio of average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities .04x .OOx .Olx

5.03%

3.78

3.36

4.61

3.41

0.17

4.22

0.83

1.64

1.83

3.63

2.10

Average balance of loans includes non-accruing loans Interest income includes deferred loan fees and does not include interest on nonaccrual loans

Represents difference between weighted average yield on all interest-earning assets and weighted average rate on all interest-bearing liabilities

Represents the reduction of non-interest bearing deposits on total deposit funding costs

Represents net interest income before provision for loan losses as percentage of average interest-earning assets



Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in interest income and interest

expense
of the Corporation for the periods indicated For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities information is provided on changes attributable to changes in volume changes in volume

multiplied by prior rate and changes in rate changes in rate multiplied by prior volume The net change

attributable to the combined impact of rate and volume has been allocated to rate and volume variances

consistently on proportionate basis

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31
2012 vs 2011 2011 vs 2010

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Dollars in Thousands

Change in interest income

Loans 1859 155 1704 2558 25 2533
Mortgage-backed securities 575 602 1178 1312 378 934

Investment securities 579 490 89 805 224 1029
Total interest income 1856 937 2793 2051 577 2628

Change in interest expense

Deposits 232 1007 1239 488 2045 2533
Borrowings and other 436 219 655 277 82 195

Total interest expense 668 1226 1894 765 1963 2728

Change in net interest income
... 1188 289 899 1286 1386 100

Includes fed funds and overnight deposits

Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

The Corporation recorded net loss to common shareholders for the
year

ended December 31 2012 of

$598000 compared to net loss of $665000 for the year ended December 31 2011 Net loss to common

shareholders per share was $0.33 per share basic and diluted for the year
ended December 31 2012 compared

to $0.37 per share basic and diluted for the
year

ended December 31 2011 The decrease in the loss in 2012

was primarily due to lower provision for loan losses in 2012 due primarily to net reduction in total loans of

$32.6 million no other-than-temporary impairment of securities compared to $432000 for the twelve months

ended December 31 2011 and decrease of $833000 in expenses primarily related to the holding and

disposition of foreclosed properties These improvements to net income were partially offset by reduction in net

interest income due primarily to lower loan balances due to economic conditions and higher underwriting

standards along with an increase in income tax expense due to write-downs of deferred tax assets and tax credits

to fair market value Net interest income before the loan loss provision for the year ended December 31 2012

decreased $899000 or 10.5% to $7.6 million compared to $8.5 million for the previous year

Interest Income Total interest income decreased $2.8 million or 19.9% from $14.0 million for the

year ended December 31 2011 to $11.2 million for the year ended December 31 2012 Interest income on loans

decreased $1.7 million or 18.9% from $9.0 million for 2011 to $7.3 million for 2012 due primarily to decrease

in the average balance of loans due to significant decline in loan originations due to higher underwriting

standards and slower demand offset by an 11 basis point increase in the yield on loans Interest income on

deposits federal funds sold and investment securities decreased $1.1 or 21.8% from $5.0 million for 2011 to

$3.9 million for 2012 The decrease was due primarily to lower investment yields due to declining market

interest rates offset by higher average balances of taxable investment securities deposits and federal funds sold
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Interest Expense Interest expense decreased $1.9 million from $5.5 million for 2011 to $3.6 million for

2012 Interest expense decreased $1.2 million for deposits and decreased $655000 for other borrowings and

floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures Interest expense decreased due to lower market

interest rates and lower average balances

Provision for Loan Losses We have developed policies and procedures for evaluating the overall quality

of our credit portfolio and the timely identification of potential problem credits The Board of Directors reviews

and approves the appropriate level for our allowance for loan losses quarterly based upon managements

recommendations the results of the internal monitoring and reporting system quarterly external independent loan

reviews and the analysis of economic conditions in our local markets Additions to the allowance for loan losses

which are expensed as the provision for loan losses on our income statement are periodically made to maintain the

allowance at an appropriate level based on our analysis of the potential risk in the loan portfolio Loan losses

which include write downs and charge offs are charged directly to the allowance while recoveries are credited

against the allowance The amount of the provision is function of the size and composition of loans outstanding

the level of non-performing loans historical loan loss experience the amount of loan losses actually charged

against the reserve during the given period and current and anticipated economic conditions

Our allowance for loan losses is based upon judgments and assumption of risk elements in the portfolio

future economic conditions and other factors affecting borrowers The process includes identification and analysis

of loss potential in various portfolio segments utilizing credit risk grading process and specific reviews and

evaluations of significant problem credits In addition we monitor overall portfolio quality through observable

trends in delinquencies charge-offs and general and economic conditions in the market area The adequacy of the

allowance for loan losses and the effectiveness of our monitoring and analysis system are also revieived

periodically by the banking regulators which may require that we increase the allowance for loan losses Risks are

inherent in making all loans including risks with respect to the period of time over which loans may be repaid

risks resulting from changes in economic and industry conditions risks inherent in dealing with individual

borrowers and in the case of collateralized loan risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of the

collateral

Our judgment about the adequacy of the allowance is based upon number of assumptions about future

events which we believe to be reasonable but which may not prove to be accurate Thus charge-offs in future

periods could exceed the allowance for loan losses or substantial additional increases in the allowance for loan

losses could be required Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result in decrease of our net income

and our capital Based on present information we believe the allowance for loan losses is adequate at December

31 2011 to meet presently known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio See Item 1-Business Lending

Activities-Allowance for Loan Losses for more information on the determination of the allowance for loan losses

The provision for loan losses decreased from $990000 for 2011 to $704000 for 2012 primarily due to

decrease in net loans of $32.6 million $7.6 million decrease in non-performing loans and lower write-downs and

charge-offs Non-performing assets decreased $7.6 million from $34.1 million at December 31 2011 to $26.5

million at December 31 2012 The majority of this decrease relates primarily to reductions in commercial and

construction real estate non-performing loans that have been affected by the downturn in the residential housing

market Slow housing conditions have affected these borrowers ability to sell the completed projects in timely

maimer Management continues to evaluate and assess all non-performing assets on regular basis as part of its

well-established loan monitoring and review process At December 31 2012 criticized and classified loans

including non-performing loans totaled $29.2 million compared to $32.1 million at September 30 2012 and

$38.0 million at December 31 2011 Management has sought to provide an amount estimated to be necessary to

maintain an allowance for loan losses that is adequate to cover the level of loss that management believed to be

inherent in the portfolio as whole taking into account the Banks experience economic conditions and

information about borrowers available at the time of the analysis However if economic conditions in the Banks

market areas are worse than currently anticipated especially with respect to real estate related activities and real

property values further provisions for loan losses could be needed in the future
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The Bank experienced loan charge-offs net of recoveries of approximately $886000 for 2012

compared to $3.8 million for 2011 The loan charge-offs for 2012 related primarily to write-downs of

commercial loans The allowance for loan losses to total loans at December 31 2012 was 3.42% compared to

2.83% at December 31 2011 The allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans at December 31 2012 was

33.1% compared to 27.1% at December 31 2011

Our non-accrual loans totaled $13 .2 million at December 31 2012 compared to $16.8 million at

December 31 2011 While management uses the best information available to establish the allowance for loan

losses future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the

assumptions used in making the valuations Such adjustments would be made in the relevant period and may be

material to the financial statements

Non-Interest Income

Dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 %Change

Net gain on sale of investments $1259 $1125 11.9%

Fees for financial services 2680 2584 3.7

Otherthan-temporary-impairment write-down on

securities -- 432 100.0

Other fees net 32 40.6

Total non-interest income $3958 53.309 i96

The increase in non-interest income was due primarily to no other than temporary impairment charges

for the current yercompared to $432000 for the year ended December 31 2011 along with higher gain on sale

of investment securities The OTTI charges in 2011 relate tO write-downs recorded on pooled trust preferred

securities as resilt of projected shortfalls of interest and principal payments in the cash flow analysis of the

securities Gains on sale of investments were $1.3 million for 2012 as the Bank sold $51.3 million in AFS

investment securities to betthr position the investment portfolio for the potential of rising interest rates The Bank

decreased its level of mortgage-backed securities for the year ended December 31 2012 to $41.2 million

compared to $74.1 million for the period ended December 31 2011 This decrease was partially offset with

increases in government sponsored enterprises securities to $123.7 million at December 31 2012 compared to

$87.5 million at December 31 2011 Fees for financial services increased primarily due to higher fees from return

check charges as result of an increase in checking account fees

Non-Interest Expense

Dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 %Change

Compensation and employee benefits 4181 4135 1.1%

Occupancy and equipment 2573 2532 1.6

Deposit insurancepremiums 899 717 25.4

Professional services 723 581 24.4

Advertising and public relations 39 32 21.9

OREO and loan operations 878 1711 48.7

Telephone 177 182 2.7
Items processing 260 294 11.6

Other 849 842 0.8

Total non-interest
expense $10579 511.026
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Compensation and employee benefits increased 1.1% or $46000 compared to the year ended December

31 2011 due primarily to normal annual salary increases Occupancy and equipment expenses increased 1.6% or

$41000 due primarily to higher system maintenance expense Deposit insurance premiums increased 25.4% or

$182000 due primarily to higher FDIC assessments offset by reduction in total deposits Professional services

expense increased 24.4% or $142000 due primarily to higher legal audit and consultant expense OREO and

loan operations costs decreased $833000 or 48.7% due to lower disposition costs associated with foreclosed

real estate properties Items processing expense decreased $34000 or 11.6% due to lower NOW account

balances as result of interest rate reductions

Income Tax Expense Expense for income taxes for the twelve months ended December 31 2012 was

$440000 as compared to $25000 for the same period in 2011 The current year expense primarily includes

$145000 for write-down of tax credits to the fair market value and $260000 for the write-down of deferred tax

assets The Corporation has net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $30.0 million which will expire

by December 31 2030 if not utilized to offset taxable income prior to that date Therefore federal income tax

expense is not being recognized on taxable income

Financial Condition Liquidity and Capital Resources

Financial Condition

Assets At December 31 2012 assets totaled $349.9 million decrease of $26.7 million or 7.1% as

compared to $376.6 million at December 31 2011 In 2011 and as part of its strategic plan the Corporation

implemented program to shrink its balance sheet to increase its regulatory capital ratios This shrinkage was

accomplished with reductions in borrowings and higher cost deposits and was primarily funded with reductions in

loans Cash and cash equivalents increased $5.2 million to $29.1 million from $23.9 million at December 31

2011 The increase was due primarily to an increase in federal funds sold as result of funds invested with

proceeds from sales and maturities of securities and loan payments offset by reduction in interest earning

balances with the Federal Reserve as result of reduction in deposit balances Investment and mortgage-backed

securities increased $3.3 million to $169.2 million from $165.9 million at December 31 2011 as result of funds

invested with the proceeds from the reduction of loans In addition the Corporation sold $51.3 million in

investment securities to better position the inyestment portfolio for the potential of rising interest rates The

Corporation decreased its level of mortgage-backed securities for the year ended December 31 2012 to $41.2

million compared to $74.1 million for the period ended December 31 2011 This decrease was partially offset

with increases in government sponsored enterprises securities to $123.7 million at December 31 2012 compared

to $87.5 million at December 31 2011

Total loans net decreased $32.6 million or 20.9% to $123.4 million at December 31 2012 from

$156.0 million at December 31 2011 The decrease was due to significant reduction in loan demand as result

of economic conditions currently present in South Carolina and higher underwriting standards Consumer loans

decreased $4.0 million or 10.7% during 2012 commercial loans decreased $26.3 million or 23.8% and

residential mortgage loans decreased $2.6 million or 20.9%

OREO increased $776000 to $9.2 million at December 31 2012 from $8.4 million at December 31

2011 primarily as result of the transfer of two bank properties totaling $1.3 million Bank properties that are no

longer in use and are for sale are required to be removed from fixed assets and transferred to OREO OREO is

carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value Fair value is based upon independent market prices appraised

values of the collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral The properties are being

actively marketed and maintained with the primary objective of liquidating the collateral at level which most

accurately approximates fair market value and allows
recovery

of as much of the balance as possible The

carrying value of these assets are believed to be representative of their fair market value although there can be no

assurance that the ultimate proceeds from the sale of these assets will be equal to or greater than the carrying

values
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FHLB stock decreased $1.1 million or 33.0% to $2.3 million at December 31 2012 from $3.4 million

at December 31 2011 due to decrease in FHLB borrowings Other assets decreased $936000 or 21.5% to $3.4

million at December 31 2012 from $4.4 million at December 31 2011 due primarily to decrease in net deferred

tax asset as result of write-down of $260000 and write-down of tax credits of $145000 to fair market

value

Liabilities Total liabilities decreased $26.4 million or 7.3% to $337.7 million at December 31 2012

from $364.2 million at December 31 2011 Total deposits decreased $5.8 million or 2.0% from $283.2 million

at December 31 2011 to $277.5 million at December 31 2012 Time deposits decreased $7.7 million or 6.2%

from $124.9 million at December 31 2011 to $117.2 million at December 31 2012 and transaction deposit

accounts increased $1.9 million or 1.2% from $158.4 million at December 31 2011 to $160.3 million at

December 31 2012 The decrease in time deposits was due primarily to falling interest rates FHLB borrowings

decreased $22.0 million or 37.0% from $59.5 million at December 31 2011 to $37.5 million at December 31
2012 due to the pay-down of these instruments Securities sold under agreement to repurchase increased $1.0

million or 19.2% from $5.3 million at December 31 2011 to $6.3 million at December31 2012

Shareholders Equity Shareholders equity decreased $262000 or 2.1% to $12.2 million at December

31 2012 from $12.5 million at December 31 2011 primarily due to unrealized holding losses on securities

available for sale arising during the period of $641000 less reclassification adjustment for gains in net loss of

$781000 along with net operating loss of$122000

Liquidity

Liquidity is the ability to meet demand for loan disbursements deposit withdrawals repayment of debt

payment of interest on deposits and other operating expenses The primary sources of liquidity are deposits loan

sales and repayments borrowings maturities prepayment and sales of securities and interest payments

The Bank incorporates liquidity management forecasting model to ensure adequate liquidity is

maintained for current and future funding needs The model projects forecasted loan growth for three and six

month periods and projects funds that will be provided from deposits investments and loan prepayments Any

projected shortfalls would utilize alternative funding sources such as available borrowing lines from the fed

discount window or fed funds lines from other correspondent banks

While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds

deposit outflows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates economic conditions

and competition The primary investing activities of the Bank are the origination of commercial and consumer

loans and the purchase of investment and mortgage-backed securities These activities are funded primarily by

principal and interest payments on loans and investment securities deposit growth securities sold under

agreements to repurchase and the utilization of FHLB advances During 2012 the Bank originated $8.6 million

in loans At December 31 2012 the Banks holdings of investment and mortgage-backed securities totaled

$169.2 million all of which was available for sale Approximately $62.7 million and $85.1 million of investment

securities at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively were pledged as collateral to secure

deposits of the State of South Carolina and Union Laurens and York counties along with additional borrowings

and repurchase agreements

During 2012 total deposits decreased $5.8 million Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of

interest rates the interest rates and products offered by the Corporation and its local competitors and other

factors The Bank closely monitors its liquidity position on daily basis Certificates of deposit which are

scheduled to mature in one year or less from December 31 2012 totaled $79.6 million The Bank relies primarily

on competitive rates customer service and long-standing relationships with customers to retain deposits From

time to time the Bank will also offer competitive special products to its customers t9 increase retention and to

attract new deposits Based upon the Banks experience with deposit retention and current retention strategies

management believes that although it is not possible to predict future terms and conditions upon renewal
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significant portion of such deposits will remain with the Bank If the Bank requires funds beyond its ability to

generate them internally additional external sources of funds are available through F1-LB advances lines of

credit and wholesale deposits At December 31 2012 the Bank had outstanding $37.5 million of FHLB

borrowings and $6.3 million of securities sold under agreements tO repurchase At December 31 2012 the Bank

had unused short-term secured lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks totaling $4.0 million

and the ability to borrow an additional $32.5 million from secured borrowing lines Lines of credit are available

on one-to-ten day basis for general purposes of the Bank All of the lenders have reserved the right to withdraw

these lines at their option

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information about comræitments and

contingencies

Parent Company Liquidity

Provident Community Bancshares Inc is separate legal entity from the Bank and must provide for its

own liquidity In addition to its operating expenses Provident Community Bancshares is responsible for paying

any dividends declared to its shareholders and paying the obligations on its outstanding debentures and preferred

stock The Corporation did not pay cash dividends to common shareholders in 2012 or 2011 The payment of

cash dividends for common shares was suspended after the first quarter of 2009 to retain capital and it is

unknown at this time when or if the program will resume In July 2010 the Corporation exercised its right to

defer the regularly scheduled quarterly distribution on its $12.3 million in subordinated debentures related to its

two outstanding trust preferred security issuances and its regular quarterly cash dividend on its Fixed Rate

Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series issued to the U.S Treasury Department in connection with the

Companys participation in the Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase Program The Corporation is prohibited from

any dividends to its holders of common stock until it resumes payment of such obligations Provident

Community Bancshares primary sources of income are proceeds that it retained from its offering of preferred

stock and dividends received from the Bank The amount of dividends that the Bank may declare and pay to

Provident Community Bancshares in any calendar year without the receipt of prior approval from the Office of

the Comptroller of the Currency cannot exceed retained net income for that year combined with retained net

income for two years less any transfers to surplus and capital distributions Further under the Consent Order the

Bank is prohibited from paying cash dividend to the Corporation without prior regulatory approval At

December 31 2012 Provident Community Bancshares Inc had liquid assets of $82000

Capital Resources

The Bank is required by the consent order to maintain Tier capital at least equal to 8% of adjusted total

assets and total capital of at least 12% of risk-weighted assets So long as the Bank is subject to the enforcement

action executed with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency on December 21 2010 it will not be deemed

to be well-capitalized even if it maintains the minimum capital ratios to be well-capitalized unless it achieves the

higher thresholds required by the consent order At December 31 2012 the Bank did not meet the higher tier

capital requirements required by the consent order and is evaluating alternatives to increase capital The Banks

capital category as of December 31 2012 is determined solely to apply the prompt corrective action restrictions

and the Banks capital category as of December 31 2012 may not constitute an accurate representation of the

Banks overall financial condition or prospects See Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion of these capital requirements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of operations the Corporation engages in variety of.financial transactions that in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles are not recorded in its financial statements These

transactions involve to varying degrees elements of credit interest rate and liquidity risk Such transactions are

used primarily to manage customers requests for funding and take the form of legally binding agreements to lend

money to customers at predetermined interest rates for specified period of time Outstanding loan commitments

including commitments to fund credit lines totaled $15.3 million at December 31 2012 Management of the
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Corporation anticipates that it will have sufficient funds available to meet its current loan commitments Each

customers credit worthiness is evaluated on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if deemed

necessary by the Corporation upon extension of credit is based on the credit evaluation of the borrower

Col1aera1 varies but may include accounts receivable inventory property plant and equipment commercial and

residential real estate The credit risk on these commitments is managed by subjecting each customer to normal

underwriting and risk management processes

At December 31 2012 the unused portion of credit lines was $15.3 million Funding for these

commitments is expected to be provided from deposits loan and mortgage-backed securities principal

repayments maturing investments and income generated
from operations

For the year ended December 31 2012 the Corporation did not engage in any off-balance sheet

transactions reasonably likely to have material effect on its financial condition results of operation and cash

flows

Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes future contractual obligations

_____________________ Payments_Due_by_Period

Within Over one to Over two to Over three to After five

one year two years
three years five years years Total

Contractual Obligations

in thousands

Certificate accounts $79585 $34482 $1704 1396 -- $117167

Borrowings -- -- -- 24000 13500 37500

Operating leases 486 486 486 973 962 3.393

Total $80071 $349 $2.190 $26369 $14462 $158.060

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which require the measurement of

financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the relative

purchasing power of money over time due to inflation Unlike industrial companies virtually all of the assets and

liabilities of financial institution are monetary in nature As result interest rates have more significant impact

on financial institutions performance than the effects of general levels of inflation Interest rates do not

necessarily move in the same direction or in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services However

non-interest expenses
do reflect general levels of inflation

Item 7A Quantitative and qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable as issuer is smaller reporting company

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting The internal control process has been designed under our supervision to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Companys

financial statements for external reporting purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America
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Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2012 utilizing the framework established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based

on this assessment management has determined that the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2012 is effective

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that accurately and fairly reflect in reasonable detail transactions and dispositions of

assets ahd provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States receipts

and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the

Company and unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have

materialefTect on the Companys financial statements are prevented or timel detected

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even

those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation and presentation Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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elliottdavis

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

Provident Community Baneshares Inc and Subsidiaries

Rock Hill South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Provident Community Bancshares

Inc and Subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of income loss comprehensive income loss changes in shareholders equity and cash

flows for the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The

Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over

financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as

basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Provident Community Bancshares Inc and Subsidiaries as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then

ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Greenville South Carolina

April 12013
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PROVIDENT CoMMuNITY BANcsHAREs INC AND SuBsIDIAiuEs

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

Shareholders equity

Serial prererred stock no par value authorized 500000 shares

issued and outstanding 9266 at December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011

Common stock $0.01 par value authorized 5000000 shares

issued-

2192958 and outstanding 1790599 shares at December 31 2012

and December 31 2011 respectively

Common stock warrants

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Retained earnings loss substantially restricted

Treasury stock at cost

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8761

20298

169214

123414

9174

2253

771

3180

1248

8210

3419

5349.942

$277481

37500

6280

12372

1148

2.953

337734

9141

14752

165878

156019

8398

3363

689

4787

1340

7923

435
5376.645

2012 2011

Dollars In Thousands

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold

Investments and mortgage-backed securities available for sale

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $4367 in 2012 and

$4549 at December 31 2011

Other real estate owned

Federal Home Loan Bank stock at cost

Federal Reserve Bank stock at cost

Office properties and equipment net

Accrued interest receivable

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies Notes 12 and 17

$283249

59500

5268

12372

1028

2.758

364175

9260 9255

20 20

25

12919

527
3189
6300
12208

$349942

25

12919

387
3062
6300
12470

$376645
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PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANcsHARES INC AND SuBsIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STA TEMENTSOF INCOME Loss

Years Ended

December 31
2012 2011

In Thousands Except Per Share Data

Interest Income

Loans $7335 $9039

Deposits and federal funds sold 17 23

Securities available for sale

Other investments taxable 3787 4885

FHLB/FRB stock dividends 93 78

Total interest income 11232 14.025

Interest Expense

Deposit accounts 1315 2554

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures 277 423

Advances from the FHLB and other borrowings 1.997 2506

Total interest expense
3589 5483

Net Interest Income 7643 8542

Provision for loan losses 704 990

Net interest income loss after provision for loan losses 6939 7552

Non-Interest Income

Fees for financial services 2680 2584

Other fees net 19 32

Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities -- 432
Net gain on sale of investments 1259 1125

Total non-interest income 3958 3309

Non-Interest Expense

Compensation and employee benefits 4181 4135

Occupancy and equipment 2573 2532

Deposit insurance premiums 899 717

Professional services 723 581

Advertising and public relations 39 32

OREO and loan operations
878 1711

Telephone 177 182

Items processing
260 294

Other 849 842

Total non-interest expense 10579 11026

Net income loss before income taxes 318 165

Expense for income taxes 440

Netloss $122 $190

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value and preferred

dividends 476 475

Net loss to common shareholders $598 $665

Net loss per common share basic $0.33 S0.37

Net loss per common share diluted $0.33 $0.37

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding basic 1790.599 1790599

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding diluted 1790.599 1790599

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Loss

Years Ended

December 31
2012 2011

In Thousands

Net loss $122 $190
Other comprehensive income net of tax

Unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale

arising during period net of taxes of $987 and $224 641 2821
Less reclassification adjustment for gains in net loss net of taxes

of $478 and $263 430

Comprehensive loss income S262 220

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANcsHAREs INC AND SuBsIDIARIEs

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

TwELvE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

Preferred Stock Common Stock Retained Accumulated

Common Additional Earnings Other Treasury Total

Stock Paid-In loss Comprehensive Stock Shareholders

Shares Amount Shares Amount Warrants Capital Substantially Income loss At Cost Equity

Restricted

Dollars in Thousands Except Share Data

Balance at December 31 2010 2.2 $9250 1.790.599 $21 $25 S12.919 52.778 5.300 510.269

Net loss 190 -- 190

Other comprehensive loss net

of tax of $987 on unrealized holding

gains arising during period 2821 -- 2821

Less reclassification adjustment for

gains
and other than temporary

Investment charge in net loss
-- 430

430
Comprehensive income -- 2201

Accretion of preferred stock to

redemptionvalue -- -- --

Balance at December31 2011 2.266 S2.255 1.790.599 $21 $25 $12212 512.470

Net loss 122 -- -- 122

Other comprehensive income net

of tax of $224 on unrealized holding

gains arising during period 641 641

Less reclassification adjustment for

gains and other than temporary

investment charge in net loss
-- 781

781
Comprehensive loss

-- 262

Accretion of preferred stock to

redemption value -- -- --

BalanceatDecember3l2012 9266 $9260 $20 $25 512.919 53.189 56.300

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended

December 31
2012 2011

In Thousands

Operating activities

Net loss $l22 $190

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Provision for loan losses 704 990

Amortization of securities 1539 774

Depreciation expense 354 386

Recognition of deferred income net of costs 206 133
Deferral of fee income net of costs 181 151

Other than temporary impairment charge on AFS securities -- 432

Gain on investments 1259 1125
Decrease in accrued interest receivable 92 235

Gain loss on OREO sales 73 73

OREO impairment 753 133
Increase in bank owned life insurance 287 332
Decrease in other assets 1011 571

Increase in accrued interest payable 120 --

Increase in other liabilities 195

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of AFS securities 192801 1583S7
Maturities of AFS securities 122213 5403
Proceeds from the sales of AFS securities 51272 775
Principal repayment on mortgage-backed securities AFS 15485 13413-

Net decrease in loans 29486 3861

Redemption of FHLBIFRB stock 1028 306

Proceeds from sales of OREO net of costs and improvements 2340 13
Purchase of office properties and equipment 103 72
Net cash provided by investing activities 28.920 29.1O

Financing activities

Repayment of term borrowings net 20988 4759
Proceeds from redemption of life insurance -- 1032

Decrease in deposit accounts 5768 29879
Net cash used by financing activities 26756 33607

Net increase decrease in cash and due from banks 5166 972
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 23.893 24865

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S29.059 23893

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC AN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization Provident Community Bancshares Inc Provident Community Bancshares is the bank

holding company for Provident Community Bank N.A national bank the Bank Provident Community

Bancshares and the Bank are collectively referred to as the Corporation in this annual report The Bank founded in

1934 offers complete array of financial products and services through eight full-service banking centers in five

counties in South Carolina including checking savings time deposits individual retirement accounts IRAs
investment services and secured and unsecured consumer loans The Bank originates and services home loans and

provides financing for small businesses and affordable housing

Estimates The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conform to accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practice within the banking industry In

preparing the consolidated financial statements management is required to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses and disclosure of commitments and

contingencies Actual results could differ from those estimates The following summarizes the more significant

policies

Basis of Consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of

Provident Community Bancshares and the Bank All inter-company amounts nd balances have been eliminated in

consolidation

Disclosure Regarding Segments The Corporation reports as one operating segment as the Chief

Executive Officer reviews the results of operations of the Corporation as single enterprise

Advertising Advertising promotional and other business development costs are generally expensed as

incurred External costs incurred in producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes

place External costs relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are

sent

Cash and federal funds sold Cash and federal funds sold include cash on hand and amounts due from

depository institutions federal funds sold and short term interest-earning deposits From time to time the

Corporations cash deposits with other financial institutions may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FDIC insurance limits

Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities The Bank accounts for investment securities in accordance

with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 320

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 320 debt securities that the

Corporation has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity seeurities and

reported at amortized cost Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses

included in earnings Debt and equity securities not classified as either held to maturity or trading securities are

classified as available for sale securities and reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded

from earnings and reported as separate component of shareholders equity No securities have been classified as

trading securities

Purchases and sales of securities are accounted for on settlement date basis Premiums and discounts on

debt securities are amortized or accreted as adjustments to income over the estimated life of the security using

method approximating the level yield method Gains or losses on the sale of securities are based on the specific

identification method The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes If
quoted

market price is not available fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similarsecurities
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Summary of Significant Accoenting Policies continued

Loans Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding Mortgage loans consist principally of

conventional one-to four-family residential loans and interim and permanent financing of non-residential loans that

are secured by real estate Commercial loans are made primarily on the strength of the borrowers general

credit standing the ability to generate repayment from income sources and the collateral securing such loans

Consumer loans generally consist of home equity loans automobile and other personal loans In many lending

transactions collateral is taken to provide an additional measure of security Generally the cash flows or earning

power of the borrower represents the primary source of repayment and collateral liquidation serves as secondary

source of repayment The Bank determines the need for collateral on case-by-case or product-by-product basis

Factors considered include the current and prospective credit worthiness of the customer terms of the instrument

and economic conditions

The Bank generally originates single-family residential loans within its primary lending area The Banks

underwriting policies require such loans to be 80% loan to value based upon appraised values unless private

mortgage insurance is obtained These loans are secured by the underlying properties Loans receivable that

management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are stated at the

amount of unpaid principal reduced by unearned discount and fees and an allowance for loan losses Unearned

interest on loans is amortized to income over the life of the loan using the interest method For all other Idans

interest is accrued daily on the outstanding balances

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net

amount amortized as an adjustment of the related loans yield The Bank is generally amortizing these amounts over

the contractual life Commitment fees and costs are generally based upon percentage of the customers unused line

of credit and are recognized Over the commitment period when the likelihood of exercise remote If the

commitment is subsequently exercised during the commitment period the remaining unamortized commitment fee

at the time of exercise is recognized over the life of the loan as an adjustment of the yield

Loans are placed on non-accrual status depending upon the type of loan the past due status and the

collections activities in progress Well-secured loans in the process of collection remain on an accrual basis until

they become 90 days past due Partially secured loans are written down to the collateral value and placed on

nonaccrual status on or before becoming 90 days past due Unsecured commercial loans are charged off on or

before the date they become 90 days past due Consumer loans are charged off or written down to the fair value of

collateral on or before becoming 90 days past due past due loan may not be considered impaired if it is expected

the delay in payment is minimal Interest payments are applied to the principal balance on non-accrual loans

Renegotiated loans or Troubled Debt Restructurings TDR are those loans where the borrower is experiencing

financial difficulties and we have agreed to concessions of the terms such as changes in the interest rate charged

and/br other concessions Loans can be removed from nonaccrual status once they have been brought current and

have paid current for at least six months Loans which are classified as TDR may be removed from thiS status the

fiscal year after they have performed current under the restructured payment agreement for period of twelve

consecutive months

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual status or charged off are

reversed against interest income The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery

method until qua1ifing for return to accruaL Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest

amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured

loan is considered impaired when in managements judgment based on current information and events

it is probable that the Bgrik sill be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due

according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining

impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and

interest payments when due Management determines when loans become impaired through its normal loan

administration and review functions Loans identified as nonaccrual are potentially impaired loans Loans that

experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired provided

that management expects to collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual interest rate for the
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

period of delay Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either

the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans

obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Large groups of smaller

balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for loss and general reserve is established accordingly

Loans on non-accrual status as well as real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of

foreclosure are considered non-performing assets

Allowance for Loan Losses We consider our accounting policies related to the allowance for loan losses

to be critical as these policies involve considerable subjective judgment and estimation by management The

allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses charged to expense Our allowance for

loan losses methodology is based on historical loss experience by loan type specific homogeneous risk pools and

specific loss allocations Our process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses is

designed to account for asset deterioration as it occurs The provision for loan losses reflects loan quality trends

including the levels of and trends related to nonaccrual loans potential problem loans criticized loans and loans

charged-off or recovered among other factors

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses relating

to specifically identified loans as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan portfolio based

on an evaluation of the collectability of existing loans and prior loss experience This evaluation also takes into

consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio quality

review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers ability to pay The

allowance for loan loss calculation includes segmentation of loan categories by residential mortgage commercial

and consumer loans Each category is rated for all loans The weights assigned to each performing group are

developed from previous loan loss experience and as the loss experience changes the category weight is adjusted

accordingly As the loan categories increase and decrease in balance the provision for loan loss calculation will

adjust accordingly The evaluation also includes component for probable losses based on hist9rical losses on

groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic conditions While management

uses the best information available to make its evaluation future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if

there are significant changes in economic conditions In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their

examination process periodically review the Banks allowance for loan losses and may require the Bank to make

additions to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their

examinations

The allowance consists of specific general and unallocated components The specific component relates to

loans that are classified as impaired substandard or special mention For such loans that are also accounted for as

impaired an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market

price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan The general component covers non-

classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors An unallocated

component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect managements estimate of probable losses The

unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions

used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio

The general allocated segment for loan loss calculation includes stratification of loan categories

subdivided by residential mortgage commercial commercial real estate and consumer loans These stratifications

are further divided in individual segments by call report groupings The portfolio is segregated into risk-similar

segments for which historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for identified changes in current portfolio

characteristics The allowance for each portfolio segment is developed from combination of factors that reflects

managements best judgment of the extent to which environmental factors current trends and historical loss levels

are more or less accurate indicators of current losses in the portfolio Each category is rated for all loans including

pass
rated groups special mention loans and adversely classified non-impaired credits The weights assigned to

each performing group is developed from previous loan loss experience and as the loss experience changes the

category weight is adjusted accordingly In addition as the amount of loans in each category increases and
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

decreases the provision for loan loss calculation adjusts accordingly Recovery of the carrying value of loans

dependent to sOme extent on the futureeconomic environment and operating and other conditions that may

be beyond the Banks control Unanticipated future adverse changes in such conditions could result in material

adjustments to the allowance and future results of operation

We review each impaired loan on loan-by-loan basis to determine whether the impairment should be

recorded as charge-off or reserve based on our assessment of the status of the borrower and the underlying

collateral Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the

loans effective interest rate or as practical matter at the loans observable market value or fair value of the

collateral less cost to sell if the loan is collateral dependent If the resulting value of the impaired non-collateral loan

is less than the recorded balance the impairment must be recognized creating valuation allowance for the

difference and recognizing corresponding bad debt expense The amount of impairment if 4ny and any

subsequent changes are included in the allowance for loan losses The risk characteristics used to aggregate loans

are collateral type borrowers financial condition and geographic location Impairment of collateral dependent

loan is immediately charged-off against the allowance for loan and lease losses unless the fair value was based on

an internal valuation pending receipt of third party appraisal or other extenuating circumstancesConsümer loans

are charged-off generally based on pre-defined past due periods

Accounting for Impaired Loans Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected

future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate or as practical matter at the loans observable

market value or fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent If the resulting value of the impaired

loan is less than the recorded balance the impairment must be recognized by creating valUation allowance for the

difference and recognizing corresponding bad debt expense The risk characteristics used to aggregate loans are

collateral type borrowers financial condition and geographic location

The Bank generally determines loan to be impaired at the time management believes that it is probable

that the principal and interest may be uncollectible Management has determined that generally failure to make

payment within 90-day period constitutes minimum delay or shortfall and does not generally constitute an

impaired loan However management reviews each past due loan and may determine loan to be impaired prior to

the loan becoming over 90 days past due depending upon the circumstances of that particular loan The Baiiks

policy for charge-off of impaired loans is on loan-by-loan basis The Banks policy is to evaluate impaired loans

based on the fair value of the collateral Interest income from impaired loans is recorded using the cash method At

December 31 2012 impaired loans totaled $25.8 million and the Corporation had recognized no inttret income

from impaired loans The average balance in impaired loans was $29.2 million for 2012

Office Properties and Equipment Office properties and equipment are presented at cost less accumulated

depreciation Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets

Estimated useful lives are twenty to thirty nine years-for buildings and improvements and generally five to ten years

for furniture fixtures and equipment

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred and improvements and other

expenditures which materially increase property lives are capitalized The costs and accumulated depreciation

applicable to office properties and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the related

accounts and any resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to income

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase The Batik enters into sales of securities under

agreements to repurchase Fixed-coupon reverse repurchase agreements are treated as financings with the

obligations to repurchase securities sold being reflected as liability and the securities underlying the agreements

remaining as an asset The securities are delivered by appropriate entry by the Banks safekeeping agent to the

counterparties accounts The dealers may have sold loaned or otherwise disposed of such securities to other parties

in the normal coure of their operations and have agreed to resell to theBank substantially identical securities at the

maturities of the agreements
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock The Bank as member institution of Federal Home Loan Bank of

Atlanta the FHLB is required to own capital stock in the FHLB based generally upon the Banks balances

of residential mortgage loans and FHLB advances No ready market exists for this stock and it has no quoted mnrket

value However redemption of this stock historically has been at par value. The Bank carries this investment at its

original cost

Federal Reserve Bank Stock The Bank as member institution of the Federal Reserve Bank of

Richmond the FRB is required to own capital stock in the FRB based upon the Banks capital and surplus No

ready market exists for this stock and it has no quoted market value However redemption of this stock historically

has been at par
value The Bank carries this investment at its original cost

Other Real Estate Owned OREO OREO is stated at the lower of cost or estimated fair value less

estimated costs to sell Any accrued interest on the related loan at the date of acquisition is charged to operations

Costs relating to the development and improvement of property are capitalized to the extent that such costs do not

exceed the estimated fair value less selling costs of the property whereas those relating to holding the property are

charged to expense

Interest Income Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income monthly based on the principal

balance outstanding and the contractual rate on the loan The Bank places loans on non-accrual status when they

become greater than 90 days delinquent or when in the opinion of management full collection of principal or

interest is unlikely All interest that was accrued prior to the loan being placed on non-accrual status is automatically

reversed after the 90 day delinquency period The loans are returned to accrual status when full collection of

principal and interest appears likely

Income Taxes Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax

purposes valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets that may not be realized Also on

prospective basis the exception from the requirement to record deferred taxes on tax basis bad debt reserves in

excess of the base year amounts is eliminated The tax basis bad debt reserve that arose prior to the fiscal year
1988

the base year amount is frozen and the book reserves at that date and all subsequent changes in book and tax basis

reserves are included in the determination of deferred taxes

Per-Share Data Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted earnings per common share are similar to the

computation of basic earnings per common share except that the denominator is increased to include the number of

additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential common shares had been

issued The dilutive effect of options outstanding under Provident Community Bancsharess stock option plan is

reflected in diluted earnings per common share by the application of the treasury stock method There were no

common stock equivalents included in the diluted earnings per share calculation at December 31 2012 or 2011 as

the effect would have been anti-dilutive

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the

Corporation in estimating fair values of financial instruments as disclosed herein

Cash and federal funds sold
.-

The carrying amounts of cash and due from banks approximate their fair

value

Available for sale securities Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices The carrying

values of restricted equity securities approximate fair values If quoted prices are not available fair values are

measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present
value of

future cash flows adjusted for the securitys credit rating prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit

loss assumptions
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Loans The Corporation is predominantly an asset based lender with real estate serving as collateral on

substantial majority of loans The Corporation does not record loans at fair value on recurring basis However

from time to time loan is considered impaired and the related impairment is charged against the allowance or

specific allowance is established Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be

made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired Loans which are

deemed to be impaired are primarily valued at the fair values of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair

values are obtained using collateral net liquidation value market value of similar debt enterprise value and

discounted cash flows Those impaired loans not requiring specific allowance represent loans for which the fair

value of the expected repayment or collateral meet or exceed the recorded investment in such loans The

Corporation considers all non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructurings to be impaired

Cash surrender value of life insurance The carrying amounts of cash surrender values of life insurance

approximate their fair value

Deposit liabilities The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are by definition equal to the amount

payable on demand at the reporting date that is their canying amounts The carrying amounts of variable-rate

fixed-term money-market accounts and certificates of deposit CDs approximate their fair values at the reporting

date Fair values for fixed-rate CDs are estimated using discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates

currently being offered on certificates to schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits

Advances from the FHLB and other borrowings The fair values of the Corporations borrowings are

estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the Corporations current incremental borrowing rates for

similar types of borrowing arrangements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase The fair values of the Corporations repurchase

agreements are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the Corporations current incremental

borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements

Accrued interest The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures The fair values of the Corporations

floating rate debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the Corporations current

incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements

Off-balance-sheet instruments Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending commitments are based on fees

currently charged to enter into similar agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and

the counter parties credit standings

Risks and Uncertainties In the normal course of its business the Corporation encounters two significant

types of risk economic and regulatory There are three main components of economic risk interest rate risk credit

risk and market risk The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities

mature or reprice at different speeds or on different bases than its interest-earning assets

Credit risk is the risk of default on the Corporations loan portfolio that results from the borrowers

inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments Credit risk also applies to investment securities

and mortgage-backed securities should the issuer of the security be unable to make principal and interest payments

Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable the valuation of real estate held

by the Corporation and the valuation of investment securities

The Corporation is subject to the regulations of various government agencies These regulations can and do

change significantly from period to period The Corporation also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory

agencies which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations amounts of required loss

allowances and operating restrictions resulting from the regulators judgments based on information available to
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

them at the time of their examination

In preparing the consolidated financial statements management is required to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities as of the dates of the balance sheets and revenues and expenses for the periods covered Actual results

could differ from those estimates and assumptions

Reclassifications Certain amounts in prior years financial statements have been reclassified to conform

with current year classifications These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net income loss or

shareholders equity

Stock-Based Compensation The Corporation accounts for the compensation costs for its stock option plan

under the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB ASC 718-10-10

Compensation-Stock Compensation

There were no stock options granted in 2012 or 2011

Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities

There were no securities classified as held to maturity as of December 31 2012

Available for Sale Securities classified as available for sale consisted of the following in thousands

As of December 31 2012

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Investment Securities

Government Sponsored Enterprises .. $123381 $324 26 $123679
Trust Preferred Securities 5828 -- 1493 4.335

Total Investment Securities 129.209 324 1519 128.014

Mortgage-backed Securities

Fannie Mae 11950 72 20 12002

Ginnie Mae 16726 101 72 16755

Freddie Mac 11822 297 -- 12119

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 317 -- 324

Total Mortgage-backed Securities 40815 477 92 41.200

Total available for sale $170.024 $1.61 $1692l4

There were no securities classified as held to maturity as of December 31 2012

Available for Sale Securities classified as available for sale consisted of the following in thousands

As of December 31 2011

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Investment Securities

U.S Agency Obligations -- --

Government Sponsored Enterprises 87295 259 16 87538
Trust Preferred Securities 6378 -- 2.173 4205

Total Investment Securities 93674 259 2.189 91744

Mortgage-backed Securities

Fannie Mae 17609 250 17854

Ginnie Mae 29854 868 52 30670
Freddie Mac 24966 305 13 25258
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 370 18 352

Total Mortgage-backed Securities 72.799 1.423 88 74134

Total available for sale 166.473 1.682 $2.277 165.878
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Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities continued

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and

length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at December 31 2012 in

thOusands

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities Available

fprSale

Government Sponsored

Enterprises $19337 26 -- -- $19337 26

Trust Preferred Securities -- -- 4335 1493 4335 1493

Mortgage-backed

Securities 8665 79 2.149 __fl 10.814 92

Total $28002 $105 $6.484 $1506 $34486 S1.611

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and

length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at Decernber 31 2011 in

thousands

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities Available

for Sale

Government Sponsoied

Enterprises $17440 $16 -- -- $17440 16

Trust Preferred Securities -- -- 4205 2173 42Q5 2173

Mortgage-backed

Securities 9617 70 377 18 9994 88

Total $27057 $$ $4582 $2191 S3t3 $2277

Management reviews securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation The Corporation reviews several items in

determining whether its trust preferred securities are other than temporarily impaired These items include

valuation of the securities an analysis of cash flows following the guidance in ASC 320-10-35 to theasure credit

loss for 0Th purposes stress analysis summary of deferrals and defaults of the individual issues in the pool

and information regarding the issuers in the pool detailed description of each of these items of- evidence is

provided below

Valuation of Securities The first item reviewed is the fair market value of the security If the security is

in an unrealized loss position the Corporation proceeds to analyze the security for OTT based on the following

items The pricing of securities is performed by third party and is considered Level III pricing

Cash flow analysis cash flow analysis following the guidance in ASC 320-10-35 is the primary

evidence utilized in determining whether there is credit-related issue with respect to the security The basic

methodology is to calculate the present value of the cash flows using current effective yield This calculation uses

asstttnptións for default rates prepayment speeds and discount rates We have used 0% as assumed prepayment

rates default rates ranging from 1.2% to 3.6% and discount rates ranging from 100 basis points to 300 basis points

In conjunction with the process of determining the key assumptions the Corporation also reviews the key financial

information on the underlying issuers that are the collateral for the investment securities The results of these

analyses are used to determine estimates of default rates and also to provide additional information for consideration

in determining the reasonableness of assumed prepayment rates ASC 320-10-35 is used to measure credit loss for

OTTI purposes The change in the expected cash flows is reviewed to determine if OTT should be recorded The
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Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities continued

result calculated for the current quarter is then compared to the previous quarters book value to determine if the

change is adverse The credit component of any impairment should be the difference between the book value and

the projected present value for the current quarter

The analysis is based on cash flows and utilizes number of assumptions relating to credit and

prepayment There are scenarios available within three deal cash flow assumption categories prepays constant

no prepays prepays constant utilizing select years
and defaults over years and constant thereafter Each of these

scenarios includes different prepayment assumptions and defaults at various levels in addition to projection of

recoveries if applicable with two-year lag Scenarios in each category range from base to worse case in

addition to two analyses that project defaults over the course of the following year on quarterly basis and annually

thereafter

Stress Analysis The Corporation obtains stress analysis report of each security This report provides

snapshot of the immediate deferrals/defaults that given pool and tranche/class can withstand before causing either

break in yield or temporary
interest shortfall position There are various assumptions utilized in this report with

respect to prepayments deferrals/defaults and recovery rates

Break in Yield This is the level oI.deferrals/defaults the tranche could experience before the tranche

would not receive all of its contractual cash flows principle and interest by maturity not just temporary

interest shortfall but an actual loss in yield on the investment In other words break in yield occurs

when the magnitude of the deferrals/defaults has depleted the entire credit enhancement excess intçrest

and over-collateralization beneath the given tranche

Temporary Interest Shortfall temporary interest shortfall is caused by an amount of deferrals/defaults

high enough such that there is insufficient cash flow available to pay current interest on the given tranche

or by breaching the principal coverage test of the tranche immediately senior to the given tranche

Principal coverage tests are set up to protect the Senior and Mezzanine Notes from credit events providing

the most credit protection to the Class A- Senior Notes then to the Class A-2 Senior Notes then to the

Class notes and so on Cash flow is diverted from the lowest tranches first then from the successively

higher tranches as necessary

The existence of break in yield or temporary interest shortfall is an initial indication that OTT may

exist

Deferral/Default Summary The Corporation reviews current information for individual issues to

determine the extent of deferrals and or defaults and the status of any issuers in the pool and the impact to the

tranche owned by the Corporation This report lists the issue i.e the pool/deal the amount of deferrals/defaults

related to the issue the issuer that has deferred/defaulted and the percentage of total current collateral this

represents Additionally the report provides the status of the amount in question i.e whether it is cured

purchased in default or deferred the projected senior and mezzanine note status for the next payment date the

projected income note status for the next payment date and the next bond payment date The Corporation compares

the information in this report to the assumptions used in the cash flow analysis to ensure that deferral and defaults

are correctly reflected in the cash flow analysis

Issuer Lists report listing all of the companies in the pool along with other relevant information such as

organization type mutual vs stock primary geographic location state rating issue amount years in business and

principal line of business The Corporation reviews the issuer lists for the individual pools held by the Corporation

to gain better insight as to the underlying companies the specific credit characteristics of the collateral underlying

each individual security and to determine risks associated with any concentrations with respect to issue amounts or

lines of business

To determine impairment charges for the Corporations collateralized debt obligations CDO we

performed discounted cash flow valuations through static default model test The default model used assumed

59



Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities continued

3.6% rate which is three times the historic default rates for all CDOs 0% recovery on all banks in deferral of

interest payments and 0% prepayment rate Cash flow valuations with premium mark up of 300 basis points

were also used to determine the fair market values of the Corporations collateralized debt obligations All of the

Corporations pooled trust preferred securities have the same terms which is that the securities cannot be redeemed

for five years and then can be called quarterly thereafter All of the securities are past the five year no call period

Valuation documentation for the cash flow analysis is provided by an independent third party

YTD

Security Single Class Amortized Fair Unrealized Credit OTT
Name Pooled Tranche Cost Value Loss Portion Other Total

Alesco II Pooled B-i $1161 $1036 $125 $-- $-- $--

MM Corn III Pooled 516 409 107 -- -- --

Pretzl IV Pooled Mezz 152 102 50 -- -- --

Total $1829 $1.547 $282

Security of

Name Lowest Current Deferrals Discount

Rating Performing Defaults fljg kp Margin

Alescoll 85.33% 14.67% 1.20% 0.40% 4.65%

MMCornIII CC 58.89% 41.11% 1.20% 0.40% 5.05%

Pretzl IV CCC 72.93% 27.07% 1.50% 0.75% 2.25%

Notes to table above

Credit Ratings represent Moodys and Fitch ratings SP does not rate this security

The ratio represents the amount of specific deferrals/defaults that have occurred plus those that are known

or projected for the following quarters to the total amount of original collateral for given security Fewer

deferrals/defaults produce lower ratio

Fair market value discount margin to LIBOR

For the
year

ended December 31 2012 the Corporation did not experience credit-related other-than-

temporary impairment on the pooled trust preferred securities portfolio but we have recorded $1.5 million loss

cumulatively since 2008 in this portfolio All of these securities are in the Corporations available for sale portfolio

The previous impairment costs were charged to earnings in non-interest income as Other-than-temporary

impairment write-down on securities The total securities impacted by credit-related other-thah-temporary

impairment have current carrying value of $1.5 million and represent approximately 0.91% of available for sale

securities The Corporation does not intend to sell these securities and it is more likely than not that the Corporation

will not be required to sell these securities before recovery of their amortized cost Management continues to

monitor these securities with high degree of scrutiny The Corporation may conclude in future periods that

conditions existing at that time indicate some or all of the securities may be sold or are other-than-temporarily

impaired which would require charge to earnings in such periods

The following table presents the Banks investments by category and the related unrealized gains or losses

net of tax recognized in other comprehensive losses credit losses recognized in and credit ratings for each

classification of security Trust preferred securities are divided into pooled and single issue securities Private label

trust preferred securities are $2.0 million each and are evaluated each quarter based on the financial stability of the

institution These securities have no credit rating included in the table below Agency MBS and agency securities

are government guaranteed and therefore their risk is relatively low
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Amounts in the following table are in millions

Below

Security Amortized Fair Not Investment

Classification Cost Value OCI OTT AAA AA Baa Ba3 Rated Grade

Single issuer trust

preferred securities 4.0 2.8 $l.2 -- -- -- -- -- -- 2.8 --

Pooled trust

preferred securities 1.8 1.5 0.3 1.5 1.5

Agency MBS 40.5 40.9 0.4 41.2 --

Private label CMO 0.3 0.3 -- -- 0.3 -- -- -- -- -- --

Treasury/Agency 123.4 123.7 0.3 -- 123.7 -- -- -- -- -- --

Total $170.0 $169.2 0.8 $1.5 $124.0 $44Q L5

OCI-Other Comprehensive Income loss QUI-Other Than Temporary Impairment

Proceeds gross gains and gross losses realized from the sales of securities were as follows for the periods

ended in thousands

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Proceeds $51272 $77053

Gross gains 1259 1125

Net gain on investment

transactions $1259 $1125

The maturities of securities at December 31 2012 are as follows in thousands

Available for Sale

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Due in one year or less -- --

Due after one year through five years

Due after five years through ten years 28638 28737

Due after ten years 141.377 140468

Total investment and mortgage-backed

securities S170.024 $169214

The mortgage-backed securities held at December 31 2012 mature between one and thirty years The

actual lives of those securities may be significantly shorter as result of principal payments and prepayments All

mortgage-backed securities are U.S Government securities issued through Fannie Mae Ginnie Mae or Freddie

Mac

At December 31 2012 and 2011 $62.7 million and $85.1 million respectively of securities recorded at

book value were pledged as collateral for certain deposits and borrowings

At December 31 2012 approximately $9.4 million of mortgage-backed securities were adjustable rate

securities The adjustment periods range from monthly to annually and rates are adjusted based on the movement of

variety of indices

Investments in collateralized mortgage obligations CMOs had fair market value of $324000 at

December 31 2012 These are private label CMO securities that were issued by large regional bank Therefore

the fair market value is determined by the current available broker supplied price as an estimate of the amount the
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Investments and Mortgage-backed Securities continued

Corporation could expect to receive in the open market These securities are not actively traded as result of the

economic crisis

Federal Home Loan Bank Capital Stock

Provident Community Bank as member institution of FHLB is required to own capital stock in the

FHLB of Atlanta based generally upon membership-based requirement and an activity-based requirement related

to the level of advances that the Corporation borrows from the FHLB No ready market exists for this stock and it

has no quoted market value However redemption of this stock historically has been at par value The carrying

value -which approximates fair value of this stock was $2.3 million at December 31 2012 and $3.4 million at

December 31 2011

In evaluating other-than-temporary impairment of the FHLB stock the Bank considered the most recent

financial results of the FHLB the resumption of paying dividends on common stock its ability to repurchase the

stock at par value throughout the year
in timely manner based on the level of advances that the Bank maintains

and the baseline credit assessment rating given by Moodys Investors Service of AAA The Corporation believes

that the resumption of the common stock dividend and the investment grade rating of AAA indicate that theris no

impairment in the investment in the FHLB stock as of December 31 2012

Loans Net

Loans receivable consisted of the following in thousands

As of December 31
2012 2011

Real estate loans

Fixed-rate residential 6329 8063
Adjustable-rate residential 3376 3967
Commercial real estate 75210 97547
Construction 59 308

Total mortgage loans 84974 109885

Commercial non-real estate 9024 12939

Consumer loans

Home equity 14063 14590

Consumer and installment 19468 22939
Consumer lines of credit 267 300

Total consumer loans 33.798 37.829

Total loans 127.796 160653

Less

Unamortized loan discount 181 231
Allowance for loan losses 4367 4549
Net deferred loan origination costs 166 146

Total net S123.414 $156019

Weighted-average interest rate of loans 5.15% 5.08%

Under 0CC regulatiOns the Bank may not make loans to one borrower in excess of 15% of unimpaired

capital This limitation does not apply to loans made before August 1989 At December 31 2012 the Bank had

loans outstanding to one borrower ranging up to $4.1 million

Adjustable-rate residential real estate loans approximately $3.4 million and $4.0 million at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively are subject to rate adjustments annually and generally are adjusted based on movement

of the Federal Home Loan Bank National Monthly Median Cost of Funds rate or the Constant Maturity Treasury

indóx The maximum loan rates can be adjusted is 200 basis points in any one year
with lifetime

cap
of 600 basis

points

62



Loans net continued

Non-refundable deferred origination fees and cost and discount points collected at loan closing net of

commitment fees paid are deferred and recognized at the time of sale of the mortgage loans Gain or loss on sales of

mortgage loans is recognized based upon the difference between the selling price and the carrying amount of the

mortgage loans sold Other fees earned during the loan origination process are also included in net gain or loss on

sales of mortgage loans

Until 2002 the Bank originated both fixed rate and adjustable rate mortgage loans with terms generally

ranging from fifteen to thirty years and generally sold the loans while retaining servicing on loans originated The

Bank discontinued the origination of loans held for sale in 2002 The underlying value of loans servicedfr others

was $6.2 million and $7.6 million at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Loans that management identifies as impaired generally will be non-performing loans and the accrual of

interest is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent At December 31 2012 there were no loans 90

days or more past due and accruing interest At December 31 2011 loans totaling $442000 were 90 days or more

past due and accruing interest At December 31 2012 and 2011 loans which were accounted for on non-accrual

basis totaled approximately $13.2 million and $16.8 million respectively The amount the Bank will ultimately

realize from these loans could differ materially from their carrying value because of future developments affecting

the underlying collateral or the borrowers ability to repay
the loans During the years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 had non-accruing loans been current in accordance with their original terms the Bank would have recognized

additional interest income of approximately $950000 and $1.1 million respectively

Information about impaired loans as of and for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 is as follows

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Loans receivable for which there is related

allowance for credit losses determined in accordance

with ASC 310-10/Statement No 114 5339 $1923

Other impaired loans 20508 25550

Total impaired loans $25.847 $27473

Average monthly balance of impaired loans $29.17 $29916

Specific allowance for credit losses 2385 439
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Impaired Loans

December 31 2012

Unpaid Average

Principal Recorded Related Recorded

Balance Investment Allowance Investment

With no related allowance recorded

Coniiiercial

Coinmercial Real Estate $14778 $13273 -- $14025

CommerÆiÆl Non Real Estate 2004 1680 -- 1842

Consumer

Consumer other 4611 3696 -- 4154

Consumer home equity 566 536 -- 551

Residential Real Estate

1-4 family 1448 1323 1385

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate 5622 3388 1260 4505
Commercial Non Real Estate 206 189 49 198

Consumer

Consumerother 1363 1354 962 1358

Residential Real Estate

1-4 family 416 408 114 412

Total $3l.014 $25847 S2.385 $28.430

Commercial 22610 18530 20570

Consumer 6063

Residential i4 114 L22
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Impaired Loans

December 31 2011

Average

Unpaid Principal Recorded Related Recorded

Balance Investment Allowance Investment

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate $22454 $16949 $19702

Commercial Non Real Estate 2376 2075 2225

Consumer

Consumer other 5135 4203 4669

Consumer home equity 511 491 501

Residential Real Estate

1-4 Family 1891 1832 1862

With related allowance recorded

Commercial 1564 1403 306 1483

Commercial Real Estate
282 281 60 282

Consumer

Consumer other 239 239 239

Total S34452 S27.473 $439 $30963

Commercial
26676 20708 366 23692

Consumer

Residential L9i

At December 31 2012 and 2011 loans which are accounted for on non-accrual basis

Loans Receivable on Nonaccrual Status

As of December31

2012 2011

Commercial

Commercial real estate $8734 $11337

Commercial non real estate 835 1340

Consumer

Consumer other 2287 2536

Consumer automobile 19 65

Consumer home equity 329 308

Residential Real Estate

1-4 family 970 1.220

Total $13174 $16.806
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Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans Receivable

For the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Commercia
Commercia Consume Residentia

Real Estate Total

December 31 2012

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning balance $1887 $1920 $484 $258 $4549

Charge-offs 118 339 576 1041
Recoveries 52 94 155

Provisions 781 -- 97 704

Ending balance $1040 51.675 $1301 $351 4.367

Loans receivable

Ending balances

Individually evaluated

for impairment $1869 $16661 S5.586 $1.73 $25.847

Allowance for loan losses 49 1260 962 113 2384

Collectively evaluated for

impairment $7155 $58.549 $28212 S8.033 $101.949

Allowanceforloanlosses 991 415 339 238 1.983

Ending balancetotal $9.024 S75.210 S9.764 $127.796

Total allowance for loan losses $l.040 $1675 $1301 $351 $4.367

December 31 2011

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning balance $2166 $4602 $335 $276 7379

Charge-offs 334 3444 318 4100
Recoveries 55 156 29 40 280

Provisions -- 606 438 54 990

Ending balance $1887 1.920 484 $25$ 54.549

Loans receivable

Ending balances

Individually evaluated for

impairment $2356 518.352 $4933 $l.832 $27473

Allowance for loan losses 60 306 73 -- 439

Collectively evaluated for

impairment S10.583 S79.195 $32896 $10.506 $133.180

Allowance for loan losses 1827 1614 411 58 4.110

Endingbalancetotal 512.939 $97.547 $37.829 $12338 S160.653

Total allowance for loan losses $.887 $1920 $44 $25 $4549

Renegotiated loans or troubled debt restructurings are those loans where the borrower is experiencing

financial difficulties and we have agreed to concessions ofthe terms such as changes in the interest rate charged

and/or other concessions Troubled debt restructurings decreased $4.3 million from $8.5 million at December 31

2011 to $4.2 million at December 31 2012
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Loans net continued

The following are credit quality indicators for the Corporations loans receivable for the years
ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

Credit Quality Indicators

As of December 31 2012 and 2011

Credit Quality Indicators The Corporation regularly monitors the credit quality of its loan portfolio Credit quality

refers to the current and expected ability of borrowers to repay
their obligations according to the contractual terms

of such loans Credit quality is evaluated through assignment of individual loan grades as well as past-due and

performing status analysis Credit quality indicators allow the Corporation to assess the inherent loss on certain

individual and pools of loans

Corporate Credit Exposure

Credit Risk Profile by Creditworthiness Category

Commercial Non Real

Estate Commercial Real Estate

2012 2011 2012 2011

Grade Superior quality 58 52 -- --

Grade Good quality -- 223 -- --

Grade Satisfactory 209 363 7238 9242

Grade Acceptable 4148 6458 24844 39168

Grade Watch 2433 1778 23762 21263

Grade Special mention 1125 1933 6860 9890

Grade Substandard 957 1926 11256 17984

Grade Doubtful 94 206 1250 --

Total S12.939 75.210 9547

The Corporation uses an internal risk rating system to classify and monitor the credit quality of loans Loan risk

ratings are based on graduated scale representing increasing likelihood of loss Primary responsibility for the

assignment of risk ratings of loans is with the individual kian officer assigned to each loan subject of verification

the Credit Administration department Risk ratings are also reviewed periodically by an independent third party loan

review firm that reports direetly to the Board of Directors

Credit quality indicators are reviewed and updated as applicable on an ongoing basis in accordance with credit

policies

Consumer Credit Exposure

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade

Residentia Consumer

2012 2011 2012 2011

Grade

Pass $7905 $10833 $27976 $33307

Special mention 732 243 1366 480

Substandard 4.456 4.042

Total $9764 $12338 $37829

Credit quality indicators are reviewed and updated as applicable on an ongoing basis in accordance with credit

policies
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Loans net continued

Consumer Credit Exposure

Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity

Residential real estate

Other Consumer Automobile Home Equity 1-4 family

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Performing $16676 $19760 $753 $878 $13734 $14282 $8794 $11118

Non-performing 2.287 2.536 __J2 __ 329 308
....22Q 1.220

Total $18963 $22.296 $222 $94 jj $14390 $9.764

Credit quality indicators are reviewed and updated as applicable on an ongoing basis in accordance with credit policies

Loans graded one through five are considered pass credits As of December 31 2012 approximately

77.1% of the loan portfolio was considered
pass

credits For loans to qualify for these grades they must be

performing relatively close to expectations with no significant departures from the intended source and timing of

repayment

Loans with credit grade of six are not considered classified however they are categorized as special

mention of watch list credit and are considered potential problem loans This classification is utilized by us when

we have an initial concern about the financial health of borrower These loans are designated as such in order to

be monitored more closely than other credits in our portfolio We then gather current financial information about

the borrower and evaluate our current risk in the credit We will then either reclassify the loan as substandard or

back to its original risk rating after review of the information There are times when we may leave the loan on the

watch list if in managements opinion there are risks that cannot be fully evaluated without the passage of time

and we determine to review the loan on more regular basis Loans on the watch list are not considered problem

loans until they are determined by management to be classified as substandard As of December 31 2012 we had

loans totaling $10.1 million rated as Special Mention

Loans graded seven or greater are considered classified credits Loans classified as substançlard are

inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged

The loan has well-defined weaknesses that jeopardized the liquidation value and has the distinct possibility that the

Corporation will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected Loans classified as doubtful have the

weaknesses of Substandard but have additional factors that make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable

nd improbable At December 31 2012 classified loans totaled $19.1 million with all but one loan being

collateralized by real estate Classified credits are evaluated for impairment on quarterly basis

Directors and officers of the Corporation are customers of the Corporation in the ordinary course of

business Loans to directors and officers have terms consistent with those offered to other customers Loans to

officers and directors of the Corporation are summarized as follows in thousands

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $1757 $2001

Loans originated during the period

Loan repayments during the period 244 244
Balance at the end of period $1513 $1757
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Loans net continued

The following are past due loan trends for the Banks loans receivable for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Greater

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Than Total Past Total Loans

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Receivable

December 31 2012

Commercial

Commercial non real estate 146 110 646 $902 $8122 9024

Commercial real estate 2525 482 6047 9054 66156 75210

Consumer

Consumerother 638 419 1045 2102 16861 18963

Consumer automobile 11 19 753 772

Consumer home equity 157 168 332 13731 14063

Residential 1-4 tamily 259 J5 9.764

Total $323 $1429 i41l44 $ll3752 127.796

December 31 2011

Commercial

Commercialnonrealestate 485 139 996 $1620 $11319 12939

Commercial real estate 714 472 8046 9232 88315 97547

Consumer

Consumer other 422 69 2052 2543 19753 22296

Consumer automobile 69 -- -- 69 874 943

Consumer home equity 408 47 182 637 13953 14590

Residential 1-4 family 42 11181

Total $25ES $1221 S11.951 S160653



Loans net continued

Troubled Debt Restructurings

As result of adopting the amendments in ASU 2011-02 the Corporation reassessed all restructurings that occurred on or after the beginning of the fiscal year of

adoption January 2011 to determine whether they are considered troubled debt restructurings TDRs under the amended guidance The Corporation identified as TDRs

certain loans for which the allowance for loan losses had previously been measured under general allowance methodology Upon identifing those loans as TDRs the

Corporation identified them as impaired under the guidance in ASC 310-10-35 The amendments in ASU 2011-02 require prospective application of the impairment measurement

guidance in ASC 310-10-35 for those loans newly identified as impaired At December 31 2012 the recorded investment in loans for which the allowance was previously

measured under general allowance methodology and are now impaired under ASC 310-10-35 was $2.9 million and the allowance for loan losses associated with those loans on

the basis of current evaluation of loss was $293000 The following are loan modifications for the Corporations loans receivable for the twelve month periods ended December

31 2012

Twelve Months Ended December 31 2012

Pre Post

Modification Modification

Number Outstanding Outstanding

Troubled Debt Restructurings of New Recorded Recorded

Added dyrin2 eurrent year Contracts Investment Investment

Commercial IN THOUSANDS
Commercial non real estate $201 $181

Commercial real eState 788 776

Consumer

Consumer other 20 1970 1968

Residential 1-4 family __j _j
Total 29 $2960 $2926

Twelve Months Ended December 31 2012

Post

Modification

Number Outstanding Defaulted

Troubled Debt Restructurings of New Recorded Recorded

Defaulted during the period Contracts Investment Investment

Added since December 31 2011 IN THOUSANDS
Commercial

Commercial non real estate $290 $273

Commercial real estate 864 854

Consumer

Consumer other 70 70

Total $1224 SI.l97

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 the Corporation modified 28 loans that were considered to be troubled debt restructurings We extended the terms

for 16 of these loans and the interest rate was lowered for 12 of these loans During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 26 loans that had previously been restructured

were in default none of which went into default during the year and 10 of which went into default during the previous twelve months



Office Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment consisted of the following in thousands

As of December 31
2012 2011

Land 599 $1656

Building and improvements 4849 5292
Office furniture fixtures and equipment 2254 2207

Total 7702 9155
Less accumulated depreciation 4.522 4.368

Office properties and equipment net $3 180 $4.787

Depreciation expense was $354000 and $386000 for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively

Deposit Accounts

Deposit accounts at December 31 were as follows in thousands

2012 2011

Rate Balance Rate Balance

Account Type
NOW accounts

Commercial non-interest-bearing 38346 13.82% $19930 7.04%

Non-commercial 0.32 63433 22.86 0.42 87803 31.00

Money market 0.27 27842 10.03 0.36 23575 8.32

Savings 0.33 30.693 fl 0.42 27.064

Total demand deposits 0.23 160.3 14 0.36 158.372

Time deposits

Up to 1.00% 81649 29.43 68695 24.25

1.01%-2.00% 35322 12.73 55262 19.51

2.01% 3.00% 150 0.05 148 0.05

3.0 1% 4.00% 46 0.02 47 0.02

4.01%- 5.00% -- -- 725

Total time deposits 0.63 117.167 42.23 0.91 124.877 44.09

Total deposit accounts 0.40% $277481 100.00% 0.60% 1QflOS%

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 total deposit accounts include approximately $2.2 million and $2.5

million respectively of deposits from the Corporations officers directors employees or parties related to them

At December 31 2012 and 2011 time deposit accounts with balances of $100000 and over totaled

approximately $51.2 million and $52.7 million respectively

Time deposits by maturity were as follows in thousands

As of December 31
2012 2011

Maturity Date

Within year 79585 88556
After but within years 34482 33373
After but within years 1704 2013
After but within years

880 155

Thereafter 516 780

Total time deposits $117.167 S124.877
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Deposit Accounts continued

Interest expense on deposits consisted of the following in thousands

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Account Type
NOW accounts and money market

deposit accounts
3l

Passbook and statement savings

Accounts 101 137

Certificate accounts 868 1700

Early withdrawal penalties 17
Total $1315 $2554

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Bank had $37.5 million and $59.5 million respectively of advances

outstanding from the FHLB The maturity of the advances from the FHLB is as follows in thousands

As of December 31

Weighted Weighted

2012 Average Rate 2011 Average Rate

Contractual Maturity

Within one year adjustable rate -- -- $22000 4.58

After three but within five
years adjustable rate 24000 4.10 -- --

Greater than five
years adjustable rate 13500 3.52 37500 3.89

Total advances $37.500 3.89% $59500 4.14%

The Bank pledges as collateral to the advances its FHLB stock investment securities and has entered into

blanket collateral agreement with the FHLB whereby the Bank maintains free of other encumbrances qualifying

loans as defined with unpaid principal balances equal to when discounted at 50% to 80% of the unpaid principal

balances 100% of total advances The amount of qualifying loans was $35.6 million and $45.2 million

respectively at December 31 2012 and 2011 The amount of investment securities pledged for advances was $21.9

million and $48.5 million respectively at December 31 2012 and 2011 Advances are subject to prepayment

penalties and to calls at the option of the FHLB of Atlanta During fiscal years 2012 and 2011 the FHLB did not

exercise any of the call provisions related to the advances

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

The Bank had $6.3 million and $5.3 million borrowed under agreements to repurchase at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively The amortized cost of the securities underlying the agreements to repurchase at

December 31 2012 was $8.6 million and $8.1 million at December 31 2011 The maximum amount outstanding at

any month end during 2012 was $6.8 million and $10.4 million for 2011 The average amount of outstanding

agreements for 2012 was $6.0 million and $6.5 million for 2011 and the approximate weighted average
interest rate

was 0.10% in 2012 and 0.10% in 2011

Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures

On July 18 2006 the Corporation sponsored the creation of Provident Community Bancshares Capital

Trust Capital Trust The Corporation is the owner of all of the common securities of Capital Trust On July

21 2006 Capital Trust issued $4000000 in the form of floating/fixed rate capital securities through pooled trust

preferred securities offering The proceeds from this issuance along with the Corporations $124000 capital

contribution for Capital Trust Is common securities were used to acquire $4124000 aggregate principal amount

of the Corporations floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures due October 2036 the

Debentures which constitute the sole asset of Capital Trust The interest rate on the Debentures and the capital

securities is variable and adjustable quarterly at 1.74% over the three-month LIBOR The Corporation has through
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Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures continued

the Trust Agreement establishing Capital Trust the Guarantee Agreement the notes and the related Debenture

taken together fully irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed all of the Capital Trust obligations under the

capital securities

On November 28 2006 the Corporation sponsored the creation of Provident Community Bancshares

Capital Trust II Capital Trust II The Corporation is the owner of all of the common securities of Capital Trust

II On December 15 2006 Capital Trust II issued $8000000 in the form of floating rate capital securities through

pooled trust preferred securities offering The proceeds of Capital Trust II were utilized for the redemption of Union

Financial Bancshares Statutory Trust the Trust issued on December 18 2001 The proceeds from this issuance

along with the Corporations $247000 capital contribution for Capital Trusts II common securities were used to

acquire $8247000 aggregate principal amount of the Corporations floating rate junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures due March 2037 the Debentures which constitute the sole asset of Capital Trust II The

interest rate on the Debentures and the capital securities is variable and adjustable quarterly at 1.74% over the three-

month LIBOR The Corporation has through the Trust agreement establishing Capital Trust II the Guarantee

Agreement the notes and the related Debenture taken together fully irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed all

of Capital Trust II obligations under the capital securities

The Corporation exercised its right on July 22 2010 to defer the payment of interest on its outstanding

subordinated debentures for an indefinite period which can be no longer than 20 consecutive quarterly periods

Further pursuant to written agreement between the Corporation and the Federal Reserve the Corporation cannot

pay any dividends on its subordinated debentures without the prior written consent of the Federal Reserve Bank

This and any future deferred distributions will continue to accrue interest at current rate of LIBOR1 .74% for the

$4.0 million of trust preferred securities issued in July 2006 and at current rate of LIBORl .74% for the $8.0

million of trust preferred securities issued in December 2006 Distributions on the trust preferred securities are

cumulative Therefore in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles the Corporation will continue

to accrue the monthly cost of the trust preferred securities as it has since issuance

10 Income Taxes

Income tax expense
is summarized as follows in thousands

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Current $148 $462

Deferred 165 25

Change in valuation allowance

Total income tax expense LZ

The provision for income taxes differed from amounts computed by applying the statutory federal rate of

34% to income before income taxes as follows in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Tax at federal income tax rate $108 $56
Increase decrease resulting from

State income taxes net of federal benefit

Surrender of life insurance policies -- 430

Non-taxable life insurance income 98 113
Changes in valuation allowance 753 462

Other net 322
Total

The Corporation had analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and

concluded it has no liability related to uncertain tax positions
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10 Income Taxes continued

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Corporations deferred taxes as of December 31 2012

and 2011 are as follows in thousands

December 31

Deferred tax assets

Book reserves in excess of tax basis bad debt reservs

Difference between bobk and tax property basis

Deferred compensation

Net operating loss

Other4han-temporary-impaitthent

Mark-to-market adjustment

Charitable contribution limitation

Other real estate owned

Core deposit intangible

Loan discount amortization

Interest income on nonaccrual loans

Federal and state tax credits

Total deferred tax asset

Less valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset after valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities

Difference between book and tax Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Deferred loan fees

Partnership pass-through differences

Prepaid expenses

Total deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax asset

2012

$1230

28

795

3105

1833

284

1075

36

62

785

469

2LQ
7965

85

60

151

81

377

1.368

2011

$1074

67
4264

1833
220

854

82

78

349

7212

85
52

120

100
357

.1.892

The deferred tax assets of $1.4 million and $1.9 million at December 31 2012 and 2011 are included in

other assets in the balance sheet

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are initially recognized for differences between the financial statement

carrying amount and the tax basis of asset and liabilities which will result in future deductible or taxable amounts

and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards valuation allowance is then established as applicable to reduce

the deferred tax asset to the level at which it is more likely than not that the tax benefits wi1l be realized

Realization of

tax benefits of deductible temporary differences and operating loss or credit carry-forwards depends on having

sufficient taxable income of an appropriate hacter within the carry-back and carry-forward periods sources of

taxable income that may allow for the realization of tax benefits include taxable income in tle current year

prior years that is available through carry-back future taxable income that will result from the reversal of

existing taxable temporary differences and taxable income generated by future operations

At December 31 2012 the Corporations net deferred tax assets totaled $1.4 million The Corporation has

net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $8.4 million which will expire 2029 through 2031 ifndt utilized

to offset taxable income prior to that date We have evaluated the reasonability of our net deferred tax asset based

on forecasts of future income over three year period existence df feasible tax planning strategies and the

assessments of current and future economic business conditions Based on these evaluations we have recorded

valuation allowance of $8.0 million to reduce the recorded deferred tax asset to net realizable value We believe it

is more likely than not that we will be able to utilize the remaining deferred tax assets of $1.4 million to reduce our

tax expense in future periods

The Corporation is subject to U.S federal and South Carolina state income tax Tax authorities in various

jurisdictions thay examine the Corporation The Corpoiation and the Bank are not subject to federl and state

income tax examinations for taxable years prior to 2008
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10 Income Taxes continued

Retained earnings at December 31 2012 includes approximately $1.6 million representing pre-1988 tax

bad debt base year reserve amounts for which no deferred income tax liability has been provided since these

reserves are not expected to reverse until indefinite future periods and maynever reverse Circumstances that would

require an accrual of portion or all of this unrecorded tax liability are failure to meet the definition of bank

dividend payments in excess of current year or accumulated tax earnings and profits or other distributions in

dissolutions liquidations or redemption of the Banks stock

11 Employee Benefits

The Bank has contributory profit-sharing plan which is available to all eligible employees Annual

employer contribitions to the plan consist of an amount which matches participant contributions up to maximum

of 5% of participants compensation and.a discretionary amount determinçd annually by the Banks Board of

Directors The annual contributions to the plan will be 5% of participants compensation Employer expensed

contributions to the plans were $120000 and $118500 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively

12 Financial Instruments with Off Balance Sheet Risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to

meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates These

financial instruments are commitments to extend credit They involve to varying degrees elements of credit risk in

excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect

the extent of involvement the Corporation has in particular classes of financial instruments

The Banks exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party .to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments The

Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-

sheet instruments

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination

clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Corporation

evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if it is

deemed necessary by the Corporation upon extension of credit is based on managements credit evaluation of the

counter-party Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable inventory property plant and equipment

and income-producing commercial properties

The Bank had loan commitments as follows in thousands

As of December 31
2012 2011

Fixed/variable interest rate commitments to fund residential credit -- 663

Unused portion of credit lines principally variable-rate consumer

lines secured by real estate 15301 17.128

Total S15301 $17791

The Bank has no additional financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk The Bank did not incur any

losses on its commitments in the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Bank utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities

and to determine fair value disclosures Effective January 2008 the Bank adopted FASB 157 ASC 820-10-15

Fair Value Measurements which provides framework for measuring and disclosing fair value under generally

accepted accounting principles This standard requires disclosures about the fair value of assets and liabilities

recognized in the balance sheet in periods subsequent to initial recognition whether the measurements are made on

recurring basis for example available-for-sale investment securities or on nonrecurring basis for example

impaired loans

Fair Value Hierarchy

ASC 820-10-15 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to

transfer liability an exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants on the measurement date ASC 820-10-15 also establishes fair value

hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable

inp1ts when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair

value

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in

markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in

markets that are not active and model-based techniques whose value is determined using

pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques

Following is description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value

Investment Securities Available for Sale

Available for sale investment securities are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Fair value

measurement is based upon quoted prices if available If quoted prices are not available fair values are measured

using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future

cash flows adjusted for the securitys credit rating prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss

assumptions Level securities include those traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange

and U.S Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets Level

securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities municipal bonds and

corporate debt securities Securities classified as Level may include asset-backed securities in less liquid markets

Loans

The Bank is predominantly an asset based lender with real estate serving as collateral on substantial

majority of loans The Bank does not record loans at fair value on recurring basis However from time to time

loan is considered impaired and the related impairment is charged against the allowance or specific allowance is

established The Bank performs its allowance for loan and lease losses calculation on quarterly basis which also

includes an evaluation of all non-performing loans for further impairment even if new appraisal is not obtained on

quarterly basis Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in

accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired Loans which are deemed to

be impaired are primarily valued at the fair values of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are

obtained using collateral net liquidation value market value of similar debt enterprise value and discounted cash

flows Those impaired loans not requiring specific allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the

expected repayment or collateral meet or exceed the recorded investment in such loans The Bank considers all
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructurings to be impaired When the fair value of the collateral is based

on an observable market price or current appraised value the Bank records the impaired loan as nonrecurring

Level When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is

further impaired below the appraised value and there is not observable market price the Bank records the impaired

loans as nonrecurring Level Consistent with the regulators appraisal guidance dated December 10 2010 the

Bank has adopted loan reappraisal policy The regulatory guidance states that bank should establish criteria for

assessing whether an existing appraisal or evaluation continues to reflect the market value of the property

Generally impaired loans will be evaluated using an existing appraisal if the valuation has been established within

the previous twelve months However market conditions may dictate an updated appraisal for lesser timeframe

Factors include deterioration in the credit since origination or changes in market conditions Changes in market

conditions could include material changes in current and projected vacancy absorption rates lease terms rental

rates and sale prices including concessions and overruns and delays in construction costs Fluctuations in discount

or direct capitalization rates also are indicators of changing market conditions In assessing whether changes in

market conditions are material bank should consider the individual and aggregate effect of these changes on its

collateral protection and the risk in its real estate lending program or credit portfolios

Real Estate Acguired Through Foreclosure

OREO is adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to OREO Subsequently OREO is carried at the

lower of carrying value or fair value Fair value is based upon independent market prices appraised values of the

collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral When the fair value of the collateral is based on

an observable market price or current appraised value the Corporation records the foreclosed asset as

nonrecurring Level When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the

collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price the Corporation

records the OREO as nonrecurring Level
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on Recurrin2 Basis

The following tables present the balances of assets measured at fair value on recurringbasis by level

within the hierarchy as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 In thousands

Investment securities

Government Sponsored Enterprises

Trust Preferred securities

Total investment securities...

Mortgage-backed and

related securities

Total

Investment securities

U.S Agency obligations

Government Sponsored Enterprises

Trust Preferred securities

Total investment securities...

Mortgage-backed and

related securities

Total

Total

December 31

2012

$123679

4335

128.014

41200

Total

December 31

2011

87538

4205

91744

74134

$165878

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for

Identical Assets

Level

$123679

123679

$123679

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for

Identical Assets

Level

87538

87539

$87539

Significant Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

--

zj

41.200

$43988

Significant
Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

--

74134

$76.884

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

1547

$1547

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

--

1455

$1 .455

The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for assets measured at fair value on

recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs Level for the period ended December 31 2012 In

thousands

Beginning balance at December 31 2011

Transfers in of Level

Total gains/losses included in

Net loss

Other comprehensive income

Purchases sales issuances and settlements net

Ending balance at December 31 2012

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs Level

Investment Securities

Available-for-Sale

$1455

641

549
$1547

Assets and Liabifities Recorded at Fair Value on Nonrecurrin2 Basis

The Corporation may be required from time to time to measure certain assets at fair value on

nonrecurring basis in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles These include assets that are

measured at the lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the period and

assumes all non-performing assets have specific reserves or have been written down to fair value
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

For Level assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring or non-recurring basis at December

31 2012 the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are as follows In thousands

Significant

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable

December 31 Technique Inputs

2012

Appraised Value Appraisals and/or sales of

Discounted Cash Flows comparable properties

Nonaccrual loans $23462 Market Value of Note Independent quotes

Appraised Value

Comparable Sales Appraisals and/or sales of

Other Estimates from comparable properties

Other real estate owned 9174 independent Sources Independent quotes

Total assets at fair value S32636

For Level assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring or non-recurring basis at December

31 2011 the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are as follows

Significant

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable

December 31 Technique Inputs

2011

Appraised Value Appraisals and/or sales of

Discounted Cash Flows comparable properties

Nonaccrual loans $27034 Market Value of Note Independent quotes

Appraised Value

Comparable Sales Appraisals and/or sales of

Other Estimates from comparable properties

Other real estate owned 8398 Independent Sources Independent quotes

Total assets at fair value $35.432

Level Valuation Methodologies Following is description of the unobservable inputs used for Level fair value

measurements

Impaired Loans Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in

accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired Loans which are deemed to be

impaired are primarily valued at the fair values of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are obtained

using collateral net liquidation value market value of similar debt enterprise value and discounted cash flows

Those impaired loans not requiring specific allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected

repayment or collateral meet or exceed the recorded investment in such loans The Bank considers all non-accrual

loans and troubled debt restructurings to be impaired When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable

market price or current appraised value the Bank records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level When an

appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below

the appraised value and there is no observable market price the Bank records the impaired loans as nonrecurring

Level Certain assumptions and unobservable inputs are currently being used by appraisers therefore qualifying

impaired loans as Level Impaired loan totals represent non-performing loans for the periods indicated

OREO is adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to OREO Subsequently OREO is carried at the

lower of carrying value or fair value Fair value is based upon independent market prices appraised values of the

collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral Certain assumptions and unobservable inputs

are currently being used by appraisers therefore qualifying these assets as Level
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Investment Securities Level securities include those traded on an active exchange such as the New York

Stock Exchange and U.S Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter

markets Level securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities municipal

bonds and corporate debt securities Securities classified as Level may include asset-backed securities in less

liquid markets

The following presents the carrying amount fair value and placement in the fair value hierarchy of the

Corporations financial instruments as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 For financial liabilities such

as noninterest-bearing demand interest-bearing demand and savings deposits the carrying amount is reasonable

estimate of fair value due to these products having no stated maturity

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted

Prices in

Active Markets Significant

for Identical Other Significant

Assets or Observable Unobservable

dollars in thousands Carrying Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Amount Fair Value Level 11 Level Level

December 31 2012

Financial Instruments Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 29059 29059 $29059 -- --

Loans 123414 123553 -- -- 123553

Financial Instruments Liabilities

Time deposits $117167 $117723 $117723 --

Securities sold under agreements

to repurchase 6280 6280 6280

Subordinated debentures 12372 12372 12372

December 31 2011

Financial Instruments Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 23893 23893 $23893 -- --

Loans 156019 161219 -- -- 161219

Financial Instruments Liabilities

Time deposits $124877 $125404 -- $125404 --

Securities sold under agreements

to repurchase 5268 5268 5268

Subordinated debentures 12372 2372 12372

14 Preferred Stock

On March 13 2009 as part of the United States Department of the Treasurys Capital Purchase Program

TARP the Corporation issued 9266 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

$1000 per share liquidation preference and warrant to purchase up to 178880 shares of the Corporations

common stock for period of ten years at an exercise price of $7.77 per share in exchange for $9266000 in cash

from the United States Department of the Treasury The proceeds net of issuance costs consisting primarily of

legal fees were allocated between the preferred stock and the warrant on pro rata basis based upon the estimated

market values of the preferred stock and the warrant As result $25000 of the proceeds was allocated to the

warrant The amount allocated to the warrant is considered discount on the preferred stock and will be amortized

using the level yield method over five-year period through charge to retained earnings Such amortization will

not reduce net income but will reduce income available to common shares

The Corporation may redeem the preferred stock at its liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid

dividends at any time with prior regulatory approval
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14 Preferred Stock continued

Under the terms of the TARP Preferred Stock the Corporation is required to pay on quarterly basis

dividend rate of 5% per year for the first five years after which the dividend rate automatically increases to 9% per

year Dividend payments may be deferred but the dividend is cumulative and failure to pay dividends for six

dividend periods
would trigger board appointment rights for the holder of the TARP Preferred Stock The

Corporation
exercised its right on July 22 2010 to defer its regular quarterly cash dividend on its TARP Preferred

Stock Total deferred dividends to date are $1.1 million No action has been taken by the holder of the TARP

Preferred Stock regarding board appointments

15 Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans through foreclosure is summarized as follows

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $8398 $10618

Foreclosures added during the period 2423 3251

Bank assets transferred to OREO 1356

Sales of Foreclosed property net of

improvements 2190 4133
Provision charged as write-down 813 1.338

Balance at the end of period

Net real estate operations expense was $878000 and $1.7 million for the years ended December 31 2012

and 2011 respectively

16 Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Cash paid for

Income taxes --

Interest 3469 5118

Non-cash transactions

Loans foreclosed 2423 3251

Bank assets transferred to OREO 1356

Unrealized gain loss on securities

available for sale 810 595

17 Commitments and Contingencies

Lease commitments The Bank leases certain Bank facilities under rental agreements that have expiration

dates between 2018 and 2025 Future minimum rental payments due under these leases are as follows

Years Ended

2013 486480
2014 486480
2015 486480
2016 486480
2017 486480

Thereafter 961800

Total rent expense for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was $486480 and $469464

respectively

Lines of credit At December 31 2012 the Bank had unused short-term secured lines of credit to purchase

federal funds from unrelated banks totaling $4.0 million and the ability to borrow an additional $32.5 million from

secured borrowing lines Lines of credit are available on one-to-ten day basis for general purposes of the Bank

All of the lenders have reserved the right to withdraw these lines at their option
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17 Commitments and Contingencies continued

Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments which potentially subject the Bank to concentrations

of credit risk consist principally of loans receivable investment securities federal funds sold and amounts due from

banks

The Bank makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes

primarily in the Piedmont region of South Carolina and North Carolina The Banks loan portfolio is not

concentrated in loans to any single borrower or relatively small number of borrowers Additionally management

is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers or industries that would be similarly affected by
economic conditions Management has identified concentration of type of lending that it is monitoring

Commercial non-mortgage loans totaled $9.0 million at December 31 2012 representing 73.9% of total equity and

7.3% of loans receivable At December 312011 this concentration totaled $12.9 million representing 103.8% of

total equity and 8.3% of net loans receivable Commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the

basis of the borrowers ability to make repayment from the cash flow of the borrowers business and are generally

secured by variety of collateral types primarily accounts receivable inventory and equipment

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groupsof borrowers

industries geographic regions and loan types management monitors exposure to credit risk from other lending

practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases e.g principal deferral periods loans

with initial interest-only periods etc and loans with high loan-to-value ratios Management has determined that

the Bank has concentration of loans that exceed one of the regulatory guidelines for loan-to-value ratios This

particular guideline states that the total amount by which commercial agricultural and multifamily and other non
residential properties exceçd the regulatory maximum loan-to-value ratio limits should not exceed 30% of banks

total risk-based capital The excess over regulatory guidelines for these types of loans totaled $10.9 million at

December 31 2012 representing 40.4% of the Banks total risk-based capital

Additionally there are industry practices that could subject the Bank to increased credit risk should

economic conditions change over the course of loans life For example the Bank makes variable rate loans and

fixed rate principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid i.e balloon payment loans

These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks Therefore management believes that

these particular practices do not subject the Corporation to unusual credit risk

The Banks investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States its agencies or its

corporations and general obligation municipal securities In the opinion of management there is no concentration

of credit risk in its investment portfolio

The Bank places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality

institutions Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent accounts is not significant

Litigation The Bank is involved in legal actions in the normal course of business In the opinion of

management based on the advice of its general counsel the resolution of these matters will not have material

adverse impact on future results of operations or the financial position of the Bank

Potential Impact of Changes in Interest Rates The Banks profitability depends to large extent on its net

interest income which is the difference between interest income from loans and investments and interest expense

on deposits and borrowings Like most financial institutions the Corporations interest income and interest

expense are significantly affected by changes in market interest rates and other economic factors beyond its control

Management seeks to manage the relationships between interest-sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect

against wide interest rate fluctuations

The Bank has more interest-rate sensitive assets than liabilities Thus it enjoys an increasing net interest

rate spread during periods of rising interest rates The Bank experiences shrinking net interest spread in falling

interest rate environment
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18 Stock Option Plans

At December 31 2012 the Corporation had the following stock options outstanding

Average

Eiercise Average

Shares Price Per Intrinsic Earliest Date

Grant Date Granted Share Value1 Expiration Date Exercisable

December 2003 37500 16.75 December 2013 December 2003

January 2005 1000 16.60 January2015 January2005

March 2005 18.000 17.26 March 2015 March 2005

Total shares granted 56.500

The aggregate
intrinsic value of stock option in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value the

amount by which the current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option that

would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31

2012 This amount changes based on changes in the market value of the Corporations stock

At December 31 2012 the Corporation had the following options exercisable

Weighted Average Number Average

Fiscal Range of Remaining Options Exercise

Year exercise price Contractual Life Exercisable Price

2003 16.75 years 37500 16.75

2005 16.60-17.26 3.2 years 19000 17.23

$16.60-$17.26
16.91

Options for the two previous fiscal years that was forfeited and exercised as follows

Weighted

Stock average

options
exercise

Outstanding at December 312010 $14.50

Granted

Forfeited 16340 9.56

Exercised

Outstanding at December 31 2011 70323 $15.65

Granted

Forfeited 13823 10.50

Exercised

Outstanding at December 31 2012 $16.91

19 Capital Management and Regulatory Matters

Dividend Restrictions

The Bank is prohibited from declaring cash dividends on its common stock or repurchasing its common

stock if the effect thereof would cause its net worth to be reduced below either the amount required for the

liquidation account or the minimum regulatory capital requirement In additiOn the Bank is also prohibited from

declaring cash dividends and repurchasing its own stock without prior regulatory approval if the total amount of all

dividends and stock repurchases including any proposed dividends and stock repurchases for the applicable

calendar year exceeds its current years net income plus its retained net income for the preceding two years Under

current 0CC regulations the Bank is limited in the amount it may loan to affiliates including the Corporation

Loans to single affiliate may not exceed 10% and the aggregate of loans to all affiliates may not exceed 20% of

bank capital and surplus
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19 Capital Management and Regulatory Matters continued

Capital Guidelines

The Bank and the Corporation are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by

banking regulators Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly

additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the

Corporations financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for Prompt

Corrective Action PCAthe Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of its

assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The

Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulatos about

components risk weightings and other factors PCA provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank

must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the banks assets liabilities and certain

off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and

classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and

other factors

The Bank is required by the consent order to maintain Tier capital at least equal to 8% of adjusted total

assets and total capital of at least 12% of risk-weighted assets However so long as the Bank is subject to the

enforcement action executed with the 0CC on December 21 2010 it will not be deemed to be well-capitalized even

if it maintains the minimum capital ratios to be well-capitalized At December 31 2012 the Bank did not meet the

higher capital requirements required by the consent order and is evaluating alternatives to increase capital The

Banks capital category as of December 31 2012 is determined solely for the purpose of applying the PCA
restrictions and the Banks capital category as of December 31 2012 may not constitute an accurate representation

of the Banks overall financial condition or prospects

Under present regulations of the 0CC the Bank must have core capital leverage requirement equal to

4.0% of assets of which 1.5% must be tangible capital excluding intangible assets The Bank must also maintain

risk-based regulatory capital as percent of risk weighted assets at least equal to 8.0% In measuring compliance

with capital standards certain adjustments must be made to capital and total assets In addition the Bank is required

by the consent order to maintain Tier capital at least equal to 8% of adjusted total assets and total capital of at least

12% of risk-weighted assets

The following tables present the total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage requirements for

the Corporation and the Bank in thousands

Minimum Capital Levels

Actual Regulatory Minimum From Consent Order

December 31 2012 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Leverage ratio

Corporation $16050 4.57% $14036 4.00% nla nla%

Bank 24661 7.04 14021 4.00 28043 8.00

Tier capital ratio

Corporation 16050 9.10 7058 4.00 n/a n/a

Bank 24661 14.00 7044 4.00 n/a n/a1
otalrisk-based aapital ratio

Corporation 26033 14.75 14117 8.00 n/a n/a

Bank 26889 15.27 14087 8.00 21131 12.00
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19 Capital Management and Regulatory Matters continued

December 31 2011

Leverage ratio

Corporation $16327 4.28% $15271 4.00% n/a nla%

Bank 24537 6.43 15256 4.00 30511 8.00

Tier capital ratio

Corporation 16327 7.86 8307 4.00 n/a n/a

Bank 24537 11.83 8293 4.00 n/a nla1

Total risk-based capital ratio

Corporation
26657 12.84 16615 8.00 n/a n/a

Bank 27153 13.10 16583 8.00 24879 12.00

On December 21 2010 the Bank became subject to regulatory Consent Order with the 0CC Minimum capital

amounts and ratios presented for the Bank are the minimum levels set forth in the Consent Order No minimum

total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio was specified in the Consent Order

Under current Federal Reserve guidelines the Corporation includes trust preferred securities in Tier

capital

The Bank is required to maintain reserves in the form of cash and balances with the Federal Reserve

Bank against its deposit liabilities The amounts of such reserves totaled $2.5 million at December 31 2012 and

$3.9 million at December 31 2011

Consent Order and Written Agreement

Due to the Banks financial condition the 0CC required that the Banks Board of Directors sign formal

enforcement action Consent Order with the 0CC which conveys specific actions needed to address certain

findings from their examination and to address the Banks current financial condition The Bank entered into

Consent Order with the 0CC on December 21 2010 which contained list of strict requirements ranging from

capital directive which required it to achieve and maintain minimum regulatory capital levels in excess of the

statutory minimums to be well-capitalized to developing liquidity risk management and contingency funding

plan in connection with which it is subject to limitations on the maximum interest rates it can pay on deposit

accounts

In addition the Consent Order required the Bank to develop three-year capital plan which includes

among other things specific plans for maintaining adequate capital discussion of the sources and timing of

additional capital as well as contingency plans for alternative sources of capital The Consent Order also required

the Bank to develop strategic plan covering at least three-year period which among other things included

specific description of the strategic goals and objectives to be achieved the targeted markets the specific Bank

personnel who are responsible and accountable for the plan and description of systems to monitor our progress

On March 19 2011 the Banks Board submitted written strategic plan and capital plan to the 0CC covering

three-year period which included an action plan for increasing the Banks capital ratios to the minimums set forth in

the order The consent order also required the Bank to achieve and maintain total capital of at least equal to 12% of

risk-weighted assets and Tier capital at least equal to 8% of adjusted total assets The Bank has been working on

efforts to achieve the Tier capital levels imposed under the Consent Order

The Consent Order also contained restrictions on future extensions of credit and required the development

of various programs and procedures to improve the Banks asset quality as well as routine reporting on its progress

toward compliance with the Consent Order to the Board of Directors and the 0CC

The Banks compliance committee monitors and coordinates compliance with the Consent Order The

committee consists of five members of its Board of Directors and meets at least monthly to receive written progress

reports from management on the results and status of actions needed to achieve full compliance with each article of

the Consent Order
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19 Capital Management and Regulatory Matters continued

In response to the Consent Order the Bank

Revised its loan policy and created commercial real estate concentration management

program The Bank also established new loan review program to ensure the timely and

independent identification of problem loans and modified its existing program for the

maintenance of an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses

Took immediate and continuing action to protect the Banks interest in certain asets identified by

the 0CC or any other bank examiner and developed criticized assets report covering the entire

credit felationship with respect to such assets

impiementØa and adhered to program for the maintenance of an adequate allowance for loan

loss that is consistent with 0CC requirements and

Ensured that the Bank has competent management in place on full-time basis to carry out the

boards policies and operate the Bank in safe and sound manner

Overall the Bank is not well capitalized and must increase its capital or it may face further regulatory

action If the Bank does not obtain additional capital or sell assets to reduce the size of its balance sheet to level

which can be supported by its capital levels it will not meet the capital minimums set forth in the Consent

Order Failure to meet the minimum ratios set forth in the Consent Order could result in regulators taking additional

enforcement actions against the Bank Our ability to raise capital is contingent on the current capital markets and on

its financial performance

Written Agreement with Federal Reserve Bank

On May 20 2011 the Corporation entered into written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of

Richmond which among other things

required the Corporation to fully utilize its financial and managerial resources to serve as source of

strength to the Bank

prohibited the Corporation from paying any dividends and taking any dividends representing reduction in

capital from the Bank in each case without the prior written approval of the Federal Reserve

prohibited the Corporation from making any distributions on subordinated debentures or trust preferred

securities without the prior written approval of the Federal Reserve and

prohibited the Corporation from incurring increasing or guaranteeing any debt or redeeming any shares of

its common stock in each case without the prior written approval of the Federal Reserve

iquidliy

The sank operates in highly-regulated industry and must plan for the liquidity needs of each entity

separately variety of sources of liquidity are available to the Bank to meet its short-term and long-term funding

needs Although number of these sources have been limited or are no longer available follpwi.ng execution of the

Consent Order with the 0CC management has prepared forecasts of these sources of funds and the Banks

projected uses of funds during 2Q12 and believes that the sources available are sufficient to meet the Banks

projcled liquidity needs for this period However it is unclear at this point what impact if any the limitations on

interest rates included in the Consent Order will have on the Banks continued ability to mairain adequate liquidity

See Note 6- Deposits Note 17 Lines of Credit and Note FHLB Advances for complete description of

funding sources and limitations

Management has taken number of actions to increase its short-term liquidity position to meet the Banks

projected liquidity needs during this timeframe with liquid unpledged cash and investments of $126.8 million as of

December 31 2012 In addition management believes that upon completion of successful capital raise in the near

future number of the funding sources which were limited following the Consent Order will again become
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19 Capital Management and Regulatory Matters continued

available to the Bank to meet its funding needs

Management is diligently continuing to work with its financial and protssional advisors to seek qualified

sources of outside capital as well as to evaluate opportunities to further reduce the size of the Banks balance sheet

by selling assets Management believes that its current strategy to raise additional capital and dispose of assets to

deleverage will allow it to raise its çapi%aLratios to the minimums set forth in the Consent Order with the 0CC As

part of the capital plans submitted to the 0CC the Corporation and the Bank are pursuing number of strategic

options including combination of capital raises and the sale of certain of the Banks assets to improve the Banks

capital position In addition since December 31 2009 the size of the Corporations balance sheet has decreased

primarily due to reduction of loans of approximately $107.1 million Such reduction resulted primarily from iqan

payoffs There can be no assurances as to when or whether the negotiation of sale of any assets will be successful

See Note 19 Regulatory Capital Requirements for specific details regarding the amounts of additional capital

needed to satisf the minimum capital requirements in the Consent Order

The Corporation relies on dividends from the Bank as its primary oprc of liquidity The Corporation is

legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank Various legal limitations restrict the Bank from lending or

otherwise supplyug funds to the Corporation to meet its obligations including paying
dividends In addition the

terms of the Consent Order further limit the Banks ability to pay dividends to the corporation to satisfy its funding

needs

The effects of the current economic environment are being felt across many industries with financial

services and residential real estate being particularly hard hit The effects of the economic downturn have continued

to severely impact the Bank throughout 2011 The Bank with lpan portfoliQ consisting of concentration in

commercial real estate loans including residential construction and development loans has seen decline in the

value of the collateral securing its portfolio as well as rapid deterioration in its borrowers cash flow and ability to

repay their outstanding loans to the Bank The Banks level of non-accrual loans are $13.2 million as of.December

31 2012 compared to $16.8 million as of December 31 2011 related primarily to deterioration in the credit quality

of its loans collateralized by real estate Accordingly the Company has recorded provision for loan losses of

$704000 and $990000 respectively for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and consequently incurred

losses each year

As result of the recent downturn in the financial markets the availability of many sources of capital

principally to financial services companies has become significantly restricted or has become increasingly costly

as compared to the prevailing market rates prior to the volatility Management cannot predict when or if the capital

markets will return to more favorable conditions The Banks management is actively evaluating number of

capital sources and balance sheet management strategies to ensure that the Banks projected level of regulatory

capital can support its balance sheet and meet or exceed the minimum requirements set forth in the Consent Order

There can be no assurances that the Corporation will be successful in its efforts to raise additional

capital An equity financing transaction of this type would result in substantial dilution to the Corporations current

shareholders Although management is committed to developing strategies to eliminate the uncertainty

surrounding each of these areas the outcome of these developments cannot be predicted at this time Should these

efforts be unsuccessful due to the regulatory restrictions which exist that restrict cash payments between the Bank

and the Corporation the Corporation may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal

course of business

20 Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The following is summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that may affect accounting reporting

and disclosure of financial information by the Corporation

In April 2011 the criteria used to determine effective control of transferred assets in the Transfers and

Servicing topic of the Accounting Standards Codification ASC was amended by ASU 2011-03 The

requirement for the transferor to have the ability to repurchase or redeem the financial assets on substantially the
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20 Recently Issued Accounting Standards continued

agreed terms and the collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion were removed from

the assessment of effective control The other criteria to assess effective control were not changed The amendments

were effective for the Corporation beginning January 2012 and did not have material effect on the financial

statements

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 to assist creditors with their detrminatiori of whena

restructuring is Troubled Debt Restructuring TDR The determination is based on whether the restructuring

constitutes concession and whether the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties as both events must be present

The new guidance was effective for the Corporation beginning January 2012 and did not have material effect on

the Companys TOR determinations

ASU 201 1-04 was issued in May 2011 to amend the Fair Value Measurement topic of the ASC by

clarifying the application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and by changing particular

principles or requirements for measuring fair value or for disclosing information about fair value measurements

The amendments were effective for the Corporation beginning January 2012 and are reflected in Note

The Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC was amended in June 2011 The amendment eliminates the

option to present other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity The

amendment requires consecutive presentation of the statement of net income and other comprehensive income and

requires an entity to present reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income on the

fac of the financial statements The amendments were applied retrospectively In December 201 the topic was

further amended to defer the effective date of presenting reclassification adjustments from other cor1prehensive

income to net income on the face of the financial statements

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting

bodies are not expected to have material impact on the Corporations financial position results of operations or

cash flows
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21 Provident Community Bancshares Inc Financial Information

Parent Corporation Only

Condensed financial information for Provident Community Bancshares is presented as follqws in

thousands

As of December 31

Condensed Balance Sheets 2012 2011

Assets

Cash and due from banks 82 178

Investment in subsidiary 25064 24966

Other 391 378

Total assets $25537 S25.522

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Accrued interest payable
957 680

Floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures 12372 12372

Shareholders equity 12.208 12470

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $25337 $25522

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

Condensed Statements of IncomeLoss

Equity in undistributed earnings losses of

subsidiary
238 345

Interest expense 277 423
Other expense net 83 112
Net loss 122 190
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net loss 122 190
Adjustments to reconcile net loss

to net cash used in operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings losses of

subsidiary 238 345
Change in other assets and liabilities net 264 420

Net cash used in operating activities

Net increase decrease in cash and due from banks 96 115
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period

178 293

Cash and due from banks at end of period L2 178

22 Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial

statements are issued Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence

about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet including the estimates inherent in the process
of

preparing financial statements Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions

that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after that date Management has reviewed events

occurring through the date the financial statements were issued and no subsequent events have occurred requiring

accrual or disclosure

Item Chances In and Disa2reements With Accountants on Accountin2 find Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
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The Corporations management including the Corporations principa1 executive officek and principal

financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the Corporations disclosure controls and procedures as such

term is defined in Rule 3a- 15e promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act Based upon their evaluation the principal executive officer and principal financial officer

concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this report the Corporations disclosure controls and

procedures were effeŁtive for the purpose of ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports

that the Corporation files or submits under the Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Cmmission the

SEC is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules

and forms and is accumulated and communicated to the Corporations management including its principal

executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Internal Contiols Over Financial Reporting

Managements annual report on internal control over financial reporting is incorporated herein by reference

to Item Finanthal Statements and Supplementary Data in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Changes to Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except as indicated herein there were no changes in the Corporations internal control over financial

reporting during the three months ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonable likely

to materially affect the Corporations internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directoçs Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors

For information concerning the Board of Directors of Provident Community Bancshares the ihformation

contained under the section captioned Items to be Voted on By Shareholders Item ElectiOn of Directors in

the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

Reference is made to the cover page of this Form 10-K and to the section captioned Other Information

Relating to Directors and Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the

Proxy Statement for information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

Code of Ethics

For inforthätion concerning the Corporations code of ethics the information conained under the section

captioned Corporate Governance Code of Ethics and Business Conduct in the Proxy Statement is incorporated

herein by reiØrence copy of the code of ethics is available in the Investor Relations Section of our website at

www.providentonline.com

Executive Officers of the Registraæt

Certain executive officers of the Bank also serve as executive officers of Provident Community

Bancshares The day-to-day management duties of the executive officers of Provident Community Bancshares and

the Bank relate primarily to their duties as to the Bank The executive officers of Provident Community Bancshares

currently are as follows
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Position as of

Name Age1 December 31 2012

Dwight Neese 62 President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Richard Flake 64 Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Lud Vaughn 62 Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer

AtDecember3l2012

Dwight Neese was appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank effective September

1995

Richard Flake joined the Company in September 1995

Lul Vaughn joined the Company in April 2003 Before joining the Company Mr Vaughn was Senior

Vice President for Bank of America in Rock Hill South Carolina

Corporate Governance

Information concerning the audit committee and the audit committee financial expert and other corporate

governance matters is inorporated herein by rference tO the section titled Corporate Governance Committees

of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee in the Proxy Statement

Item 11 Executive Compenation

The information contained under the sections captioned Executive Compensation and Corporate

Governance-Director Compensation in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mana2emØnt and Related Stockholder

Matters

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned Stock

Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Security Ownership of Management

Infonnation required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned Stock

Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Management of Provident Community Bancshares knows of no arrangements including any

pledge by any person
of securities of Provident Community Bancshares the operation of which may at subsequent

date result in change in control of the registrant

Equity Compensation Plan Information
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The following table sets forth information about the Corporation common stock that may be issued upon

the exercise of stock options warrants and rights under all of the Corporations equity compensation plans as of

December 31 2012

Number of securities

remaining available for

Number of securities Weighted-average future issuance under

to be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation

of outstanding options outstanding options plans excluding securities

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column

Equity compensation

plans approved by security
56500 $16.91 127110

holders

Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security holders

Total 56500
$16.91

127110

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Transactions with Related Persons

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned Other

Information Relating to Director and Executive OfficersPolicies and Procedures for Approval of Related Person

Transactions and Transactions with Related Persons in the Proxy Statement

Director Independence

Information concerning director independence is incorporated herein by reference to the section titled

Corporate GovernanceDirector Independence in the Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned Items to

be Voted On By StockholdersItem 3Ratification of the Appointment of the Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm in the Proxy Statement
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits

Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

3a Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June

30 2006 as filed on August 2006

3b Bylaws Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2008 as filed on March 26 2009

4a Certificate of Designations establishing Fixed Rate Form 8-K as filed on March 2009

Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series of

Provident Community Bancshares

4b Form of stock certificate for Fixed Rate Cumulative Form 8-K as filed on March 2009

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

4c Warrant to purchase 179100 Share of Common Stock Form 8-K as filed on March 2009

of Provident Community Bancshares Inc

10a Employment Agreement with Dwight Neese Form 0-KSB for the year ended September 30

2003 as filed on December 19 2003

10b Employment Agreement with Richard Flake Form 0-KSB for the year ended September 30

2003 as filed on December 19 2003

10c Form of First Amendment to the Employment Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

Agreement by and between Provident Community 2008 as filed on March 26 2009

Bancshares Inc Provident Community Bank and

each of Dwight Neese and Richard Flake

10d Provident Community Bancshares Inc 1995 Stock Definitive Proxy Statement as filed on December

Option Plan 22 1995

10e Provident Community Banc shares Inc 2001 Stock Definitive Proxy Statement as filed on December

Option Plan 22 2000

10f Provident Community Bancshares Inc 2006 Stock Definitive Proxy Statement as filed on March 20

Option Plan 2006

10g Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June

by and among Lud Vaughn Provident Community 30 2007 as filed on August 13 2007

Bank N.A and Provident Community Bancshares

Inc

10h Form of First Amendment to the Amended and Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

Restated Change in Control Agreement by and 2008 as filed on March 26 2009

between Provident Community Bancshares Inc

Provident Community Bank and Lud Vaughn

10i Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan by and Form 0-Q for the quarterly period ended March

between Dwight Neese and Provident Community 31 2007 as filed on May 14 2007

Bank

10j Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan by and Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March

between Dwight Neese and Provident Community 31 2007 as filed on May 14 2007

Bank
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10k Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan by and Form l0-Q for the quarterly period ended March

between Richard Flake and Provident Community 31 2007 as filed on May 14 2007

Bank

101 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan by and Form 0-Q for the quarterly period ended March

belweeu Richard Flake and Provident Community 31 2007 as filed on May 14 2007

Bank

10m Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan by and Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June

between Lud Vaughn and Provident Community 30 2007 as filed on August 13 2007

Bank

10n Form of Second Amendment to the Employment Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

Agreement by and between Provident Community 2008 as filed on March 26 2009

Bancshares Inc formerly Union Financial

Bancshares Inc Provident Community Bank and

each of Dwight Neese and Richard Flake

10o Form of First Amendment to the Amended and Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

Restated Change in Control Agreement by and 2008 as filed on March 26 2009

between Provident Community Bancshares Inc

formerly Union Financial Bancshares Inc Provident

Community Bank and Lud Vaughn

10p Consent Order issued by the Comptroller of the Form 8-K as filed on December 23 2010

Currency

10q Stipulation and Consent to the Issuance of Consent Form 8-K as filed on December 23 2010

Order dated December 21 2010 between the

Comptroller of the Currency and Provident

Community Bank

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public

Accointing Firm

31a Rule 3a- 14a/l Sd- 14a Certification of Chief

Executive Officer

31b Rule 3a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certification of Chief

Fiiancial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certifications

99a Principal Executive Officer Certification Regarding

TARP

99b Principal Financial Officer Certification Regarding

TARP
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the registrant caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

PROVIDENT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC

Date April 2013 By Is Dwight Neese

Dwight Neese

President and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf

of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By Is Dwight Neese By /5/ Russell Smart

Dwight Neese Russell Smart

Principal Executive Officer Director

Date April 2013 Date April 2013

By Is Richard Flake By Is Philip Wilkins

Richard Flake Philip Wilkins

Principal Financial and Director

Accounting Officer

Date April 2013 DateApril 2013

By Is Robert Breakfield

Robert Breakfield

Director

Date April 12013

By Is William Graham

William Graham

Director

Date April 2013

By Is Carl Mason

Carl Mason

Director

Date April 12013
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PROVIDENT COMM4BANCSHARES INC

ASSOCIATES DIRECTORS AND OUR COMMUNITIES CORPORATE INFORMATION

Jonesville Banking Center ft ATM Union Duncan By-Pass Banking Cnmmon Stock Infoematinn

934 Porest Street Center ft ATM Provident Community Bancshaers Inc.s common stock

Jonesville SC 29353 502 North Dancan By-Pass is quoted on the Over the Conntrr Bulletin Board under

864.6746502 Union SC 29379 the symbol PCBS A5 0f Macoh 28 201.3 there were 657

C/ Al
864.429.1890 shareholders 0f record and 1790599 shares of common

Dot Lcd

cc

Michella
Cody

stock 5505d and ootstanding

Char/eec Thcnpcos
Nice/c Davis

Annual Meeting 0f Skareholders

Lasseens Banking Center ft ATM
Tcasa Garner

The Annnal Meeting of Shareholders will convene at

206 Hillcesst Drive
Brittany Rahcatraw

Macfeat House Winthrop University Rock Hill SC

Lauren SC 29360
Dcvcdy Smith

on May 15 2013 at p.m

864.984.2531

Corporate Office

LaVcrna Daberc
Union Main Street Banking Center 2700 Celanese Road

Drconna Frb
ft ATM P.O Boa 36428

Karen Hamby
203 West Main Street

Rock Hill SC 29732

Jarred Knight
Union SC 29379 803.325.9400

Thrri Fasten
864.427.9000 888.427.9002

Gayhnc Pcnnsngton

Caro/yn Bc/se

Rock Hill Banking Center ft ATM
Chrysta/ Coffee

Independent Certified Psslslic Accountants

2700 Celanrse Road
Ho//y Cc/far

Elliott Davis LLC

Rock Hill SC Kim Crooher

1901 Main Street

803.325.9400 fi

Suite 1650

noa coo

Columkia SC 29201

Joe/ Crimm Harriet Dares
803.256.0002

Chcs/yn Jacbson
Richard F/abe

Jsanita fe//era
Alloon Footer

General Counsel

Amandafohnsen Joan Frost
Nelson Mulltn Riley Scaeboroogk

Renca King
Amy Gibson

1320 Main Street

Todd Lumphin
Claudia Greer

Columkia SC 29201

John Ma/acres
Heather

Gregory 803.255.9415

Lynn MoMansa Melissa Gregory

Kim McSoain Beth folly
Special Cuonsel

Dwight Neese Amber/sat ice
Kilpatesck Townsend Stockton LLP

Rob Newsom Maria Maccade
607 14th Street NW

Marb Pacb Lisa Morris
Suite 900

Fra Parnell Pam Morris Washington DC 20005

Cheryl Rabestmw Jeanne Smith 202.508.5800

Jim Rene Mehssa Smith

Dee Dee Stewart Cindy Thompson Stuck Infuematinn

Nibbi Valentine Anitea Vinson Kerfe Beuyette W00d Inc

Led Vaughn
Wanda Wells Three Jones Center

Sherri Williama 1051 East Cary Street Suite 1415

Rock Hill Manchester Banking
VA 321

Center ft ATM Winnsknen 321 By-Pass Banking
800.342 5529

615 Crown Peinte Lane Centee ft ATM

Rock Hill SC 29730 801 US 321 By-Pass
South Sandlee ONeil Partners LP

803.325.9444 Winnslsoro SC 29180 919 Third venue

Holly Bmws
803.635.5589 New York NY 10022

Jacqueline Drown CathyJchnaen
800.635.6872

Phyllis Davis
Marion Mahorsby

Cindy Nine Monsque Spa rho

Transfer Agent

Susan Taylor
Registrar ft Transfer Company

Rock Hill Westminster Banking
Dmily Pasley

10 Commerce Deive

Center ft ATM Ceannfoed NJ 07016

1330 India H00k R05d Board nf Directors 800.456.0596

Rock Hill SC 29732 Rokert Breakfield

803.325.9415 William Graham Shareholder Relations Officer

Carl Mason WandaJ Wells

Dwight Neese Provident Community Baneshares Inc

Simpsnnville Banking Center Russell Smart 203 West Main Street

ft ATM Phl Wilkins DMD Union SC 29379

116 NE Main Street 864.429.1861

Director Emeritus
Simpeanville SC 29681

864.228.2035
00i5 or an

J0hn Boyd

Jessica Kern

Lauren Myers

Michael Seymour



PROVIDENT COMMBANCSHARES INC

2700 Celanese Road P.O Box 36428 Rock Hill South Carolina 29732

803.325.9400

888.427.9002

www.providentonline.com


